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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

2024 2023
—E-mEF —ECo=F
HK$ million HK$ million % Change
EHHEOL
BEEBRT BEBT (%)
Revenue WA
OEM Business JR R B E R 930.0 998.1 (6.8)
Fashion Retail Business RRTEER 579.0 604.7 (4.3)
Property Investment Business LESS- £ 96.4 60.3 59.9
1,605.4 1,663.1
Operating loss wE B (434.6) (276.1)
Significant items: ERNIEA
Fair value losses on investment properties & &¥% 2 A FEEIE 113.4 16.0
(Reversal of)/Provision for impairment loss & &l& E R (EE 18 (8D),/
of financial assets, net BT (9.9) 73.0
Provision for impairment loss of FemEEREBERE
non-financial assets 79.2 —
Provision for impairment loss of BENRIIRE CRERIBRE
investment in associate 8.7 —
Operating Loss before the significant items F&T R EARIEE TR EE1E (243.2) (187.1)
Equity attributable to the Company’s RARRERA ARG
equity holders 1,559.8 1,990.1
Equity per share (HK$) TR (BT) 0.75 0.95
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Notes:
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Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond CPA, FCCA
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Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
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55 King Yip Street
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Hong Kong

Registered Office
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Grand Cayman KY1-1111
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Company Website

www.chinating.com.hk

Principal Bankers
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Legal Adviser
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Auditor
BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

Principal Share Registrar

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

2025 Annual General Meeting
27 May 2025

Closure of Register of Members
For the Annual General Meeting
— From 22 May 2025 to 27 May 2025 (both days inclusive)
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On behalf of the board of directors of China Ting Group Holdings
Limited, | hereby present to you the operational report of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year 2024.

In 2024, the global economic landscape continued to evolve, with the
road to recovery full of twists and turns. Trade protectionism resurfaced
intermittently, geopolitical tensions persisted, and international markets
remained volatile. However, China has demonstrated strong economic
resilience amid the complex international environment by proactively
optimizing its domestic economic structure. As a traditional industry, the
garment industry had experienced sustained pressure during such
optimization process.

During the year, the Group upheld the tenacious corporate spirit to
actively respond to various challenges, and continuously explore the path
of innovation. China’s economy is heading towards a new journey of
high-quality development, and the clothing needs of 1.4 billion Chinese
people are constantly upgrading with a growing pursuit of quality,
personality and cultural connotation, which provides a broad space for
our domestic business expansion. We continued to explore the domestic
market in greater depth, and further consolidated our leading position in
the domestic market by means of optimizing brand matrix, improving
product quality and strengthening digital marketing, thereby achieving a
win-win situation in terms of both brand and market.

In the international market, we closely monitored the global fashion
trends and the changes in market demands. By continuously enhancing
our product design and innovation capabilities, we have gained
international recognition and acclaim by virtue of more competitive
products and services. We recognize that the garment industry in China
still has a strong global influence, and we have the responsibility and
capability to showcase the charm and strength of Chinese garments on
the international stage, thereby contributing to the advancement of the
global garment industry.

During the year, we also faced various difficulties and challenges. The
increasingly fierce market competition, frequent fluctuations in raw
material prices, and rising labor costs had brought certain pressure to our
production and operation. We believe that, with the joint efforts of all
shareholders, partners and employees, the Group will be able to remain
invincible in market competition and make greater achievements in the
future. Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
all shareholders for your trust and support, to our partners for advancing
alongside us, and to all employees for your dedication and hard work. Let
us forge ahead into a future of greater prosperity!

TING MAN YI
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2025
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Business Review

In 2024, with the modest recovery in the consumption demand in
the European countries, the United States and the PRC domestic
market, there was a slight growth in the garment industry in China
as a whole. However, due to the increasing pressure from the
geopolitical risks, weaken emerging markets and the regional
adjustments in the supply chain, China’s garment industry is still
facing the pressure of general relocation and significant decline in
the profit margins.

Against this background, the Group made significant adjustments
to its international OEM sales activities by relocating its work focus
to Cambodia, expanding the production capacity and management
quality of the overseas production bases, adjusting the division of
labour and cooperation between the domestic and the overseas
teams, and accelerating the construction of the information systems
to adapt to the changes in the production model where the
production for a large quantity of orders is conducted at overseas
production bases. Through the construction of the overseas
production bases during the second half of 2024, the Group has
strengthened the business connections with the established
garment buyers and recorded sales of HK$930.0 million for the full
year, representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.8%.
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The domestic retail business in the PRC was generally stabilized,;
but the domestic consumption was generally weak and affected the
gross profit margin of the retail segment. The Group's retail team
focused on the key tasks such as product research and
development, supply chain management, inventory management
and new retail marketing to ensure a stable growth of the Group's
operations. In 2024, the total domestic retail sales recorded
amount to HK$579.0 million, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 4.3%.

The industrial complex of the Group located at Yuhang District,
Hangzhou, the PRC, after the improvements and upgrades initiated
by the Group, commenced the investment promotion works in the
first half of 2024. However, as from the second quarter, with the
weaken domestic economic situation in the PRC in general, the
industrial property leasing market also dropped to the freezing
point, with no signs of easing until the fourth quarter of 2024.
Because of the new and modern design of the buildings and the
agglomeration effect in scale, the industrial park achieved a
satisfactory lease-out results in 2024, with the total revenue
amount to HK$96.4 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
59.9%.

Financial Review

Review of operations

During the year ended 31 December 2024 (the "“FY2024"), the
Group’s revenue amounted to HK$1,605.4 million, representing a
decrease of 3.5%, as compared to the total revenue of the Group
of HK$1,663.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the
“FY2023"). The gross profit for the FY2024 was HK$290.4 million,
representing a decrease of 8.5%, as compared to HK$317.4 million
for the FY2023. The loss attributable to the equity holders of the
Company for the FY2024 was HK$481.4 million and the net asset
value per share as of 31 December 2024 was HK$0.75.

OEM business

The revenue derived from the OEM business recorded a decrease
of 6.8% from HK$998.1 million for the FY2023 to HK$930.0
million for the FY2024. Products made from silk,
synthetic fabrics continued to be the major products which
contributed HK$635.1 million (FY2023: HK$714.1 million),
representing 68.3% (FY2023: 71.5%) of the total revenue of the
OEM business for the FY2024.

cotton and

Sales to the North American countries amounted to HK$324.0
million for the FY2024 (FY2023: HK$318.2 million), which
accounted for 34.8% (FY2023: 31.9%) of the total revenue of the
OEM business. Sales to the European countries and other markets
for the FY2024 were HK$84.9 million (FY2023: HK$93.2 million)
and HK$521.1 million (FY2023: HK$586.7 million), respectively.
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Retail business EEEH

During the FY2024, the revenue generated form the retail business RITZNEE  AEETFRTEXEBES
of the Group in the PRC amounted to HK$579.0 million, WA RSTI.0E BB R_T_=8F
representing a decrease of 4.3%, as compared to HK$604.7 million 16047 EH EBTTHA43% o R ZF ZEf
for the FY2023. Finity, the major brand of the Group, contributed F o AEENEEREFinity R TEEBER
HK$206.9 million to the retail business for the FY2024, 2069 BB WM-F - =H1FM22898H
representing a decrease of 9.6%, as compared to HK$228.9 million EBTHA9.6% °

for the FY2023.
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In terms of the retail revenue analysis by sales channels, sales from
the concessionary counters amounted to HK$149.8 million (FY2023:
HK$189.6 million), accounting for 21.0% of total retail revenue for
the FY2024. Sales from e-commerce, self-operated stores and
franchisees for the FY2024 amounted to HK$303.7 million
(FY2023: HK$296.7 million), HK$15.7 million (FY2023: HK$4.7
million) and HK$109.8 million (FY2023: HK$113.7 million),
respectively.

Property investment business

The Group has changed the usage of part of the industrial
complex to the China Ting International Fashion Base (35 Bl F
ESEM) since 2019. Such development continued in the
FY2024. The China Ting International Fashion Base is designed to
facilitate the regional development, pooling of fashion experts and
design brands and e-commerce development of the fashion
industry. All these provide significant contribution to the fashion
industry in Yu Hang District, Hangzhou, while allowing the Group
to diversify its business activities and enhance revenue.

During the FY2024, the revenue from the property investment
business amounted to HK$96.4 million, representing a increase of
59.9% as compared to HK$60.3 million for the FY2023.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continues to maintain a solid financial position. During
the FY2024, the Group’s working capital needs were principally
supported by the financial resources generated from its ordinary
course of business. As of 31 December 2024, the cash and cash
equivalents were HK$140.5 million, representing a decrease of
54.4% from HK$308.3 million as of 31 December 2023. The
Group had bank borrowings of HK$599.5 million as of
31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$383.3 million). As of
31 December 2024, the debt to equity ratio (total borrowings as a
percentage of total equity) was 38.1% (31 December 2023:
19.1%). The Directors consider that the Group has adequate
financial resources to support its working capital requirement and
future expansion.
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Business outlook

In 2025, the global economy is expected to continue the recovery
moderately. However, various uncertainties are expected during the
recovery process. The monetary and fiscal policies of major
economies such as the United States and Europe will continue to
have a profound impact on the global markets. Meanwhile,
geopolitical conflicts, trade protectionism and the retaliated tariff
measures worldwide will continue to pose challenges to the
international market demand of the apparel industry. Supply chain
restructuring has made Southeast Asia and other regions important
destinations for capacity transfer by virtue of their labor cost
advantages and policy support. The market share currently
occupied by the online sales channels in the global apparel market
will continue to expand, and online sales are expected to become
the main driving force for the growth of the industry in 2025.
Based on their view on the industry trend, the Group will step up
the construction and management of the Cambodian production
base in 2025 to ensure the continuous development of the
Group's international sales business. Meanwhile, the Group will
invest in cross-border e-commerce to tap into the global market via

new channels.

The scale of the domestic retail market in the PRC will continue to
expand, and is expected to exceed RMB4 trillion in 2025, with an
average annual growth rate of about 5%. Online sales channels
will account for more than 60%, becoming the main driving force
for market growth. The demand from the domestic consumers in
the PRC will have increasing demand for the quality, functionality
and personality of the garments and apparel, shifting from
focusing on price to pursuing quality and environmental protection.
The market segments such as high-end customised garments,
outdoor functional garments, as well as green and environmentally
friendly garments are growing rapidly. Meanwhile, consumers’
recognition of domestic brands is also increasing. The Group will
therefore continue to focus on the domestic retail market in the
PRC with more than one brand strategy, especially the segments of
domestic product consumption, green consumption and health
consumption, and step up the efforts on the development of
sportswear, silk garments, as well as green and environmentally
friendly garments.

The investment promotion work in the industrial park is still one of
the key projects for the Group this year. Attracting high-quality
customers to settle in the industrial park and creating an industrial
ecology are important topics for the future development of the
Group.
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(4) Human resources
As of 31 December 2024, the Group had 5,050 full-time
employees. Staff costs for the FY2024 stand at HK$392.1 million,
representing an increase of 3.6%, as compared to HK$378.3
million for the FY2023.

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with its
employees and has adopted an incentive bonus scheme for them,
under which bonuses are determined every year based on the
performance of individual employees and with reference to the
Group's annual profits and performance. The Directors believe that
a competitive remuneration package, a safe and comfortable
workplace, and career development opportunities are incentives for
employees to excel in their areas of responsibilities.

Pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations, the Group has
participated in relevant defined contribution retirement schemes
administrated by the Chinese government authorities for the
Group's employees in China. For the Group’s employees in Hong
Kong, all the arrangements pursuant to the mandatory provident
fund requirements set forth under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are
duly implemented. There is no mandatory retirement schemes
under the applicable laws and regulations in the United States (the
“US"). The Group has not implemented retirement schemes for the
Group's employees in the US.

Capital Expenditure and Commitments

The Group exercised careful control over capital expenditure. The Group
incurred capital expenditures of HK$278.3 million for the FY2024 which
was primarily used in the expansion of the China Ting International
Fashion Base and the leasehold improvement of the Group's retail outlets
and factories. Capital commitments contracted for but not incurred by the
Group as of 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$26.0 million, which
were mainly related to the construction of the China Ting International
Fashion Base.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend any final dividend of the Company for
the FY2024.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions

and Disposal of Subsidiaries
The Group did not have any significant investment, material acquisition or

disposal during the FY2024.
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Treasury Policies and Exposure to Fluctuation

in Exchange Rate

The Company uses Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") as its functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency. Since HK$ was pegged against
United States dollars (“USD"), the Directors consider the Group’s foreign
currency exchange exposure arising from USD transactions to be minimal
during the year.

The sales and purchase of raw materials of the Group are mainly
denominated in USD and Renminbi (“RMB"”). During the FY2024,
approximately 28.1% and 71.9% of revenue were denominated in USD
and RMB respectively, and approximately 11.1% and 88.9% of purchase
of raw materials were denominated in USD and RMB respectively.

As of 31 December 2024, approximately 16.9%, 80.6% and 2.1% of
cash and bank balances were denominated in USD, RMB and HKS$,
respectively, and approximately 77.3% and 22.7% of bank borrowings
were denominated in RMB and HK$, respectively.

Regarding the trade disputes between China and the US, it is expected
that on-going currency fluctuation of RMB against USD is unavoidable. To
minimise the impact, we will monitor the foreign currency risk closely to
ensure the net exposure is at an acceptable level. The Directors may
consider using financial instruments to reduce the currency risk exposure
when necessary.
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Executive Directors
Mr. TING Man Yi, aged 68,
executive Director. He is also a director of Longerview Investments Limited
("Longerview”) and Firmsuccess Limited (“Firmsuccess”), both are the
substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr. TING is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. TING started the business of the
Group in December 1992 and has considerable experience in the silk
fabric and silk garment manufacturing and trading business. Prior to
establishing the initial company of the Group, Mr. TING worked for
Hangzhou Silk Industrial Company (T 4448 T% A &) from 1981 to
1986. Mr. TING is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning
of the Group, especially overseeing the expansive manufacturing industrial

is the Chairman of the Group and an

complex in Hangzhou, as well as the planning and implementation of
major new investments and projects of the Group. Mr. TING is the elder
brother of Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING Jianer.

Mr. TING Hung Yi, aged 64, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and an executive Director. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company, a director
of Longerview, In Holdings Limited (“In Holdings”) (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. TING joined the Group in May 2002 and is principally responsible for
the strategic development of the Group’s OEM, ODM, and retail
businesses. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. TING was the general manager
of a trading company in Hong Kong between 1991 and 2002. Mr. TING
graduated from Zhejiang Sci-Tech University GHTIE T AZ), formerly
known as Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textiles (/T #4444 T2Fx), in 1987
and has over 30 years of experience in the operations of garment export.
Mr. TING is the younger brother of Mr. TING Man Yi and Mr. DING

Jianer.

Mr. DING Jianer, aged 65, is an executive Director. He is also a director
of Longerview, Willport Investments Limited (“Willport”) (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. DING joined the Group in October 1996 when he was first involved
in the management and business operations of Shenzhen Fuhowe Fashion
Company Limited. He has considerable experience in the silk garment
manufacturing business, with focus on various specific areas ranging from
the operations of weaving plants, sales and marketing to printing and
dyeing and is responsible for the Group’s fabric research and
development along with innovative techniques. Mr. DING is the younger
brother of Mr. TING Man Yi and the elder brother of Mr. TING Hung Yi.
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Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter, aged 61, is an executive Director and the
managing director of China Ting Garment Mfg (Group) Limited (“China
Ting Garment”) and Concept Creator Fashion Limited. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. CHEUNG has extensive
experience in the garment and textile industry and joined the Group in
January 2000, and oversees the Group’s sales and marketing teams.
Mr. CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of Arts (cum laude) Degree from the
University of Washington in 1987, and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Simon Fraser University in 1990. Mr. CHEUNG was
admitted as a member of the Golden Key National Honor Society and Phi
Beta Kappa in 1986 and 1988, respectively.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2005. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company and
the member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. WONG
holds a master’s degree in business administration from the University of
Adelaide in Australia. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and CPA Australia, an associate member of The Chartered
Institute and The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. Mr. WONG is also the Responsible Officer of Beagle Asset
Management Company Limited (formerly known as CASDAQ International

Governance

Capital Market (HK) company Limited) and is licensed to carry out certain
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance namely
asset management and advising on securities.

Mr. WONG has over 40 years of experience in finance, accounting and
management, and was, for over 10 years, an executive director, deputy
general manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (stock code: 0123), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Asia Orient Holdings Limited 0214), Asia Standard
International Group Limited (stock code: 0129), Century City International

(stock code:

Holdings Limited (stock code: 0355), Changyou International Group
Limited (stock code: 1039), Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 0617),
Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (stock code: 0078), Yuan
Heng Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 0332) and Zhuguang Holdings
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1176), all of the companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was also an independent
non-executive director of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited (stock code:
0292), a company withdrawal of listing of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange on 22 October 2024, from January 2021 to October 2024 and
Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (stock code: 3308), a company
withdrawal of the listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange on 10
October 2023, from February 2006 to October 2023.
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Mr. LEUNG Man Kit, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2005. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG obtained a
Bachelor's Degree in Social Science from the University of Hong Kong in
1977. Mr. LEUNG has over 30 years of experience in project finance and
corporate finance and has held senior positions with Peregrine Capital
(China) Limited, Crosby Securities (HK) Limited and Swiss Bank
Corporation, Hong Kong Branch. Mr. LEUNG was also a director of
Emerging Markets Partnership (Hong Kong) Limited which was the
principal adviser to the AIG Infrastructure Fund L.P.

Mr. LEUNG is an independent non-executive director of NetEase, Inc., a
company listed on NASDAQ (stock code: NTES) and the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9999). Mr. LEUNG is also an independent non-executive
director of Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 1132) and Luye Pharma Group Limited (stock code: 2186),
both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. LEUNG was also a
responsible officer (Type 6) of Grand Moore Capital
18 September 2019 to 31 October 2021.

Limited from

Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director in January 2023. She is also the member of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Ms. LI has been retired from the
garment and apparel manufacturing and merchandising industry since
March 2018. Ms. LI has more than 38 years of experience in the industry
and she started as a junior merchandiser during the period from 1981 to
2018. During the 16-year period from 2002 and 2018, Ms. LI served as
the managing director of China Ting Garment, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Ms. LI was responsible for the daily business operations
of China Ting Garment including product development and sourcing,
merchandising, marketing and coordination with customers and suppliers.
Ms. LI worked in Hong Kong and the Mainland China and is familiar with
the industry environment. Following her retirement, Ms. LI spent some of
her time in her own business and the business of her spouse which are
unrelated to the business of the Group. Ms. LI has completed her
education with CNEC Christian College in 1978.
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Corporate Management Team

Export, OEM and ODM Business

Dr. TING Lai, aged 40, is a vice president of the Group. Dr. TING joined
the Group in August 2009, and is responsible for overseeing its export
business and product development in Hangzhou. Dr. TING obtained a
Bachelor of Economics from the University of California, Los Angeles
(UCLA) in 2008 and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the
University of Hong Kong in 2014, and a Doctor of Business
Administration (DBA) in the City University of Hong Kong in 2022, with
extensive experience in apparel production management and product
quality control. Dr. TING is the eldest daughter of Mr. TING Man Yi,
Chairman of the Group.

Weaving and Apparel Production Management
Mr. WEI Dong, aged 48,
responsible for overseeing the Group’'s production management and

is a vice president of the Group and is

managing the third manufacturing business division. He joined the Group
in August 2004. Mr. WEI obtained a Bachelor of International Accounting
from Zhejiang Institute of Finance & Economics, with over ten years of
in apparel production management and product quality
control. He is also the husband of the niece of Mr. TING Man Yi,
Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING lJianer, the executive Directors.

experience

Mr. DING Lurui, aged 46,
responsible for overseeing the Group’'s production management and

is a vice president of the Group and is

managing the first manufacturing business division. Mr. DING graduated
from China Central Radio & TV University, and joined the Group in
September 1999, with extensive experience in apparel manufacturing
management, production management and product quality control.
Mr. DING is the nephew of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and
Mr. DING lJianer, the executive Directors.
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Retail and Brand Management

Mr. TING Yu, aged 36, is a Vice President of the Group. Mr. TING joined
the Group in 2011, and was initially responsible for the operation and
development of the brand of RIVERSTONE and is mainly responsible for
the operation and development of all the brands of the Group at
present. Mr. TING graduated from The University of Manchester with a
bachelor’s degree in 2010, and then from Cass Business School of City
University of London, U.K. with a master’s degree in 2011. Mr. TING has
advanced concepts of innovation and vyears of experience in retail
management. Mr. TING is the eldest son of Mr. TING Hung Vi, the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group.

Mr. TING Fan, aged 36, is a Vice President of the Group and a director
of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. TING joined the Group in 2011 and is
mainly responsible for investor relations and global business development
at present. Mr. TING graduated from The University of Manchester in
2010, and then from Cass Business School of City University of London,
U.K. with a master’s degree in 2011. Mr. TING has extensive experience
in market development and sales management, and has been in charge of
the introduction and management of some international fashion brands,
like TRENTA and SPRAY GROUND. Mr. TING is the second son of
Mr. TING Hung Yi, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Accounting and Finance

Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond, aged 47, is the Financial Controller and
also the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Group.
Mr. CHENG joined the Group in May 2005, and is responsible for the
Group's overall matters related to financial and treasury management,
financial accounting and reporting, budgetary control, taxation and
statutory audit. Mr. CHENG graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and also holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration (MBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an
Institute of Certified Public

and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered

associate  member of the Hong Kong
Accountants,
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. CHENG worked as
audit manager for an international accounting firm in Hong Kong.

Administration and Public Relations

Ms. CHEN Shu, aged 44, is a vice president of the Group. Ms. CHEN
in August 2003, and is responsible for the
administration, human resources and public relations of the Group.

joined the Group

Ms. CHEN obtained a Bachelor of Law from Wuhan University and a
Bachelor of Management from Central China Normal University in 2003,
and a Master of Human Resources Management from Monash University
in 2009. She has accumulated over 15 years of extensive experience in
human resources management and public relations.
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The Directors recognise the importance of corporate governance and are
committed to maintain high-standards of corporate governance in the
management structure and internal control procedures of the Group, in
order to make sure that all business activities of the Group and the
decision-making process are properly regulated to safeguard shareholders’
interests and as well as the Company’s assets. We recognize the value
and importance of achieving high corporate governance standards to
promote corporate transparency and accountability and to enhance
shareholders’ value. This report summarises how the principles as set forth
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
have been applied in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024. The
company has complied with the principles and code provisions of the
"CG Code”) as set forth in Part 2 of
Appendix C1 to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Corporate Governance Code (the

Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December
2024.

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the
Company.
supervision to the Management with a view to protecting the

Its key responsibilities include providing leadership and

Shareholders’ interests and enhancing Shareholders’ long-term value.

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values and strategies and
was satisfied that they are aligned with the Group’s culture. All Directors
must act with integrity, lead by example, and promote the desired
culture. The Board should instil and continually reinforce across the
Company’s values of "acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly”.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board closely monitored
the implementation of corporate governance practice, risk management
and internal control systems to ensure the corporate value and the
Company’s culture are aligned.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of our Company
are summarised below.
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The Board of Directors

Board Composition
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The composition of the Board for the year ended 31 December 2024 and #HE_ZT-_WF+_A=+—HILFEREEAF

up to the date of this annual report is set forth as follows:

Mr. TING Man Yi

THEHREE

Mr. TING Hung Yi

THEREA

Mr. DING lJianer

TrR%EE

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter

REB LA

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang (Retired on 31 July 2024)
BEMBEE(RZTZNFEA=+—HRME)
Mr. WONG Chi Keung

=2WBESE

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit

RREFTE

Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera

FAKRZ LT

HEMWEESARERIIDT

Chairman and Executive Director
IERATES

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
THAHFNTES

Executive Director

BWiTES

Executive Director

BiTES

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIUIFATESE

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIUIFATESE

Independent Non-Executive Director
BIUFRTESE

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIUFNTES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group. The EEZZAZEBENERALEH -EZT7TETAB

principal roles of the Board are:

to formulate the medium and long-term strategies of the Group;

to lay down the objectives, policies and business plans of the Group;

to monitor and evaluate the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

to review and approve the Group’s annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, interim and annual results, material contracts
and transactions, declaration of dividend, Directors’ appointment or
re-appointment following the recommendation(s) by the Nomination
Committee as well as other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt
with by the Board;

to establish effective control measures so as to assess and manage
risks in pursuit of our objectives; and

to review and ensure the Group has in place adequate accounting

systems and appropriate human resources to fulfill the accounting
and financial reporting functions.
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The Board delegates the day-to-day operations of the Company to the
management of the Group, who possesses extensive operating experience
and industry knowledge, and also instructs the management to
implement the Board’s decisions and resolutions. In addition, the Board
has also delegated certain specific responsibilities to various Board
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. The Board currently comprises four
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors. Details

of the Directors are set forth on pages 26 to 30 of this annual report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set forth in its terms of reference, including:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the principles and code
provisions as set forth in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The four executive Directors include three brothers, namely Mr. TING Man
Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING lJianer, and Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin,
Peter. Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter has no family relationship with any of
the other executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has entered into service contract with each of the
executive Director and letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Director setting out their duties, terms and

conditions of service and appointment, respectively.
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The articles of association of the Company ("Articles of Association”)
provides that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in
this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of shareholders
to a standard commensurate with that of the code.

The Articles of Association also provides that any Director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only
until the Company’s next following general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Mechanism regarding independent views to the Board

The Board has implemented different ways to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board (the “Mechanism”). The Board will
conduct annual review on the implementation and effectiveness of the
Mechanism and the results will be presented to the Board which will
collectively discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if
appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Mechanism and the results were
satisfactory.

Board diversity

The Board considers that its diversity is a vital asset to the business. The
Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) for
better transparency and governance. Board appointments are based on
merit and candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the
Board for adoption, as set forth in the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company.
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The members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business, and professional expertise.
The table below sets forth an analysis of the Board’s current composition
based on the measurable objectives:

N M A A D A
H:§§r§1ﬂ1¥&r:
EEeREREETRNES  URZTIEMEBK X

BEMF - PRIV ERAMERGHEFTSER
MRERIEH A DA -

Measurable objective Category Number of Director
AEEEE 5l EEAY
Gender Male 6
M5 EeRia
Female 1
g
Age Over 60 7
Fie 605K A |
Place of residences China 3
B &
Hong Kong 4
)

Based on the foregoing, the composition and diversity of the Board
enable the management to benefit from a diverse and objective external
perspective, on issues raised before the Board.

The Board has one female Director, and the Board will endeavour to at
least maintain female representation on the Board and take opportunities
to increase the proportion of female members over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified. As of 31 December 2024, among the
5,050 employees (including senior management) of the Group, the
percentages of male employees and female employees are 34.7% and
65.3%, respectively. The Board considers that the Group’s workforce
(including senior management) is diverse in terms of gender.

The Nomination Committee was of the opinion that the Board consisted
of members with diversified gender, age, cultural and education
background, professional/business experience, skills and knowledge.
Further details for the diversity, including the gender diversity, in the
workforce during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set forth in the
2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.
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Board Meetings

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee had held four, eight, one and one meetings respectively in
2024. The attendance at the Board meetings, respective Board Committee
meetings and general meeting held in 2024 are as follows:

N X B 0 ER A
T XEE A WmE
EEEgE
EEg ERLEY- Mia@&k%i%@f%
ZEZMFH %J%ﬁ@u\ NR s —RKk—kg
Ho_TMFRITNEESLH §$@§,§\@

EEMERLBRRAGWHELENT

Meetings attended/held

HEBTERRH
Audit Remuneration = Nomination General

Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
S Exg ERERS FMEES REZEES BRRAE
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. TING Man Yi 4/4 — — — 11
TEHREE
Mr. TING Hung Yi 4/4 — 11 11 11
THEREAE
Mr. DING lJianer 4/4 — — — 11
TRR%EE
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter 4/4 — — — 11

EERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIUFHTES
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang (Retired on 31 July 2024) 2/4 4/8 11 11 0/1
BEBEE (KT _NFLA=+—HEME)
Mr. WONG Chi Keung 4/4 7/8 11 — 11
|2 SREE
Mr. LEUNG Man Kit 4/4 8/8 — 11 11
RRERE
Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera 4/4 2/8 — — 1/1
FRkKEZ L
The Board is responsible for the formulation of the overall business ZF@BEHTEEEKERLBE ERETE

strategies and objectives, the monitoring and evaluation of the operating
and financial performance, the review of the corporate governance
standard and the supervision of the management of the Group. The
management of the Group is responsible for the implementation of the
business strategies and the day-to-day operations of the Group under the
supervision of the Chief Executive Officer. The Directors have full access
to information on the Group. All senior management of the Group also
provide the Directors from time to time with information on the business
of the Group.

Training and Development

The Company places great importance on directors training and annually
holds a Board of Directors conference to reaffirm Directors’ duties and
responsibilities and to advise the Directors on various subjects including,
Listing Rules compliance, updates to the Listing Rules, rules and
regulations of the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC"),
enforcement actions taken by the SFC and Stock Exchange and how the
rules and regulations impact on the Company’s business and corporate
governance.

36

BERMBRE  RACEEAREUREEAS
BERE AEEEREETRASEET A&
EITAEENERRB R B EEE EFHREH
AEEMEER MAKEZESEERABNE
THRAEEREAERASEEBENER

iﬁﬂ'l&?ﬁlﬁ

REFEFEERESRI  UBFET-REEE
K@ EREENBBLIBE  YEZERELR
ERRMES  BEETLEHAR - EHRAEN
AR BFRBEEBERZEe ((BEg ) OR
AR AR DIA K 35 B & N B R P ERERENHUETTED - A
&E%%%ﬁ,ﬂ‘l&%ﬁ%ﬁuﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@%ﬁ%&ﬁ%%

N
| °



Corporate Governance Report

EQEBRERERAA T _NFEFR

All Directors are provided with a Directors Manual with summaries of the
directors’ duties and responsibilities as a director of a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (including connected and notifiable transactions;
disclosure of interest in securities of the Company and the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set forth in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules) and also contains
the group chart and the Articles of Association. All Directors have
participated
develop their knowledge and skills as well as to receive updates on

in continuous professional development to refresh and
developments in corporate governance practices. This is to ensure their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

A record of the Director's participation in the continuous professional
development program is kept with the Company Secretary.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills by attending training and by reading materials
in relation to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director
and the latest developments in the relevant rules and regulations.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2024 and they
participated
development:

in the following types of continuous professional
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Type of continuous
professional development

BESERRER

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. TING Man Yi THEREEE (0, (m
Mr. TING Hung Yi THER A 0,
Mr. DING Jianer TREREA (1, i
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter REB LA 0,
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang (Retired on 31 July 2024) BEMELEE (RZF-_MFLA=1+—H

RAE) (n,
Mr. WONG Chi Keung HRETAE (1, (m
Mr. LEUNG Man Kit RRESTE (1, (m
Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera Akt (11, (i

(): Attending internal training sessions.

(INy: Attending seminars.

(ny: Reading materials in relation to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director
and the latest developments in the relevant rules and regulations.
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Directors’ and officers’ liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities.
The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company adopted the Model Code as set forth in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for Directors in their dealings in
the Company’s securities. Formal written notices are sent to the Directors
prior to the commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately
preceding the publication of the interim results announcement and 60
days immediately preceding the publication of the annual results
announcement, as a reminder that Directors may not deal in the
securities of the Company during those periods up to and including the
date of publication of results. Having made specific enquiry with all the
Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set forth in the Model Code during the year ended

31 December 2024.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate
and are held by Mr. TING Man Yi and Mr. TING Hung Yi, respectively,
who are siblings. The Chairman is responsible for the overall strategic
planning of the Group, overseeing the manufacturing business of the
Group in Hangzhou and the planning and implementation of major new
investments and projects of the Group. The Chairman will ensure that the
Group maintains good measures and effective corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the business of the Group and the
strategic development of the Group’s OEM and retail business. With the
assistance of other members of the Board and other senior management,
the Chief Executive Officer closely monitors the operating and financial
results of the Group, identifies weakness of the operation and takes all
necessary and appropriate remedial steps.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and (2) and rules 3.10A of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, one independent non-executive
Director of which has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related finance management expertise and the independent
non-executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board. The
appointment of two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. WONG Chi
Keung and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit, have been renewed for a term of three
years commenced from 18 November 2023, and Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera
has been appointed for a terms of three year commenced from 1 January
2023. All of them have satisfied the independence criteria, and each of
them has made such confirmation on independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors have met the independence guidelines set forth in

rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Committees
As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has
established the following committees whose authority, functions,

compositions and duties are set forth below:

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board has three members, namely
Mr. TING Hung Yi, Mr. WONG Chi Keung and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit. Mr.
CHENG Chi Pang was ceased as the member of the Remuneration
Committee following his retirement. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. WONG Chi Keung. The Remuneration Committee is
established primarily for the purpose of ensuring that we can recruit,
retain and motivate high quality personnel who are essential to the
success of the Group. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing the terms of remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management and determining the award of bonuses
and reviewing and approving matters related to share scheme. Its terms
of reference are available on request, and are also posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee was established on 18 November 2005.

The Company has adopted the model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for formulating and recommending remuneration policy to the Board and
reviewing and making recommendations on compensation-related issues.
The fees for Directors are subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the general meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association.
The Remuneration Committee consults with Chairman on its proposals
and recommendations if necessary, and also has access to independent
professional advice if necessary. The Remuneration Committee is also
provided with sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in 2024 in relation to (i)
annual review and make recommendations to the Board for the directors’
fees and the emoluments of the executive Directors and remuneration
package of senior management and (i) make recommendations to the
Board for the adjustment to the directors’ fee for the year ending 31
December 2024. All of the members of the Remuneration Committee
attended the meeting.
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The remuneration package for the executive Directors and senior
management is made up of two parts, namely a fixed component and a
variable incentive. The fixed component comprises mainly salary,
retirement benefit scheme contributions and other allowances which are
determined by reference to the remuneration benchmark in similar
industry or industry with similar market capitalization and prevailing
market conditions. The variable incentive is bonus, which is
performance-based and determined by the Board and the Group based on

the Group’s and individual work performance.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than Directors) by band
for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set forth below:

In the band of
FEN A8 Bl

HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000
1,000,001 7L £2,000,000/5 7T
Below HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 T AT~
Details of the Directors’ remuneration is set forth in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Board consists of Mr. TING Hung Vi,
Mr. WONG Chi Keung and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit. Mr. CHENG Chi Pang
was ceased as the member of the Nomination Committee following his
LEUNG
Man Kit. The Nomination Committee is established primarily for the

retirement. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr.

purpose of regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on nominations and
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The
Nomination Committee selects and recommends appropriate candidates,
based on his or her prior experience and qualifications, to the Board on
the appointment of Directors of the Group. The Nomination Committee
has recommended to the Board the Directors who should retire and make
themselves available for election pursuant to the Articles of Association,
assessed the independence of all independent non-executive Directors. Its
terms of reference are available on request and are also posted on the
website of the Company. The Nomination Committee was established on
18 November 2005. One Nomination Committee meeting, in relation to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and the
nomination procedures, was held in 2024. All of the members of the
Nomination Committee attended the meeting.
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The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria as
set forth
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

in the director nomination policy that are necessary to

Procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed candidate for
election as a director are stated in “Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director of the Company” and posted

on the website of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. WONG Chi Keung, Mr. LEUNG Man Kit and Ms.
LI Yuet Mui, Xera. Mr. CHENG Chi Pang was ceased as the member of
the Audit Committee following his retirement. Mr. WONG Chi Keung is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the
Board to review the financial reporting process, evaluate the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems, and corporate
governance of the Group and oversee the auditing processes. The
authority, role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set forth in
written terms of reference which are available on request and are also
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Audit Committee was established on 18 November 2005. The Company
has been in full compliance with requirements of rule 3.21 in the Listing
Rules throughout the year. Eight Audit Committee meetings were held,
together with senior management and the external auditor in 2024. The
attendance at the Audit Committee meetings held in 2024 are as
follows:

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang (Retired on 31 July 2024)
BEMWEERZZE_MFEL A=+ —HEME)
Mr. WONG Chi Keung

wmZREE

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit
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During 2024, the Audit Committee reviewed the recent updates and
development of accounting and financial reporting standards and assessed
their potential impact on the Group, overseeing the relationship with the
Company’s external auditor (including making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor), considered the external auditor’'s proposed audit fees; discussed
with the external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit;
particularly judgemental areas, before submission to the Board; reviewed

reviewed the interim and annual financial statements,
the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the CG Code, reviewed
the Group’s financial control, internal control and risk management
systems and discussed with the external auditor on the Group's financial
reporting function, in particular on the adequacy of resources of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, qualifications and
experience of our staff and their training program, conducted an annual
review of non-exempt continuing connected transactions of the Group.
The Audit Committee recommended the Board to adopt the interim and

annual report for 2024.

The Audit Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The remuneration of the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, for audit
services rendered during the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$1.65
million.

Accountability and Audit
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and
audited by external auditor, BDO Limited.

Director’s Responsibilities for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group with a
view to ensure that such consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, selecting suitable
accounting policies, applying the selected accounting policies consistently,
and making prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group and of
its results and cash flows in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is
set forth in the independent auditor’'s report on pages 69 to 78 in this
annual report.
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Internal Control

The Board and the management of the Group have the overall
responsibility of maintaining a sound and effective internal control system
of the Group so as to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the
operations of the Group in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial reporting
The Board
assesses the effectiveness of the internal control function of the Group

and complying with the applicable laws and regulations.

based on the review of the Audit Committee as well as the review by the
management teams of the Group.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate determination on the
adequacy of
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the Board has, through the Audit Committee of the
Board with the assistance of the management, conducted reviews of the

internal controls over financial reporting and the

effectiveness of these internal control systems, including without limitation

to financial control, operations control, compliance control and risk

management functions, on a regular basis. For the year ended
31 December 2024, based on the assessment made by the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the internal audit team, the
Board
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the

Group.

is satisfied that there are ongoing procedures in place for

Company Secretary

Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond, the Company Secretary of the Company,
has confirmed the completion of relevant professional training of not less
than 15 hours pursuant to the rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders and

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies with
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have an
equal opportunity to receive and obtain information provided by the
Company. The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with
communication policy to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are

shareholders. The Company has in place a shareholders’
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
The Board

shareholders’ communication policy and the results were satisfactory.

reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for exchange of
views and direct communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior management of the
Company and where applicable, the independent non-executive Directors,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors. Poll voting
was adopted for all decisions to be made at all general meetings. Details
of the poll voting procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
which call for a general meeting and are explained during the

proceedings of the meeting.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with
in an

its shareholders. Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with

informative and timely manner. We maintain a website
www.chinating.com.hk to keep our shareholders and the general public
informed on our latest corporate news, interim and annual results
announcements, financial reports and other public announcements. We
always welcome shareholders’ views and input. Shareholders may send
their enquiries in writing to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:
Address: The Company Secretary

China Ting Group Holdings Limited
27/F, King Palace Plaza

55 King Yip Street Kwun Tong
Hong Kong

Shareholders’ right to convene a
shareholders’ meeting and putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholder(s) of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, on a
one vote per share basis, shall at all time have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene a
physical meeting at only one location which will be the principal meeting
place, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Constitutional Documents

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There
was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of the
Company by way of cash or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits, and at the
same time, to ensure that the Company is to retain adequate reserves for
future growth.

Any proposed distribution of final dividends shall be formulated by the
Board and will be subject to the shareholders’ approval. A decision to
declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of any
dividends, will depend on a number of factors, including the results of
operations, cash flows, financial conditions, operating and capital
expenditure requirements, distributable profits and other applicable laws
and regulations and other factors that the Board may consider important
and appropriate.
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Project Review

Significance and important statement

According to the Corporate Risk Management and Internal
Control Regulation Rules and relevant guidance and other
internal control regulation requirements (hereafter referred as
the “Corporate Internal Control Standard System”),
combining with the internal control policy and appraisal
measures of China Ting Group Holdings Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”), on the basis of regular
supervision and special supervision on internal control, we
have conducted an investigation on the risk management
and internal control for the period from 1 January 2024 to
31 December 2024.

It is the responsibility of the Board of the Company to
establish, complete and implement effectively the internal
control and appraise its effectiveness and truly disclose the
internal control appraisal report in accordance with the
Corporate Internal Control Standard System. The Board of
Supervisors conducts the supervision in terms of establishing
and implementing internal control by the Board. The
executives of the Group and general managers of companies
are responsible for the organization of daily operation of the
corporate internal control. The Board, Board of Supervisors,
directors, supervisors and senior managements assure that
there is no false, misleading statement or significant
omission in the report, and assume several and joint legal
liability on the truthfulness, correctness and completeness of
the report.

The corporate internal control is conducted to properly
assure the legal compliance of operation and management,
assets safety, truthfulness and completeness of financial
reports and relevant information, to improve the operation
efficiency and effectiveness and accelerate to realize our
development strategy. Due to the inherent restriction of
internal control, it only provides reasonable assurance for
above purposes. In addition, as any change of circumstance
may cause improper risk appraisal and internal control or low
compliance degree on the control policy and procedure, thus
to predict future effectiveness of the internal control based
on internal control appraisal may bring risk to some extent.
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Risk Identification and Risk Analysis

Scope of internal control appraisal

In accordance with enterprise development condition and
policy and in 2024,
businesses and items involved in this appraisal comprise

new trend of social regulation
development strategy, human resource, social responsibility,
capital
management, business event, research and development,

enterprise culture, event, procurement, assets
construction, guarantee business, outsourcing business,

financial management, budget management, contract
management, internal information transmission, information
system, environmental factors and emergency management;
and high risk areas with attention mainly include business
management risk, financial management risk, labor
management risk, production management risk, inventory

risk, sale risk and major decision legal risk.

Risk level identification

The Company leverages on risk matrix method to identify
risk level by categories. Through risk matrix, loss caused by
risk event is categorized to five levels, and the possibility of
risk event is also correspondingly categorized to six levels.
With loss level in line of table and possibility level in row of
table, to assign figures of 6—1 score according to the degree
from high to low, and then categorize risk level basing on
figures calculated by multiplying such corresponding figures
of intersection point. Following risk matrix table shows: 1-2
score represents low risk, 3—8 score represents general risk,
9-16 score represents moderate risk, 18-25 score represents
significant risk, 30—-36 score represents especially serious risk.
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iii.  Significant risk categories and summary
According to feedback on our internal control questionnaires
and by ways of interviewing with our president group,
monitoring risk indexes and others, the following seven risks
were identified as significant risks of the Group during the
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period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, for FHRARRE - FE2HRAB R ERE
which we need to adopt efficient risk management and EEFE -
control measures.

Risk Risk description Assignment

[E B% & 7B [ B 4 4 B {E

Major power competition With the rise of China’s economy, geopolitical competition among major 30

risks

RNEBZERR

powers has become increasingly intense. In order to maintain hegemonic
positions, western countries, such as Europe and America, are actively
promoting manufacturing reshoring and “de-Chinaization” of industrial
chains, leading to declining orders and customer attrition for China Ting
Group in European and American markets, consequently affecting the
Company’s market share and sales revenue. Meanwhile, orders continue
shifting to Southeast Asian countries, Mexico and other regions, causing
China Ting Group’s order diversion risks to keep escalating, which has not
only increased the Company’s operational costs but also exacerbated its
financial burden.

FEERBABIEE  KEENEATEYI RESHTERBERHE
MR TR B RERRIRMESRE [ AT B  SHEHEERERME
TISNETERD - BEFRE  EMPELENTHHREMHEWA - Hitk
A AIERFERRBETER RAEFZHREE  ZEREEEGNTE
BRERETEETT  MEENT EENELRA DMETHHEE -

Especially serious risk

Geopolitical risks

4% BUR A B

The ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict and turbulent Middle East situation
continue to escalate geopolitical risks, further impacting raw material
prices and logistics costs. With the U.S. election outcome becoming clear,
trade protectionism represented by the Trump administration has gained
momentum, with major economies including Europe and America
frequently implementing export restrictions and erecting tariff barriers,
which have increased export costs, diminished product competitiveness,
and exposed the Company to heightened trade risks and uncertainties.
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Risk Risk description Assignment
[ B £ 7 [ B #4 E
Supply chain management  The newly launched production base in Cambodia has made China Ting's 20

risks supply chain management more complex, involving multiple aspects such Significant risk

as cross-border procurement, production coordination, and logistics
transportation. The different laws and regulations, cultural differences, and
infrastructure conditions in different countries may all affect the stability
and efficiency of the supply chain. Meanwhile, insufficient talent reserves
may lead to inefficient management, outdated production technology, and
weak market expansion, thereby increasing risks related to quality, delivery
delays, compensation claims, and other issues.
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Environmental compliance As the dual-carbon initiative continues to advance comprehensively, the 20

risks environmental compliance pressure on the Company’s textile printing and Significant risk
dyeing segment continues to escalate. To meet increasingly stringent
environmental standards, the Company may face rising costs in
environmental protection equipment and production process upgrades,
thereby compressing profit margins. Furthermore, if the Company fails to
effectively control pollutant emissions during production, it will face
growing risks of environmental penalties and mandatory production
suspensions for rectification.
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Risk Risk description Assignment
[ B 5 7B | B $5 t B8
Domestic consumption The sluggish domestic economic recovery and shifting consumer spending 20

downgrading risks

attitudes have led to a noticeable trend of consumption downgrading in
the apparel market. As a result, the Company’'s retail sales in the
domestic market may face setbacks, including product stagnation,
inventory buildup, and increased capital occupation and operational costs,
posing challenges to its profitability.

Significant risk

B A1 H & B AR S B BAKLEERZ 1 HEEHEESEE  SRRETSHEERRBEH 20
B ARTEEBERATSNEESRINEE  HEEMFNE  BEFE E-DNER
FEERRE  ENEENESNATIEZKAR B ENBFIGE ST IRE -

Industrial park leasing risks  In the post-pandemic era, the domestic economic downturn has led to 18

sluggish leasing demand in the industrial park, making it difficult to
sustain high rental prices and see a decline in long-term lease clients as
well as slowing cash collection, thereby impacting China Ting's cash flow
and profitability.

Significant risk

HEAERR BREBHK BREETNT SRERESX(CEEZE  HaBBEIN 18
HRBEAKRF Eﬁﬂ%ﬁ%’ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ‘ FEROFRE  EMTEESN EDNERA
BERMAFES -

Exchange rate fluctuation Exchange rate fluctuations may have a significant impact on the financial 18

risks

BEE =5 B L Bz

condition of China Ting Group. On one hand, when foreign currencies
depreciate against the RMB, the Company’s revenue denominated in
foreign currencies will decrease after translating into RMB, directly
weakening its profitability. On the other hand, if the RMB depreciates,
the Company’s procurement costs for raw materials denominated in
foreign currencies will increase, further compressing export profit margins.
Moreover, due to the lengthy foreign exchange settlement cycle, the
Company may face greater foreign exchange loss risks during periods of
exchange rate fluctuations, resulting in an increase in financial
uncertainty.
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Risk Management and Improvement
Report

Risk management summary

The Group’s business and market are both at risk. Facing
constant change of market, we need to continuously identify
relevant risks, so as to decrease, transfer,
prevent or master risks. Therefore, we need to adopt

and control

scientific measures to actively carry out comprehensive and
in-depth analysis, and implement an efficient structure of
corporate risk management. In respect of strategy, the
Group focuses on identifying and managing significant risks
that may affect the Group, its business and functions, so as
to realize the Group’s strategy and business target. In
seeking growth opportunities, the Group will aim at
optimizing risk and return decision mechanism and
establishing strong and independent approval procedures. In
respect of operation, the Group aims at being able to
identify, analyze and appraise management harm and risk to
provide safe, healthy, effective and environmental friendly
working condition for employees; to ensure public safety and
health and at the same time minimize the impact on the
environment.

Significant risk indexes supervision and control

The Company has set up supervision indexes for each risk
identified and conducts close supervision for the indexes. A
be highly likely to occur when corresponding
indexes go beyond warning scope. In order to prevent risk or
try to decrease the probability of risk as much as possible,
relevant risk control

risk  will

the Company has pre-formulated
measures against each risk identified, so as to minimize the
probability of the risk occurred.

In terms of seven risks identified in this internal control
survey of the Group, we suggest following risk supervision
indexes and actively cope with such risks, expecting to
realize the basic objective of controlling risks, avoiding risks
or minimizing damage brought by such risks.
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Risk
[ B & 7B

Risk supervision index

B BRI

TREREIE RN GRS

Risk control measures

[ B A e

Major power competition risks

1.

Real-time development in
regional conflicts (e.g.,
Russia-Ukraine war,
Israel-Palestine conflict)

Expand overseas customer distribution to avoid over-
reliance on orders from the U.S. market;

Establish a cross-border e-commerce segment to reach
American customers through new retail models like

2. Actions and statements online transactions;
by major powers and key 3. Step up the construction of overseas production bases
international to mitigate tariff impacts;
organizations 4. Increase investment in product research and
3. China’s position and development to enhance product indispensability and
diplomatic activities bargaining power.
PG RN 1. B BUEFERIY 1. HREIEFEFPOGEHE  BEREREZBETISE
ENERERE 2. FHEBERSETEBRGE BRARIRSFHTEENSE
2. BARELEZEBRASN EEEER
TEIFNR AR 3. MAKBIMNEEEMEERIE  BEBHZE:
3. RIS RFEINRERE 4. MAERMERA - ESERNATERNE - REERS -
Geopolitical risks 1. Real-time development in 1. Identify new business opportunities based on the
regional conflicts (e.g., development of conflict situations;
Russia-Ukraine war, 2. Procure export credit insurance in full, particularly for
Israel-Palestine conflict) orders involving regions and countries significantly
2. Actions and statements affected by warfare;
by major powers and key 3. Monitor payment settlement risks arising from
international international sanctions;
organizations 4. Expand orders from domestic demand to balance
3. China’s position and international trade risks.
diplomatic activities
b B BUA B 1. B BUEFZERAY 1. RERFRDER BRIOBEES
EH B ERE 2. ZEBELOGEHRRE FIEBEZERANERM
2. KRB K EZFF A @& 1ERT &
G RES 3. BUIBBRHEGRHEREERRE
3. RIS 5 R EISNR EDRE 4. BANBEKTE  FTHEKREZRR -

52



Corporate Risk Management and Internal Control Report

EQEBRERERAA T _NFEFR

1 5 L b B TR B N AP il R

Risk Risk supervision index Risk control measures
[ B £ 7 [ By B 4R 45 AR [ By R e
Supply chain management 1. Monitor the political and 1. Continuously optimize and localize the management
risks economic developments team at the Cambodia base;
in Cambodia in real time 2. Consistently enhance production efficiency and quality
2. Track international at the Cambodia production base;
logistics policies and costs 3. Continue to develop local collaborative resources in
with live updates Cambodia;
3. Maintain real-time 4. Further improve the synergies between the teams in
surveillance on tariff China and Cambodia;
policies of key trading 5. Further refine the digital remote management system.
partner nations
4. Implement live

monitoring of the
operations of overseas
production bases

1 FE 5 1R [EL PR 1. ERERRIFEBUAEE 1. SR 2R EL I B IR [ B T B e B MR b
HEAER 2. SRS AL AR A UK e TR A
2. BT RERRERER 3. SRUAF SR 7 3 197 () & IR 0 T B A 3
EH 4. AR R I [ B — IR m 1 A TR
3. EREITZZESHNHER 5. - EEHFIEREEER -
RAT R
4. B BB SN R TR
mn
Environmental compliance 1. Carbon emissions report 1. Continuously monitor energy consumption statements
risks 2. Energy consumption to reduce energy wastage caused by leaks, spills and
monitoring drops, etc,;
3. Government policy and 2. Install smart energy meters and a digital energy
regulation updates management system to detect abnormal consumption
in real time;

3. Proactively adopt new energy-saving and
environmentally friendly technologies to reduce
pollutant emissions.

IR G R E R 1. ERHERUERES 1. FrESERRRE  RARRERF EREELENEE
R AR FRE
BURBEER & 2. TEREE(ERTER  MBTREREERS  BF

BRERRE
3. TEBRRMERLRRINEM - RIS R -

53



Corporate Risk Management and Internal Control Report

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

1 5 L b B 1R B N AR Il SR

Risk Risk supervision index Risk control measures
[ B 5 7B [ R B 1 fE AR | B i 4 4 i

Domestic consumption
downgrading risks

BAE &R RRR

Domestic macroeconomic 1.

data
Comparative analysis of

competing brands’ sales 2.

data

Real-time analysis of 3.

existing brand marketing
data

Dynamic monitoring of 4.

product inventory data

B AR EESE 1,

B MR HE SRS

i 2.
REMBEHBEERD 3

i

EmEFEEHREE 4.

Reduce initial order quantities for new products, improve
reorder efficiency, and decrease the occupation of cash
flow by inventories;

Actively optimize inventory clearance to enhance cash
turnover rate;

Proactively adjust product development strategies,
pricing strategies, and sales channel strategies to adapt
to market demands under the new trend;

Actively explore breakthroughs in new retail models.

RO REETESE  BRABENRE  RIOEFHR
ERMMERA

BEEAMCEFER  EeRLREX

MG AREMMARRE  TERE HERER®ES
AB TS TR mISE K
BESRHTERAMNREA

Industrial park leasing risks

ERBERR

Overall rental market 1.

conditions of surrounding
industrial parks
Leasing-out rate and unit

rental price of China Ting 2.

Industrial Park
Monitoring and analysis

of the operating 3.

conditions of settled
enterprises

Changes in the
government policies for
investment promotion
and industrial park
support

FEEREEEETIST 1.

;‘E
B

EREXREEAEER 2.

HEEE

ABEELERERR 3.

DT
BUSHE 5 & REXER
RIEBERE

Establish a professional industrial park service team and
improve the governance level of the industrial park to
enhance the added value and competitiveness of the
industrial park;

Participate in the supporting policies of local government
for specialized industrial parks to establish a distinctive
industry-based investment attraction model;

Focus unwaveringly on attracting high-caliber enterprises
and maintain a long-term development philosophy for
the industrial park.

BRERZEXCREES  RERRGEKT - KMk
FHEE M EM RS
BEWIBNHEXEXEREFEE - WREXRR
MEFeER

BESEACEASTHE  BREATZEARERR
% o
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Risk Risk supervision index Risk control measures
[ B £ 7 [E\ B B 1 1S AR [ B B 1 1
Exchange rate fluctuation risks 1. Real-time international 1. Utilize financial hedging instruments to lock in exchange
currency exchange rate rates when necessary;
quotations 2. Expand business coverage in more countries to mitigate
2. Forward exchange rate single-currency exchange rate risks;
expectations 3. Increase the proportion of businesses denominated or
settled in RMB.
T 5087 B @l B 1. REKEREREE 1. EVEREAERFRETESR
2. REERERESR 2. BEREBEG - 5B E — MR E X E R
3. MARANRBEBIARBEEEB L -
iii. Continuous improvement measures 3~ BESUERZE
Internal Control and Risk Management Committee and the NERkEREEZEENEZEHE
Board will finalize and issue the risk management manual, RREETE R B MR EE T - W —
and further enhance measures to cope with risks. Internal Tt R EEEE - N RERE
Control and Risk Management Committee promotes the risk BZESRERMRBRENRRE
management in other business process, and gradually B RRER SRS ENIRFETE
manage such risks in stages in order from high to low. FNABERPIT - RRATAHRER
Person in charge of relevant risk constantly supervises the BERITNE BRI R R B E R
effectiveness of measures on risk warning indexes and risks IETRERE - M2 HER
identified, so as to control risks in a reasonable and timely BEMMEMNETE - BYEREET
way. Regular risk management report mechanism is MmEHs  THRESFENEKSE
established to regularly report risk management to the Board BEERRBRER SEEFERH
and Audit Committee. The Board of the Group is fully liable BEMAFTER RO NI EE RER
for maintaining complete and effective internal supervision BERF  TEMERREERNARE
and risk management procedures, and will also include the R XBRE Bk RER
risk management in strategy development, business plan, ERERE AN A HEE T
capital allocation, investment decision on internal supervision
and daily operation.
IV. Conclusion Y~ &R

Conclusion Based on the results of the internal control review for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and the assessment of the
Audit Committee thereon, no significant deficiency in risk
management and internal controls systems are noted. The Board
therefore is satisfied that appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems have been maintained
for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2024.

Principal Business Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal business activities of the subsidiaries of the
10 to the consolidated financial

Company are set forth in note

statements.

The Group's principal business activities during the financial year ended
31 December 2024 were garment manufacturing for export, retailing
branded fashion apparel and property investment in Mainland China.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year ended
31 December 2024 by business and geographical segments is set forth in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

Details of the activities during the year as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including fair review of the Group’s
business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, are set forth in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 10 to 13, “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to
24 and “Corporate Risk Management and Internal Control Report” on
pages 46 to 55 of this annual report.

Environmental policies of the Group is to maintaining the highest
environmental standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business, with compliance of all relevant laws and regulations having
significant impact on the Group in relation to its business including health
and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2024 are set forth in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The Group’s consolidated ended

31 December 2024 are set forth in the consolidated statement of

results for the financial year
comprehensive income on pages 81 and 82 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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Subsequent Event
There was no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group after
31 December 2024 and up to date of this annual report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set forth on pages 195 and 196 of this
annual report.

Borrowings
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set forth in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Scheme

No new shares were issued during the year. Details of shares issued by
the Company are set forth in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No share scheme had been adopted by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purpose are set
forth on note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the Group's investment properties are set forth on pages 197 to 199
of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As of 31 December 2024, the Company's reserves available for
distributions amounted to HK$1,338.2 million comprising share premium,
contributed surplus and retained earnings.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the financial year ended 31 December 2024, sales made to the
Group's five customers are less than 30.0% of the total sales. The Group
purchased less than 30.0% of its goods and services from its five largest
suppliers.

At no time during the year the Directors, their close associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) have any beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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Relationship with Customers, Suppliers and

Employees

The Group values relationships with, and have been maintaining good
relationships with its customers, raw material and garment manufacturing
suppliers and the employees of the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2024, there were no material dispute between the Group
and its customers, suppliers and employees.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Company has always been closely communicating with its
stakeholders, actively responding to their needs, and taking those into
consideration during corporate strategy formulation and decision making
process. The Company sees sustainable development as the key for a
corporation to succeed and therefore, it aims to seek a win-win situation
for the Group, society and environment by balancing between the
creation of economic value and the impact on the environment.

The Group strictly complies with various national environmental protection
laws and regulations. It has implemented a series of measures to alleviate
environmental impacts of weaving, dyeing and garment manufacturing.
The Group has established rules for pollutant control and waste disposal,
including airborne dust and sewage during the process of dyeing and
manufacturing; electricity consumption has been reduced by improving the
Group's facilities and technologies, thereby controlling greenhouse gas
emission; the Group supports green operations and encourages its
employees to adopt environmentally friendly working habit. For further
information about the Company’s environmental performance during the
year, please refer to the Company’'s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report issued by the Company on the same date of this
annual report.
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Compliance with laws and Regulations

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under various
laws. These include, among others, the Work Safety Law of the PRC*
("FREARKME L 2 EEL"), Labour Law of the PRC* ("HZE AR
MEI&EN% "), Environmental Protection Law of the PRC* (" AR #E AR HEFN
IR H R L"), Labour Contract Law of the PRC* (“FRZE A R HAME 4
)& [FJA"), Regulations of the PRC on Prohibiting the Use of Child
Labour* (“Z= |H{FEFE THIETE "), Fire Protection Law of the PRC* ("R
#E=AREMBEEM L"), Law of the PRC on Wholly Foreign-Owned
Enterprise* ("H#E ARLMBEIINE R ZIL") and Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax* ("FEARXMBEGCEMESREZ") and the
applicable regulations, guidelines and policies issued or promulgated
under or in connection with these statutes. In addition, the Listing Rules
also apply to the Company. The Company seeks to ensure compliance
with these requirements through various measures such as internal
controls, trainings and oversight of various business units at different
levels of the Group. The Group highly values the importance of ensuring
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
by the Group that have significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group.

Directors
The Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TING Man Yi (Chairman)

Mr. TING Hung Yi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. DING lJianer

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang (Retired on 31 July 2024)
Mr. WONG Chi Keung

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit

Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera

* The English name is the translation for identification purpose only.
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In accordance with article 83 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter, Mr. LEUNG Man Kit and Mr. WONG Chi
Keung shall retire from office by the rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company received from each of Mr. WONG Chi Keung, Mr. LEUNG
Man Kit and Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera a confirmation of their independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all
of them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set forth on pages 25 to 30 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The annual salary and bonus of each of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung
Yi, Mr. DING lJianer and Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$3.0 million, HK$3.0 million,
HK$2.1 million, and HK$1.6 million, respectively. The annual salary and
bonus of each executive Director shall be recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and decided by the Board and subject to the
annual review by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, provided
that any increment shall not be more than 15% of the annual salary
received by each executive Director for the immediate preceding year.

Each of the executive Director is also entitled to a management bonus,
the amount of which is determined with reference to the audited
consolidated net profits of the Group after taxation and minority interests
but before extraordinary items (the “Net Profits”) as the Board may, in its
absolute discretion, approve, provided that the aggregate amount of the
management bonus payable to all executive Directors in respect of any
financial year shall not exceed 4% of the Net Profits for the relevant
financial year.
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Each of Mr. CHENG Chi Pang, Mr. WONG Chi Keung and Mr. LEUNG
Man Kit has signed a letter of appointment dated 18 November 2023
and Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera has signed a letter of appointment dated 1
January 2023 with the Company under which each of them has agreed
to act as an independent non-executive Director for a term of three years,
commenced from 18 November 2023 and 1 January 2023, respectively,
unless terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions specified
therein. The annual director’s fee of Mr. WONG Chi Keung, Mr. CHENG
Chi Pang, Mr. LEUNG Man Kit and Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera for the year
ended 31 December 2024 is HK$288,000. HK$112,000, HK$192,000 and
HK$168,000, respectively.
Save as mentioned above, none of the independent non-executive
Directors is expected to receive any other remuneration for holding their
office as an independent non-executive Director. Save as disclosed above,
there is no service contract, which is not determinable by the Company or
its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), entered into with any of the executive
Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company’s

business

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Company'’s business to which the Company was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2023: Nil).

Emolument Policy of the Group
The Company'’s policies concerning remuneration of the Directors are as
follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and decided by the Board on the basis of the relevant
executive Director's experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group;

(ii) non-cash benefits may be provided to the executive Directors under
their remuneration package; and
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(iii)  the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board with
the endorsement of the Remuneration Committee of the Board,
options pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.

The emolument policy of the Group is aimed at attracting, retaining and
motivating talented individuals. The principle is to have performance
based remuneration which reflects market standards. The employee’s
remuneration packages are generally determined based on their job
nature and position with reference to market standards. Employees also
receive certain welfare benefits. The Group’s emolument policy will be
adjusted depending on a number of factors, including changes to the
market practice and stages of the Group’s business development, so as to
achieve the Group's operational targets.

Interests and/or Short Positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

Company and its Associated Corporations
As of 31
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying

December 2024, the interests and short positions of the

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions); (b) entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code, were as follows:

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company

Number of shares
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WEVE TRAME - AEENBS IR SRR
SENESH RAREEBEROEERES AR EE
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(a) RAELQTFRGHES

Approximate percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity of the Company interest in the Company*
EEpE &1 ARAROHE EEAREEMOT DL
(Note 1)
(MF3E1)
Mr. TING Man Yi Interest in a controlled corporation  1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
THEHREE REGEEE R (Note 2)
(MHsE2)
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Number of shares Approximate percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity of the Company interest in the Company*
EEHE 51 AARRGHE ERAT RPN B DL
(Note 1)
(PFF5ET)
Mr. TING Hung Yi Interest in a controlled corporation  1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
THEREA REGEE R (Note 3)
(FF5E3)
Mr. DING Jianer Interest in a controlled corporation  1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
TEREA REGEE R (Note 4)
(PfF5E4)
Mr. WONG Chi Keung Beneficially owner 1,000,000 (L) 0.05%
BHZREAE BEmERA
Ms. LI Yuet Mui, Xera Beneficially owner 1,848,000 (L) 0.08%

FRAKLL BmAA
# The approximate percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued

Notes:

share capital of the Company as of 31 December 2024.

The letter “L” stands for the Director’s long position in the shares.

Longerview Investments Limited (“Longerview”) is owned as to 41.5% by
Firmsuccess Limited (“Firmsuccess”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. TING Man Yi.
Longerview is a controlled corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of
Mr. TING Man Yi. As such, under the SFO, Mr. TING Man Yi is deemed to be
interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

Longerview is owned as to 40.5% by In Holdings Limited (“In Holdings”) which
is wholly-owned by Mr. TING Hung Yi. Longerview is a controlled corporation
(within the meaning of the SFO) of Mr. TING Hung Yi. As such, under the SFO,
Mr. TING Hung Yi is deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held
by Longerview.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 18 November 2005 and entered into
between Mr. TING Man Yi, Firmsuccess, Mr. TING Hung Yi, In Holdings,
Mr. DING Jianer, Willport Investments Limited (“Willport”) and Longerview
(collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of the Controlling Shareholders
(other than Longerview) has agreed to enter into pre-emptive arrangements in
respect of their shareholding in Longerview. For the purpose of Part XV of the
SFO, each of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING lJianer is
therefore deemed to have effective voting power in respect of the
1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview. As such, under the SFO, Mr. DING
Jianer is also deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by
Longerview.
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Firmsuccess Limited ([Firmsuccess)) # A
Longerview Investments Limited ([Longerview])
#)41.5% @ 1M ] 57 5 £ RI2 A A Firmsuccess ©
Longerview & T 8 52 56 4 0 42 A @ (R85 &
BEGOIMESE) - AUt - BIEEF RS ED
THREEWBFEREBLongerviewts A 1
1,490,000,000 % % £ #) # 25
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& 12 B8 B 3 (Longerview B 4M) B B & 3k 1 F R
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= % i& Yo
= TN &=
(b) Interests in the shares of associated corporations (b) REBEERGOPIES
Name of Number of shares Approximate percentage
associated of the associated of interest in the
Name of Directors corporation Nature of interest corporation associated corporation
LEBLEES
= HEEE S8 EHEME HEZEROEE BRBED
Mr. TING Man Yi Firmsuccess Personal interest 1 100%
THREEAE (PN 3
Longerview Corporate interest 415 (Note 1) 41.5%
=B s (F5E1)
Mr. TING Hung Yi In Holdings Personal interest 1 100%
THER A (PN 3
Longerview Corporate interest 405 (Note 2) 40.5%
=B s (F5E2)
Mr. DING lJianer Willport Personal interest 1 100%
TEREAE (PN 3
Longerview Corporate interest 180 (Note 3) 18.0%
=B s (Pf3E3)
Notes: P -
1 The 415 shares in Longerview are held by Firmsuccess, which is wholly-owned by 1 Firmsuccess$ A Longerview 141508 & 15 + T 857
Mr. TING Man Yi. %t 4 Al 2 & # B Firmsuccess °
2 The 405 shares in Longerview are held by In Holdings, which is wholly-owned by 2 In Holdings#¥ A Longerview #1405 i A% 15 + T 1R
Mr. TING Hung Yi. SR Z2E YA In Holdings °
3 The 180 shares in Longerview are held by Willport, which is wholly-owned by 3 Willport#§ % Longerview £ 180% iR 17 + T & 7 5&

Mr. DING Jianer.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, to the knowledge of
the Company, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company and any of their associates had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which was required to be (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 or Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions); (b) entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or FERRRAQTRG RIEER
Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying @ H#EENEER HAE

Shares of the Company

As of 31 December 2024, the following persons (other than Director or #ZEZZTZ_MF+=-_A=+—H ' TH AL (WL3}E
chief executive of the Company) had, or where deemed to have interests EEHARAFZFHTHAER) RARQ T RMDSAEEHE
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company PP HEEKWRIERERIBEEFF LB EENE
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of — +HEHE2 L3N FARE FTAARNESESAR -
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the  SIRIEZE % M E 4P E33615L BN AR RAR
register required to be kept by the Company under to section 336 of the EXELMAMERIABELT ¢

SFO, were as follows:

Name of substantial Number of shares Approximate percentage of
shareholders Capacity of the Company interest in the Company*
TERRER 54 ARARGOEHE HEAREEMOBT DL
(Note 1)
(FF3E1)
Longerview Beneficial owner 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
EmEAA (Note 2)
(FftaE2)
Firmsuccess Interest in a controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
REGAE R (Note 2)
(FftaE2)
In Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation  1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
REGAE R (Note 3)
(FH5E3)
Willport Interest in a controlled corporation  1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
ZEHEE R (Note 4)
(Fft3xa)
# The approximate percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share capital # ERRRARGEROB DL DRAATNBE_T_NF+=
of the Company as of 31 December 2024. A=+—BMBEBITRAH -
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Notes:

1 The letter “L" stands for the substantial shareholders’ long position in the shares.

2 Longerview is owned as to 41.5% by Firmsuccess. As such, Longerview is a controlled
corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of Firmsuccess. Firmsuccess is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

3 Longerview is owned as to 40.5% by In Holdings. As such, Longerview is a controlled
corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of In Holdings. In Holdings is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

4 Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 18 November 2005 and entered into between

the Controlling Shareholders, each of the Controlling Shareholders (other than
Longerview) has agreed to enter into pre-emptive arrangements in respect of their
shareholding in Longerview. For the purpose of Part XV of the SFO, each of Firmsuccess,
In Holdings and Willport is therefore deemed to have effective voting power in respect of
the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview. As such, Willport is also deemed to be
interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, the Directors were not
aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as notified
to the Company pursuant Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’

Interest in Competing Business

As of 31 December 2024, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business, which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2024, appropriate insurance covering
for the Directors’ and senior management’s liabilities arising out of
activities of the Group has been arranged by the Company. As of the
date of this annual report, such insurance covering remained effective.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer

new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities (including the treasury shares) of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities

Transaction

Details of compliance by the Directors with the Model Code are set forth
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 45 of this annual
report.

Continuing Connected Transaction

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Related Parties Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set forth in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held
by the public.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee, comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, and has adopted terms of reference
which are in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review financial information of the Group, make
recommendation on the external auditor and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group and to
provide comments and advice to the Board. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024.
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Auditor

BDO Limited, who has been appointed as the auditor of the Company to
fill the vacancy following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers with
effect from 14 November 2024 and to hold office until the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Board
TING Man Yi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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To the Shareholders of China Ting Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Ting
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 194, which comprise the
2024, and the

the consolidated

consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December

consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flow for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment of trade and bill receivables
Refer to notes 3.1(b), 4(a) and
statements.

15 to the consolidated financial

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had gross trade and bill receivables
of HK$361
receivables of HK$85 million.

million and provision for impairment of trade and bill

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade and bill
receivables or receivables at default which are tested individually.

receivables, except for those individually significant

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected credit losses.
Receivables relating to customers with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of receivables are assessed individually for
provision for impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customer, its geographical location
and its ageing category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical credit
losses experience and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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Our Response

We understood and evaluated the credit control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures on periodic review of aged
receivables and assessment on expected credit losses allowance of

receivables.

We obtained management’s impairment assessment on the receivables
relating to customers with known financial difficulties or with significant
doubt on collection. We inquired and assessed management’s judgment
on the recoverability of those receivables and corroborated and validated
management’s assessment taking into account the financial conditions of
the relevant customers.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile of trade and
bill receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices.

We tested, on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of trade and bill
receivables against bank receipts.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade and bill
receivables and the estimation and judgement involved in determining the
expected credit losses allowance of the trade and bill receivables.

For receivables relating to customers without known financial difficulties
or significant doubt on collection of receivables, we assessed the
appropriateness of the credit loss provisioning model and methodology
adopted by management with the involvement of our internal expert:

a) assessed the appropriateness of customer grouping based on our
understanding on the Group’s business process, the credit control
process and the credit risk characteristics of trade and bill

receivables;
b) corroborated and validated management’s assessment based on the
historical settlement pattern, evidence from external sources

including the relevant public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and market research
information such as

regarding the relevant forward-looking

macroeconomic factors used in management'’s assessment.
We consider the estimation and judgement made by management in

respect of the expected credit losses allowance and the collectability of
receivables are supportable by the available evidence.
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Valuation of inventories of the Group, existence and
accuracy of inventories of retail segment
Refer to notes 4(b) and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had gross inventories of HK$848
million, including raw materials of HK$75 million, working in progress of
HK$90 million and finished goods of HK$683 million, and provision for
inventories of HK$159 million. Valuation of inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV”) in the consolidated
financial statements. The cost of inventories may not be fully recoverable
if they are aged and damaged, or become obsolete, or if their selling
prices have declined.

Management calculated the NRV at period end based on the estimated
selling price less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale, taking into account historical experience
of selling products of similar nature and expectation of future sales based
on current market condition.

Management applied a provisioning methodology for slow moving
inventories based on inventory ageing and made specific provision for
long aged inventories. It also conducted periodic review on inventory
obsolescence, including performance of periodic inventory counts and

review of holding period for individual inventory items.

The inventories balances of retail segment shown in the operating and
the accounting systems require manual reconciliations to be performed.
Management assessed the existence and accuracy of inventories balances
with the stock-take
reconciliation records of the inventories.

reference to, amongst others, results, and

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the balance to the
financial position of the Group, and the significant judgement and
involved

estimates in determining the provision for impairment of

inventories. Moreover, the inherent risk of material misstatement for
inventories of retail segment was higher given the inventories balances

require manual reconciliations.
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Our Response
In evaluating management’s assessment of net realisable value and

provision of inventories, we

a)

understood and evaluated management’s controls over inventory
valuation, including its procedures in estimating the NRV of the
conducting periodic review on

inventories and inventory

obsolescence.

observed management’s inventory counts to identify whether there
is any damaged or obsolete inventories.

assessed the reasonableness of the provision for impairment of
inventories by comparing management’s forecasts of estimated
future utilisation and the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale, corroborating
explanations with the inventory ageing, sales orders, marketability
and sales plan of the relevant inventory items by using our industry

knowledge.

tested the mathematical accuracy of the provision for impairment
of inventories made by management.

also tested, on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items
by comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end against
the carrying values of individual finished goods.

In evaluating management’s assessment of the existence and accuracy for

inventories of retail segment, we

a)

understood and evaluated management’s controls over inventory

existence and accuracy, including its procedures in inventory
physical count and reviewing the calculation of the inventory unit
cost, and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and

susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

attended annual physical inventory counts close to year-end date
and performed sample count procedures in selected locations, and
we compared our sample count results with the counts performed
by the Group and the system records of the Group.
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Q) test, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the weighted average
inventory unit cost.

d) performed roll forward/backward testing on the inventory

movements between the annual physical inventory count dates and

year-end date, if applicable.

e) Obtained reconciliation records made by management, and tested
the manual reconciliation items of inventories, which included
reconciling the stock-take results to operating system and the
accounting system and performing inspection on underlying

supporting documents of reconciliation items, on a sample basis.

Based on the procedures performed, we consider that the valuation of
inventories of the Group and existence and accuracy of inventories of
retail segment are supportable by available evidence.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
Refer to notes 6 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has gross carrying amount of
property plant and equipment of HK$792 million, and right-of-use assets
of HK$164 million (the “Non-Financial Assets”).

The Group incurred losses for the year ended 31 December 2024. This
has increased the risk that the carrying values of the Non-Financial Assets
may be impaired. In the annual impairment review, management has
concluded that the part of the property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets are required to be impaired. This conclusion was based on
the relevant cash-generating units’ value in use calculations using the
discounted cash flow method that required significant management
judgment.

Our Response
In evaluating management’s impairment assessment of the Non-Financial
Assets, we

a) assessed the Group's impairment assessment model, which included
assessing the impairment indicators identified by management, the
identification of CGUs and the allocation of assets to the CGUs
and assessing the impairment assessment models with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
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b) assessed the valuation methodology and assess the reasonableness
of key assumptions adopted in the valuation in use calculations
including the growth rates and the discount rates with reference to
the historical financial data, available industry and market data and
business plan of management.

9) involved an internal expert to assist us in evaluating and assessing
the appropriateness of the assessment methodology and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions and estimations used in the
assessment.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on these statements on 31 May 2024.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with term of our engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the work performed for the
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate no. P05443

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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As at 31 December 2024

=EVAN
=

EERER

RZT-_MFE+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-4E —T =4
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FHET FHEIT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BREREE 6 729,364 841,019
Right-of-use assets FREEE 7 147,618 185,662
Investment properties REYE 8 1,062,513 854,848
Intangible assets mREE 9 2,644 4,005
Investments accounted for using the equity 1 FB## 5 ABRMIRE
method 11 224 9,053
Deferred income tax assets RIS ERE 21 16,540 54,500
1,958,903 1,949,087
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 13 688,700 696,489
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 3K % H b FE WU R IR 15 449,391 411,201
Financial assets at fair value through profit &2 F{EY|REEZRPEE
or loss (“FVPL") ZEMEE 16 9,881 7,883
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMEZERAZ
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") CREE 17 3,114 7,836
Assets classified as held for sale DERBFELRENEE 12 5,914 —
Tax recoverable AU Bl IR 28,403 24,976
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITHER 18 131 1,396
Cash and cash equivalents RekAEEZFEEE 18 140,510 308,282
1,326,044 1,458,063
Total assets EEHAE 3,284,947 3,407,150

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with — _E#lil4R& & 7 & & 7% FE BRI T o — fF 50 -

the accompanying notes.
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As at 31 December 2024 R-Z-_MFE+=-A=+—H

SeBERER

2024 2023
—E-MmE —E-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHER T T
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders ZAAFREREE AEGES
of the Company
Share capital [N 19 209,982 209,982
Reserves fw# 20 1,349,784 1,780,166
1,559,766 1,990,148
Non-controlling interests FEE IR R 11,902 14,082
Total equity A 1,571,668 2,004,230
LIABILITIES 8E
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMRESHAE 21 158,320 158,771
Bank borrowings RITIE 23 185,797 73,864
Lease liabilities HEAE 7 27,764 42,250
371,881 274,885
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FEAT B 2 BR R I EL Ath & A 5018 22 744,509 629,463
Contract liabilities AHEE 5 48,345 45,476
Lease liabilities HEAE 7 26,646 22,978
Bank borrowings RITIE 23 413,709 309,393
Current income tax liabilities BVERFT B R & (B 108,189 120,725
S S 1,341,398 | 1,128,035
Total liabilities =Rt kol 1,713,279 1,402,920
Total equity and liabilities EzkaEAHE 3,284,947 3,407,150

The financial statements on pages 79 to 194 were approved by the Board
of Directors on 31 March 2025 and were signed on its behalf.

TING Man Yi
THR
Director

EBEF

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

the accompanying notes.

BRI ENIMBRENR_T_AF=A=1+—
AHEFeHE YTHATEERAETE -

TING Hung Yi
THR
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

$REEBRARLT —T-MEFH Y= /\ PN
e T H
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-—ZT-_NE+_A=+—HILFE
2024 2023
—ENE —F-=
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHIT
Revenue WA 5 1,605,353 1,663,121
Cost of sales SHEKA 28 (1,314,967) (1,345,676)
Gross profit ER 290,386 317,445
Other income, net H o g AJF5E 24 16,093 20,022
Other (losses)/gains, net Hth (E518), W2 %5 25 (115,398) (13,844)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss & @l & Z& R E B 1B B @/ (B )
of financial assets, net F 3.1(b) 9,922 (73,176)
Provision for impairment loss of EEREERERBERERE
non-financial assets 6 (79,233) —
Provision for impairment loss of investment B % A 514% & 2 BB K18 B &
in associate 11 (8,657) =
Selling, marketing and distribution costs — $H%& - & 5 & 2 #5 Ak A 28 (303,149) (284,631)
Administrative expenses TR 28 (244,561) (241,890)
Operating loss REFHH (434,597) (276,074)
Finance income BhE WA 26 5,009 5,336
Finance costs BERA 26 (22,377) (15,058)
Share of results of investments accounted %3 {h 1 FA 4 2554 A BRAY
for using the equity method REEE 11 (110) (384)
Loss before income tax KRFT S B AT &5 18 (452,075) (286,180)
Income tax expense ECY 27 (32,633) (76,242)
Loss for the year FRER (484,708) (362,422)
Other comprehensive income Hig2mE KA
Items that may be reclassified to profit or FJFEE #7728 E 182 A
loss:
— Currency translation differences — Bl EERE (44,089) (52,336)
— Fair value gains on transfers of — BRVEERREMEZ
owner-occupied properties ANEEWE - HBRTIE
to investment properties, net of tax 100,938 60,697
Item that will not be reclassified RET B SR Em ) EE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Fair value (losses)/gains on FVOCI — BRAFEGFAEMEEEA
ZEMEEZATE
(B#B), MW (4,703) 3,592
Other comprehensive income, net of tax ~ EHEMZEEUKA » HEKRFHEE 52,146 11,953
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBEAE (432,562) (350,469)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ—

ZoNE+ZRA=+—HIEFE

e 2|l s

2024 2023
—E-MmE —E-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 55 FEx FHET
Loss attributable to: UTATEEZES:
Equity holders of the Company AATIRERE A (481,425) (361,526)
Non-controlling interests FE 2= Il 14 4 2 (3,283) (896)
(484,708) (362,422)
Total comprehensive loss UTATEGZZEEBEE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RATRERE A (430,382) (343,994)
Non-controlling interests eI (2,180) (6,475)
(432,562) (350,469)
Loss per share for loss attributable to FRAAFKREREA
equity holders of the Company EBiEEEZBRER
during the year (expressed in HK (A BRERHEWE )
cents per share)
— basic — BER 30 22.93 17.22
— diluted — #58 30 22.93 17.22

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

EREEEREBERAA T ZMFFR 4= =+
moany
an\ fm == ¥
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—ZT_NMF+_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ERRARERE AELS
Retained
Earnings/ Non-
Share Share Other (accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserves losses) Total interests equity
RERA/
RA R 143 % 8 Hitfits  (RFHEHR) Bt FEMER BHAHE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TET TET TERT TET TET TERT TET
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-B-ME-A-AH
33 209,982 978,251 786,238 15,677 1,990,148 14,082 2,004,230
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year FENEE = = = (481,425) (481,425) (3,283) (484,708)
Other comprehensive H2ERA
income
Currency translation differences &¥HE =5 20 = — (43,441) = (43,441) (648) (44,089)
Fair value losses on FVOCI BRATEF AL EE
WAZ &REEY
AHEEE 17 = = (4,703) = (4,703) = (4,703)
Revaluation surplus upon BRMESAREMER
transfers of owner-occupied BB MR
properties to investment BE
properties, net of tax — — 99,187 — 99,187 1,751 100,938
Total comprehensive 2ERA/(FR) &8
income/(loss) = = 51,043 (481,425) (430,382) (2,180) (432,562)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R=F-M&+=f
=t - A& 209,982 978,251 837,281 (465,748) 1,559,766 11,902 1,571,668

The above consolidated statement of change in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE—Z_MF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADAIRERB AR
Retained
Earnings/ Non-
Share Share Other  (accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserves losses) Total interests equity
RERF,/
e Rt % HibfEE  (REER) @t FeEnlt s BaniEs
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Bt = FTHT T T FTHT T TEL THEL
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZE-=5-A-H#K
E4 23 209,982 978,251 768,706 377,203 2,334,142 20,557 2,354,699
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Loss for the year FREE = = = (361,526) (361,526) (896) (362,422)
Other comprehensive Htt2ERA/(FE)
income/(loss)
Currency translation differences S HEZ5H 20 = = (46,757) = (46,757) (5,579) (52,336)
Fair value gains on FVOCI BRATEFALMLEE
WAZEREEY
A ERE 17 — — 3,592 — 3,592 — 3,592
Revaluation surplus upon BRMEERREMER
transfers of owner-occupied ZEfhRs - Mk
properties to investment WE
properties, net of tax — — 60,697 — 60,697 — 60,697
Total comprehensive 2EUA/(FR) B8
income/(loss) — — 17,532 (361,526) (343,994) (6,475) (350,469)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-ZF-=%+-f
=t+-BfEe 209,982 978,251 786,238 15,677 1,990,148 14,082 2,004,230
The above consolidated statement of change in equity should be read in 3l 4R & 1 25 5 B 3R 5% e B2 BART B 5 — GFRIAE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE—-%

sre w0

=

—mEF_HA=t—BILFE

2024 2023
—E-EF —EC=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTER FHT
Cash flows from operating activities ’“‘g%iﬂiﬁum
Net cash (used in)/generated from g (MR ER& T8
operations 32(a) (93,303) 54,772
Interest paid BT FLE (24,361) (20,961)
Income tax paid BEREES (15,428) (14,552)
Net cash (used in)/generated from 2IEES (FTA) FBH &
operating activities HE (133,092) 19,259
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BEREE
equipment (287,149) (295,835)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE&EM¥ « BE LR EMER
and equipment | 19,395 2,590
Compensation from expropriation of land b & ¥ ¥ & A E
and properties 43,452 ==
Purchases of FVPL BERATEIREEERS
&%IEZ@EE%SEE (2,720) (45,108)
Proceeds from FVPL N ESREER KT EE
Z%mﬂﬁ?aﬁﬁﬁ’a IR 1,463 78,428
Repayment of promissory note BREANEE e 16,276
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits EIRIFFEROR L A0) 1,256 (285)
Interest received B FIE 5,009 3,760
Disposal of a subsidiary (net of cash and HE—FMHERR (HKRATHE
cash equivalents disposed) WiRe kB EFEER) — (24)
Net cash used in investing activities KEFBFABRSFHE (219,294) (240,198)
Cash flows from financing activities METEBRESRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIE TP 15 RIB 475,530 223,499
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITER (250,876) (154,698)
Lease payments HERR (28,260) (31,608)
Net cash generated from financing BEEBFEHEEFE
activities 32(b) 196,394 37,193
Net decrease in cash and cash RERALEEBEBRDF
equivalents (155,992) (183,746)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HBzHRekBEEE
HH 308,282 505,493
Exchange difference EHERE (11,780) (13,465)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZA=+—HAZ2H& Rk
31 December ReEEER 18 140,510 308,282

R B TR & 8 R B SERE P Y R — GFB AR o

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in L3
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4T B B I% R MY

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

]|E|E||/

General information

China Ting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2005 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in manufacturing
and sales of garments and property investment. The Company’s
shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 15 December
2005 (the “Listing”).

The Company’s parent is Longerview Investment Limited
(incorporated in British Virgin Islands) and the directors consider its
ultimate parent is also Longerview Investment Limited.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out in note 37. The
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation and changes in
accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards and the disclosure requirements
of HKCO
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (‘HKASs’) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the 'HKFRS Accounting
Standards’) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant ('HKICPA'). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

86

—REH

EFREEZERERAR ([ARADR_FET
AFERAA=ZT " AREREFERETE(F
28 —AR—FEZRER  BmeRkig
RERESEHESEMKRIAERREERA
7] o ARA a2 E M ERRAIR Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands © AR &) &2 BB A 7] (Be i m [ AR &
B zExBRBERBEXNKURDER
B ARARNHEE ZZEZTRFEFT_A+H
REAERBMERZMER AR ([BRM])
EREMA LMD -

KA B 8 & A 7] Alongerview Investment
Limited (RN & BR XA SEMY) - BES
REHEZKTRA I Hlongerview
Investment Limited ©

BN EEAMBRRAMBZEESHEE
BANHIFE37 - BRRBHBIN  LEBRRER
FEZIFEERER -

BRERBIN  WFHEEFBHERTIAET
(BTl 251

REEERETBEEH

21 wmEEE

() BFEBYUBHEERE
BRI REE D ARG E
BE
RAMBRRDERETEE
fing ((HEGEAE]) P
BMHEEMEREEL - &
BERER([FBETERD
Kk (A TR IEB YR
SHEASFERAD R - M
S BREMIBHRRBEE B
BRZMARRAES LHH
AFTREMERBEEAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EREEEZRERDA

2.

ZEMNFFR

Basis of preparation and changes in
accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Compliance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards and the disclosure requirements
of HKCO (Continued)

The Group has prepared the financial statements on
the basis of going concern. The Group recorded net
current liabilities of HK$15,354,000 as at 31
December 2024. In view of the Group's net current
liabilities position, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance when assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern and meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due in the foreseeable future after considering the
following:

(a) As at 31 December 2024, the Group had
unutilised borrowing facility in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$57,854,000
expiring beyond one year.

(b)  The Group implemented cost-saving measures to
maintain adequate cash flow for the Group's
operation to maintain adequate cash flow for
the Group's operation.

The directors of the Company have prepared a cash
flow forecast for the Group which covers a period of
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Taking into account the cash flows from operation,
unutilised banking facilities and bank borrowing up to
the date of approval of these financial statements and
the ability of management in adjusting the pace of its
operation expansion, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Therefore,
there are no material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt over the going concern assumption
and the directors of the Company have formed a
judgement that there is a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to operate for the
foreseeable future.
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2.

Basis of preparation and changes in
accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Compliance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards and the disclosure requirements
of HKCO (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires the Company’'s management to exercise
judgement in applying the accounting policies. The
areas where significant judgements and estimates
have been made in preparing the consolidated
financial statements and their effect are disclosed in
note 4.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following (refer to
individual accounting policies for details):

. certain financial assets, certain classes of
property, plant and equipment, and investment
property — measured at fair value or revalued
amount

. assets held for sale — measured at the lower

of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell
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2.

7o £ F 38

Basis of preparation and changes in
accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
The following new and amended standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2024:

Hong Kong Interpretation Presentation of Financial
5 (Revised) Statements —
Classification By the
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS Lease Liability in a Sale
16 and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Supplier finance
arrangements

Adoption of these amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

(iv) New and amended standards and

interpretations not yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation have been published that are not
mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2024 and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These amendments are not expected to have
a material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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2. Basis of preparation and changes in
accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New and amended standards and

/\\/T\

2. HmEHE

(&)

& B % oK MY T

ERETHREH

21 wEEE(HE)

(iv) [RERARIFTETER KR

interpretations not yet adopted (Continued) 155T KR 22 FE (#8)
Effective for RUAT BE®
annual periods ZEBRRZ

Standards Subject of amendment beginning on or after %8| [EHE::x) FEHEBER

HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025 BEgT LA A R —T-AF
(Amendments) B2 REE —A—8

B B3R5 22 Al
EAEACHEN)

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the Classification 1 January 2026 BERMBHREEDN HERTIAHIERITEZ —EoRE

(Amendments) and Measurement of Financial FIRLEE 1&R] —HR—8
Instruments B 75 S 5 22 Al
EVLACCHEN)

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, 1 January 2026 BEREMBREER HEBWBIREED —EoRE
HKFRS Accounting HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 BERZFEE  F1% - BANBHRSE —A—A
Standards — Volume 11 and HKAS 7 B — B AE75 - BRMBRE

ERIEI% - BAEMHR
EEAIE105 R ES
SRR TSR 2 ]
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in 1 January 2027 BEEMBREEL HMEBRERHZIRHEE —T-tF
Financial Statements F185% —A—H
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public 1 January 2027 BERMBHREED E/AAZIEANMER —E-+fF
Accountability: Disclosure £195% a: KE —A—H

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determined EEMBREER REZFREBEARXS FE
and 1AS 28 between an Investor and FIORREEE ELRRIZHABEIEA

its Associate or Joint Venture SHERI 2855 EE

The directors of the Company is in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the above, other
than HKFRS 18 and amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7, the directors do not anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards will have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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3. Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The

Group's overall

risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors

(a) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Chinese Mainland. Sales are made to overseas
customers as well as the customers in Chinese
Mainland while purchases are mainly from
suppliers in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland.
The functional currencies of the Group's entities
in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland are United
States dollars (US$) and Renminbi (“RMB"),
respectively.

Foreign exchange risks arise on monetary assets
and liabilities being denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency. The Group’s
entities in Chinese Mainland have monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in US$, which
is not their functional currencies. The Group
does not speculate on foreign currencies.

At 31 December 2024, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2023: 5%) against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
results for the year and equity holders’ equity
would have been approximately HK$744,000
(2023: HK$2,462,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of US$ denominated monetary assets
and liabilities held by the Group’s entities in
Chinese Mainland.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because certain listed securities held by the
Group are classified in the consolidated balance
sheet as FVPL and FVOCI. Result for the year
and equity holders’ equity would increase/
decrease as a result of gains/losses on listed
securities classified as FVPL and FVOCI.

At 31 December 2024, if there had been a
5% (2023: 5%) increase/decrease in the market
value of FVPL with all other variables held
constant, the Group's result for the year would
have been approximately HK$494,000 (2023:
HK$394,000) higher/lower.

At 31 December 2024, if there had been a
5% (2023: 5%) increase/decrease in the market
value of FVOCI with all other variables held
constant, the Group's equity would have been
approximately HK$156,000 (2023: HK$392,000)
higher/lower.

The Group has not entered into derivatives to
manage such exposures.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates except for bank deposits,
as most of the interest-bearing assets including
loan receivables are at fixed rate. The Group's
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its bank deposits and
borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The interest rates of the Group’s bank deposits
and the rates and terms of the Group's
borrowings are disclosed in Notes 18 and 23 to
the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk.

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates had
been increased/decreased by one percentage
point (2023: one percentage point) with all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
result for the year would have been
HK$4,612,000 (2023: HK$3,022,000) lower/
higher and HK$878,000 (2023: HK$2,357,000)
higher/lower, respectively, resulting from the

change in the interest expense on bank
borrowings and interest income on bank
deposits.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its

cash and bank balances and trade and other

receivables (except for prepayments).

The Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying

amounts of these financial assets.

(1)

Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. OEM garment
sales to large or long-established customers
with good repayment history comprise a
significant proportion of the total Group’s OEM
garment sales. The Group also has policies on
granting different settlement methods to
different customers to monitor the credit
exposure. Letters of credit are normally required
from new customers and existing customers
with short trading history for settlement
purposes. Sales to retail customers are made in
cash, via credit cards, through online payment
service providers or collected by department
stores/online retailers on behalf of the Group.
The Group’s historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances. At 31 December 2024,
trade and bill receivables amounted to
approximately HK$360,919,000 (2023:
HK$429,647,000) were due from companies
operating under international and domestically
well-known brand retailers and PRC department
stores. Loss allowances of HK$84,958,000
(2023: HK$187,810,000) has been provided for
such trade and bill receivables as at 31
December 2024.
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ZEMNFFR

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i

(1)

(1)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has policies to place its cash and
bank balances only with major financial
institutions with good reputation and does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions.

Security

For certain trade receivables the Group may
obtain security in the form of letters of credit
which can be called upon if the counterparty is
in default.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

= Trade and bill receivables

= Other financial assets at amortised costs

While cash and bank balances are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss is immaterial.

Trade and bill receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bill receivables, except for
those individually significant receivables or
receivables at default which are tested
individually.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss
on individual basis

Trade and bill receivables relating to
customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 December 2024, the
balances of such individually assessed
trade receivables and the loss allowance
in respect of these receivables are
HK$39,133,000 (2023: HK$135,591,000)
and HK$32,439,000 (2023:
HK$125,458,000), respectively.
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ZEMNFFR

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated
by grouping the remaining receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature
of the customer, its geographical location
and its ageing category, and applying
expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables. The expected credit loss rates
are determined based on historical credit
losses experience and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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re IR R M A

3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. BXERER(H&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIERAKREZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) 1=EEE (&)
(iii)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i)  EEEERRE ()
Trade and bill receivables (Continued) FEU B 5 8RR K B Uk
FE(E)
Measurement of expected credit loss . HRAGEEH
on collective basis (Continued) 1:.“}55?,5 (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at RIFZEE B
31 December 2024 was determined as — TN FE+ =
follows for trade receivables, based on A=+—HE%E
past due dates: R HA B A B e
R ESIE R
Up to 61 to 121 to Over
60 days 120 days 180 days 180 days Total
61Z 121%
60K LAY 120 % 180X 180KkUL E e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET FTET THT TET
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE_ME+=A
=+—H
Expected loss rate TEEAE R = 5.9% 11.4% 11.1% 88.4%
Gross carrying amount ARE(E A 208,593 46,033 31,654 35,506 321,786
Loss allowance EERE 12,371 5,263 3,509 31,376 52,519
Up to 61 to 121 to Over
60 days 120 days 180 days 180 days Total
61% 1212
60K AR 120K 180~ 180KLA £ 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&IT FHEIT FHET FH&IT FHEIT
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=A8
=EF=F
Expected loss rate TEE R % 4.9% 8.4% 17.4% 87.2%
Gross carrying amount RRERGE 183,314 44,884 11,179 54,679 294,056
Loss allowance EERE 8,961 3,760 1,942 47,689 62,352
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

Trade and bill receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
amounts due from related parties, deposits and
other receivables. Management assesses the
credit quality of the counterparties, taking into
account the historical risk of default and
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

As at 31 December 2024, a provision of
HK$1,304,000 (2023: HK$22,888,000) has been
provided for other financial assets at amortised
cost.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

m

= A
T A

BT %5 R 2% MY

MR EE (&)

3.1 H¥EREE(E)

(b) EEmRE(E)

(iii) = B E 2 A B 1 (A

WA IR 2 B

Liquidity risk

(Continued) themEE (&)
The total loss allowance for the financial assets FARESREERRN
recognised during the year is as below: BREBEEENT
2024 2023
—S-pmE —ET =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHBT
(Reversal of)/provision H B MR EE B
for impairment loss of (Bm), it
trade receivables (1,490) 54,001
(Reversal of)/provision e K& E b FIE R
for impairment loss of BEE (BE),
deposit and other receivables (8,432) 19,175
(9,922) 73,176
(c) mEEZLEE
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining nHECRBEREE K
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through SEAERERNRE BB

an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been for
purchases of materials, machinery and equipment and
payments of employee benefit expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and
bank loans. The Group generally operates with a
working capital surplus.

As at 31
liabilities and term loans as shown in the table below,

December 2024, except for the lease

all the Group’s contractual obligations mature within
1 year.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

re W R M A

M b EE ()

3.1 B¥EBRERE(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEEZLEE (&)
The following table summarises the maturity analysis TRBM—IEEAE R 2 B
of a term loan with a repayment on demand clause Ho#  EREBREERER
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the &R DIRBER B ZEATE 2
loan agreement. The amounts disclosed in the table BERERBEHEERME - RAFT
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. The BBRZeBEAEHNARMRRS
amounts include interest payments computed using mE - 2BEBFEEASNNE
contractual rates. Taking into account the Group's AEZAENR  BERAE
financial position, the directors do not consider that it B 2GRN EERERIT
was probable that the bank would exercise its 1A BEA T BB RE LA ZE SR
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The BIREE - EFHREZEHE
directors believe that such term loan will be repaid in T ARAR B R B ok P 2 3B X
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set HEIRER TUAEE -
out in the loan agreements.
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR —ZWME —ZEF HBEIEF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTER FExT FTER FExT FER
At 31 December 2024 R-ZT_MF
+=A
EF=F
Bank borrowings RITIE 349,271 21,748 164,759 101,325 637,103
Lease liabilities HEBE 27,294 14,951 14,536 1,089 57,870
376,565 36,699 179,295 102,414 694,973
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR —EWMF ZZEAF BHAF 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 31 December 2023 RZ-ZT==
+=A
E=E
Bank borrowings HRITIE 325,684 4,931 67,064 11,245 408,924
Lease liabilities HEAE 25,092 16,343 16,690 13,508 71,633
350,776 21,274 83,754 24,753 480,557
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3.2

3.3

/\\/T\

& B % oK MY T

3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MBERERE (&)
Capital risk management 3.2 EXERBEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEEEBEAZ BZAREAEH
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern BIEBAFRBREELE 7T - AR
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for R 3R %5 3R [2] 3 % 7 EL 4t Fll &5 *ﬁ?‘ﬁ%ﬂ?
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital KA - AR RIEZERERE
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain MR EERKAE - RERFHARE
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the AR - AEEAH T FIRE 2R
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to BeBELRAE ARFREEX -
shareholders, issue new shares or increase debt. BATHARSIL INETS ©
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to REENEEH#ER J:I:? REXR o
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as bank borrowings of Bk X TR T 1‘% A
approximately HK$599,506,000 (2023: HK$383,257,000) 599,506,000 7T (= B = = 4
divided by total equity of HK$1,571,668,000 (2023: 383,257,000 7T) B LAz 12 8
HK$2,004,230,000). The ratio as at 31 December 2024 and 1,571,668,0007% 7T (:?: =F:
2023 is 38.1% and 19.1%, respectively. 2,004,230,000% o) 5t H - R = F
:Ei&fg:_¢+fﬂ_+ =
ZHED R A38.1% K% 19.1% °
Fair value estimation 3.3 AFREME
(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) ALFEER
This section explains the judgements and estimates $”’F’ﬁtfﬁiﬁﬂﬂ%$ﬁ%ﬁﬂ§
made in determining the fair values of the financial ATFEERRGTEZEMIA
instruments that are recognised and measured at fair B A 1B BRF BT 1 4 T R il 5T o
value in the financial statements. To provide an RIGHEEAFEMABAH
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in BOAEEREREZR  NEEIR
determining fair value, the Group has classified its Bt EAlBEERTAS A
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed “EER - BEERZFHAMOT
under the accounting standards. An explanation of AR ©
each level follows underneath the table.
R=ZZB-ONE+=A Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2024 Ear=1 A B A B2 R B3
Assets BE
FVPL — Listed equity securities 1ZAF(EF|REEZ
REEBEZEHMERE
— EmRAE 9,881 — —
FVOCI — Listed equity securities 3ZAF(Ezt AH A2
WAZ eREE
— EWmRAE 3,114 — —
12,995 — —
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.

NN ol

M b EE ()

3.3 AV EME (FE)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) RFEERE)
R-BE-=%+=A Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2023 Er=1[ FIN H A2 H 503
Assets EE
FVPL — Listed equity securities 2 A FEFIREEEER
PREZSHEAE
— ETBRAES 7,883 — —
FVOCI — Listed equity securities 2 AF(ET AH b2 m
WAZ CBEE
— ETBRAES 7,836 — —
15,719 — —

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3
during the year (2023: Same).

See Notes 8 and 9 for disclosure of the investment

properties and intangible assets that were measured

at fair value.

Level 1:

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly
traded equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market
price already incorporates the market's
assumptions with respect to changes in
economic climate such as rising interest
rates and inflation, as well as changes
due to environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") risk. These
instruments are included in level 1.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(b)

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market
(for example,
derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

over-the-counter

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data,
the instrument is included in level 3. This
is the case for unlisted equity securities
and for instruments where ESG risk gives
rise to a significant unobservable

adjustment.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial

instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
approximate their fair values as at the reporting date
since either the instrument are with short maturities
or the interest rate is close to the current market

rate.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

The basis of fair value measurement and valuation
technique of such FVOCI are set out in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements. The Group use
discounted cash flow analysis to value cash
management products. The Group did not change any
valuation techniques in determining the level 2 and
level 3 fair values.
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3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
item for the year ended 31 December 2024 and

NN ol

M b EE ()

3.3 QFREMF (E)

(c) EHAEATTEHEESEFEZZ
BN FEFE (RF3)
TREJNBE=ZZT_NFR=
To=F+-A=+—HILHF

2023: EZH/HIERNES)
2024 2023
—E-F R =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET

Cash management products ReBEER

At 1 January A—H—H = 34,242
Additions NE = 43,448
Disposal HE = (77,056)
Exchange differences PE & =% = (634)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H — =

4. Critical accounting estimates and

judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually for provision for
Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on

impairment allowance.

shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customer, its geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying expected credit loss rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experience and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of manufacturing and
It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and

selling products of similar nature.

competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will reassess the estimations by the balance
sheet date.

Long term assets impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its long-term assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those asset have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(0

(d)

Long term assets impairment (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

At each balance sheet date, management review internal and
external sources of information to identify indications that
the property, plant and equipment may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amounts. If an indication of impairment is identified, the
Group is required to estimate the recoverable value,
representing the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost to
sell or its value in use. Changes in any of these estimates
could result in a material change to the asset carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Impairment of investment in an associate

In determining whether the investment in an associate is
impaired, the directors of the Company assesses the
recoverable amount of the investment in an associate which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. An impairment loss was recognised if the
carrying amount of investment in an associate exceeds its
recoverable amount. As at 31 December 2024, the carrying
amount of investment in an associate was Nil (2023:
HK$8,665,000). The impairment loss of HK$8,657,000
(2023: Nil) was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2024.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined at each
balance sheet date based on valuation techniques (Note 8).
In making the judgement, consideration is given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing as at the balance sheet date, expected rental from
future leases in the light of current market conditions and
appropriate term and reversionary yields. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions entered into by the Group.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimate
is changed.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(h) Going concern basis

The assessment of the going concern assumption involves
making a judgement by the management and reviewed by
the directors of the Company, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. The directors of the Company consider
that the Group have the capabilities to continue as going
concerns and the major events and conditions, which may
give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively may
cast significant doubt upon the going concern assumption
and related mitigating measures taken by management are
set out in Note 2.1(i).

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors. The executive directors review the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on profit before income tax, which is consistent
with that in the financial statements. Other information, as noted
below, is also provided to the executive directors. The executive
directors consider the Group has three reportable segments: (1)
manufacturing and sales of garments on an original equipment
manufacturer basis (“OEM"”); (2) manufacturing and retailing of
branded fashion apparel (“Retail”); and (3) property investment in
Chinese Mainland (“Property investment”).

Total segment assets exclude certain investment properties located
in Hong Kong, corporate assets and listed equity securities at FVPL
and FVOCI, all of which are managed on a central basis.

Revenue represent sales of goods and rental income. Sales between
segments are carried out based on agreed terms similar to terms
offered to third parties. The revenue from external parties reported
to the executive directors is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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5. Segment information (Continued) 5. DEER (&)
Property
OEM Retail investment Total
RERERE =€ MERE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FB T FB T FE T
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_NFE+=A
=ChH
Total revenue IO L 1,260,280 584,597 102,375 1,947,252
Inter-segment revenue 2 EE A (330,311) (5.644) (5,944) (341,899)
Revenue (from external customers) YA (ZR BINBRF) 929,969 578,953 96,431 1,605,353
Timing of revenue recognition U A T 52 ) B P
At a point in time R —{ERF 2L 929,969 578,953 — 1,508,922
Over time R —ER R E R = — 96,431 96,431
929,969 578,953 96,431 1,605,353
Segment loss before income tax R AT{SFi A2 218 (290,540) (118,474) (34,677) (443,691)
Fair value losses on investment BAEMEN A FEEE
properties = = (113,369) (113,369)
Depreciation of property, plant and #1% « BE M&EITE
equipment (42,458) (19,206) (13,682) (75,346)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {#fAEEEITE (12,514) (21,114) (17) (33,645)
Provision for impairment loss of  3F& Bb & ER(E 1B
non-financial assets g (41,437) (37,796) — (79,233)
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & & # 85 (933) (270) — (1,203)
Finance income A& WA 4,885 70 54 5,009
Finance costs 7l & K AR (9,901) (12,476) — (22,377)
Share of results of Investments Db AR EARRR
accounted for using the equity BB EE
method (110) = — (110)
Provision for impairment loss of — Bt& A &% ER(EEE
investment in associate B (8,657) — — (8,657)
Income tax expense FreHif X (13,108) (31,966) 12,549 (32,525)
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5. Segment information (Continued) 5. DEER(E)
Property
OEM Retail investment Total
[REE RS e =2 YERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
At 31 December 2023 R=-B-=%+=A
=Ei—lH
Total revenue LNt 1,084,480 605,505 63,263 1,753,248
Inter-segment revenue 7 B A (86,334) (811) (2,982) (90,127)
Revenue (from external customers) YA (ZRBINEBRF) 998,146 604,694 60,281 1,663,121
Timing of revenue recognition WA HE R Y B
At a point in time A — fEBS 25 998,146 604,694 — 1,602,840
Over time R—EBEEA — — 60,281 60,281
998,146 604,694 60,281 1,663,121
Segment (loss)/profit before KR AT S B AT 9 &
income tax (E18), @7l (130,450) (191,221) 40,603 (281,068)

Fair value losses on investment REMERN AT EEE

properties = = (16,482) (16,482)
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% « BE k& #EITE

equipment (1,280) (17,036) (5,994) (24,310)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ EE&EITE (12,390) (18,614) (97) (31,101)
Amortisation of intangible assets 42 & EE 5 (975) (274) — (1,249)
Finance income & U A 4,976 154 206 5,336
Finance costs #hE K AR (10,318) (4,740) — (15,058)

Share of results of Investments DIEEREREARD

accounted for using the equity REEE

method (384) = = (384)
Income tax expense TECY 6,655 (69,170) (13,727) (76,242)
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5. Segment information (Continued) 5. DEER (&)
Property
OEM Retail investment Total
REERE Z2E€ YMERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FiBT T FHIT T
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-ME+=A
=CE—1H
Total segment assets D ERE EARFE 2,028,102 752,208 468,863 3,249,173
Total segment assets include: DEEELTERLE
Investments accounted for using  f# A ABRMNIEE
the equity method 224 — = 224
Additions to non-current assets REFREBEE
(other than financial instruments (& @ T A K IEEFT
and deferred income tax assets)  15Fi&ERRIN) 226,190 90,714 36 316,940
Tax recoverable A Y B % 18 25,859 2,544 — 28,403
Deferred income tax assets REMSHEE 14,394 2,146 — 16,540
At 31 December 2023 R=-B=-=%+=A
=+—H
Total segment assets DEEEER 1,726,632 774,027 859,500 3,360,159
Total segment assets include: DEEELTERRE
Investments accounted for using  f# A EARNIRE
the equity method 9,053 — — 9,053
Additions to non-current assets ANEFREEE
(other than financial instruments (ﬁﬁﬂlﬂ&?_i@ﬁﬁ
and deferred income tax assets) 15 & ERIN) 337,534 74,749 — 412,283
Tax recoverable THSZ@WE 23,331 1,645 — 24,976
Deferred income tax assets REMSREE 26,932 27,568 — 54,500
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5. Segment information (Continued) 5. 2HMER (&)
A reconciliation of reportable segments’ loss before income tax to A ¥R 25 5 &8 2 BR PS40 A &S 18 ERRR P45 A AT
total loss before income tax is provided as follows: BERRE 2 HENT ¢
2024 2023
—E-E —ET-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHBT
Total segment loss before income tax FRFTISBi AT D S E 18 4258 (443,691) (281,068)
Net fair value gains on FVPL BEATEINGEEERET R
BrzemEAEATFERKS
pid 965 847
Corporate overhead TELEEA (9,349) (5,959)
Loss before income tax per consolidated A2 E W RIS
statement of comprehensive income i Al & 18 (452,075) (286,180)

A reconciliation of reportable segments’ assets to total assets is

provided as follows:

RSOz EEREEMLBE2HENT :

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Total segment assets DEEEMLTE 3,249,173 3,360,159
FVPL RATEIREEERTE
BremEE 9,881 7,883
FvoCl RATFEFAEMEEEA
ZEMEE 3,114 7,836
Corporate assets hEEE 22,779 31,272
Total assets per consolidated balance BREEEEBRMIEE
sheet RG] 3,284,947 3,407,150

13
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Segment information (Continued)

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The breakdown
of the Group’s revenue from external customers located in the
following geographical areas are as follows:

N ol

2 EHER (&)

ARBRASEBEMMKL - REE KA
RIAT & 2 MR P RO Y A BRAR N T

2024 2023

—E-MmE —E=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHT

Chinese Mainland R A 1,154,137 1,151,704
North America k= 323,958 318,150
European Union G| 84,875 93,222
Hong Kong BB 36,319 73,803
Other countries HAab B 6,064 26,242
1,605,353 1,663,121

The total of non-current assets other than investments accounted
for using the equity method and deferred income tax assets are

URATHR ZIFRBDEEAR(TRIEE
REREANRNRE MELERSHEE) 1A

located in the following geographical areas: T
2024 2023
—E-IEF —Eo=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Chinese Mainland A A 1,742,585 1,675,048
Hong Kong B 154,006 169,561
North America k= 45,548 40,925
1,942,139 1,885,534

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there is no
customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the Group's
total revenue.
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Segment information (Continued)

The contract liabilities represent the advance payments received
from counterparties for goods or services that have not yet been
transferred or provided to the counterparties. As at 31 December
2024, the Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

e IR M A

2 EER (&)

BRARERHAREREIIEHRT

E%iﬁ&%@%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
—mE+—A=+—8" ﬁ‘E@ﬁE%A

FPEMBBNNATEE :

2024 2023

—EME —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&ET FAT

Current contract liabilities RBEHNEE 48,345 45,476

TREIEE—T-_WF+_A=+—H1t
ELSHBEMERNHBASE :

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2024 relating to carried- FERE
forward contract liabilities:

2024 2023
—EBNE —FT-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue recognised that was included AAEVAHNEBEHREN
in the contract liabilities balance 2R A
at the beginning of the year 45,476 46,521

AEEEMNEFANATHNREOEE/E
S—F AT -

The Group expects the performance obligations under the contracts
with customers to be satisfied primarily over a period of one year.

WAERNE T BUR

WATIR AL BERSEE < ERBIETHE
iTW&HE%ZEH&‘RJEWRFZ“qZE U
ATHRIEER - RE R HIARE AR S
A EERIR

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax (“VAT"), returns and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.
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5. Segment information (Continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(Continued)

(a)

Sales of goods — OEM garment sales

Sales are recognised when control of the garment has
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to the
customer, the customer has full discretion over the goods
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
customer, and either customer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, using the expected
value method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. No element of financing is deemed present as the
sales are made with credit terms that are consistent with
market practice. The Group’s obligation to provide a refund
for faulty products under the standard warranty terms is
recognised as a provision.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

If the services rendered or products delivered by the Group
exceed the payments made by the counter parties, a
contract asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the
services rendered or products delivered, a contract liability is
recognised.
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5. Segment information (Continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(Continued)

(b)

()

Sales of goods — retailing of branded fashion
apparel

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity sells a
product to the customer. Retail sales are in cash, by credit
cards, by means of electronic payments or collected by
department stores/online retailer on behalf of the Group. The
recorded revenue includes credit card fees payable for the
transaction. Such credit card fees are included in selling,
marketing and distribution costs. It is the Group’s policy to
sell its products to the end customer with a right of return.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for
such returns at the time of sale. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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HEi

. e a
Property, plant and equipment 6. ¥ HERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fittings and  Construction
Building improvements machinery Vehicles  equipment in progress Total
B RER
BF HAEVELE HEREM RE #fs ERIE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TR TEL ThL TR TEL ThL
As at 1 January 2024 RZB-mF-A-8
Cost A 547,002 291,933 259,631 49,178 81,931 526,725 1,756,400
Accumulated depreciation ZAMERAE (336,314) (262,145) (229,711) (29,944) (57,267) - (915,381)
Net book amount EEFE 210,688 29,788 29,920 19,234 24,664 526,725 841,019
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE-BS-_ME+-A=1-H
LEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 210,688 29,788 29,920 19,234 24,664 526,725 841,019
Exchange differences ERZEE (8,375) (162) (728) (120) (673) (4,488) (14,546)
Additions RE 555 42,494 22,391 3,282 14,843 194,709 278,274
Disposals sk (11,394) — (9,776) (9,429) (569) - (31,168)
Transfers E 633,023 — 49,901 - — (682,924) -
Transfer to P BRERENE (205,878) — — — — — (205,878)
Impairment HE (1,160) (20,570) (40,124) (936) (201) - (62,991)
Depreciation & (34,156) (21,238) (6,867) (5,133) (7,952) - (75,346)
Closing net book amount FRAEEFE 583,303 30,312 44,717 6,898 30,112 34,022 729,364
At 31 December 2024 R=B-ME+=A=1+-H
Cost A 859,429 321,942 246,943 38,340 83,474 34,022 1,590,150
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE
impairment (276,126) (297,630) (202,226) (31,442) (53,362) = (860,786)
Net book amount BHEFE 583,303 30,312 44,717 6,898 30,112 34,022 729,364
As at 1 January 2023 RZBZ=%-f-H
Cost A 554,364 301,510 287,059 51,495 84,589 201,938 1,480,955
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (362,700) (268,983) (254,199) (35,613) (59,831) — (981,326)
Net book amount REFE 191,664 32,527 32,860 15,882 24,758 201,938 499,629
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-T-=4+-A=1-H
IL5E
Opening net book amount FOREFE 191,664 32,527 32,860 15,882 24,758 201,938 499,629
Exchange differences ERER (3.743) (1,654) (680) (393) (586) (7,262) (14318)
Additions RE = 19,739 5,111 4,597 978 332,051 362,476
Disposals LE - (1.223) (5,550) (485) (80) - (7.338)
Transfers &R = = 2 - - @) -
Transfer to IP EREREANE (11,09) = - - = = (11,096)
Transfer from P BRARENE 35,976 = = = = = 35976
Depreciation & 2,113) (19,601) (1,823) (367) (406) = (24,310
Closing net book amount FRREFE 210,688 29,788 29,920 19,34 24,664 526,725 841,019
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=£+ZA=t-H
Cost A 547,002 291,933 259,631 49,178 81,931 526,725 1,756,400
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE
impairment (336,314) (262,145) (229,711) (29,944) (57,267) = (915,381)
Net book amount EEE 210,688 29,788 29,920 19,234 24,664 526,725 841,019
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6. Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$34,202,000 (2023:
HK$10,936,000), HK$18,278,000 (2023: HK$5,987,000) and
HK$22,866,000 (2023: HK$7,387,000) have been charged to cost
of sales, selling, marking and distributing costs and administrative

expenses, respectively.

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2024, buildings with net book amount
of approximately HK$347,092,000 (2023: HK$65,389,000)
were pledged as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings
(Note 23).

Revaluation, depreciation methods and useful
lives

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives as
follows:
Buildings 20-40 years or shorter of
remaining useful life

Leasehold improvements  3-5 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Vehicles 3-10 years

Furniture, fittings and 3-5 years
equipment
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6. Property, plant and equipment
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M2 BB R&E (&)

(Continued)
(c)  See Note 37.5 for the other accounting policies relevant to (c) EHEAYE BEIREHBBHEMD
property, plant and equipment. BETEUR - FAMMTE37.5 -
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group HE-T-_WF+-A=+—HIF
transferred certain owner-occupied propertied located in B AEEBARMMNOETERY
Hangzhou to investment properties and rented them out FEAREY L LA (M) :
(Note 8):
2024 2023
—S-|mE —ET =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHATT
On the date of transfer N =R
— Fair value of properties — FTEBEMENR
transferred 332,160 46,073
— Carrying amounts of properties — FTEBYENEREE
transferred (205,878) (11,096)
Excess of fair values over carrying AT ERAREENSHE
amounts 126,282 34,977
Less: deferred taxation (Note 21) B RIERLIE (H45E21) (31,570) (8,744)
Revaluation surplus recognised in other K E fth % E UK A RER A E
comprehensive income ek 94,712 26,233
(d) Impairment assessment (d) iJEEfE*‘WE

The Group operated factories in the PRC and Cambodia and
trading companies in Hong Kong under OEM segment. The
Group basically considered each factory and trading
company as an identifiable cash-generating unit (“CGU")
and performs impairment assessments on each of the CGU
with impairment indicators by considering the recoverable
amount of such assets.
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6.

ZEMNFFR

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(d)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group operates retail stores with furniture and fixtures
on leased properties with lease tenure generally ranging
from 1 to 5 years. Management regards each individual
retail store as a CGU and performs impairment assessments
on each of the CGU with impairment indicators by
considering the recoverable amount of such assets at retail
stores level.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, management
identified those factories/trading companies/retail stores with
impairment indicators and performed impairment
assessments to estimate the corresponding recoverable
amounts of their property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets.

The Group’s management has performed impairment
assessments on the relevant property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, by assessing their recoverable amounts
based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs of disposal calculations. The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs are determined based on value-in-use
calculations, which are higher than the fair value less costs
of disposal calculations. The calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
directors of the Company covering a 5-year period or
existing licensing periods and the renewal plans, and a
discount rate ranging from 12.0% to 19.3% for OEM
segment and 13.4% to 20.0% for Retail segment. Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 2.0% to 2.5% growth rate. This growth rate is
based on Consumer Price Index in respective region and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Key assumptions to the value-in-use
calculations include gross margins and operating costs for
the CGUs under OEM segment and CGUs under Retail
segment, as well as pre-tax discount rate for those CGUs.

Based on the result of the impairment assessment,
impairment loss of HK$79,233,000 was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2024 which was allocated as to
HK$62,991,000 to property, plant and equipment and
HK$16,242,000 to right-of-use assets.
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7. Leases 7. HE&
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) MEECEEEERERNEEHE
sheet
2024 2023
—E-mE —EC-=4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 4 J + Mo (50 4 109,181 123,165
Properties e 38,215 62,164
Office equipment FE NS 222 333
147,618 185,662
Lease liabilities HEBE
— Current portion — BIERER 26,646 22,978
— Non-current portion — FERIEAER > 27,764 42,250
54,410 65,228

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31 December 2024 were approximately HK$38,666,000

(2023: HK$49,807,000).

As at 31 December 2024, leasehold land and land use rights
with net book amount of approximately HK$75,407,000
(2023: HK$80,010,000) were pledged as securities for the

Group’s bank borrowings (Note 23).
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7. Leases (Continued) 7. HE(#&E)
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) RECEEABRBEIANEEHE
sheet (Continued) (%)
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group HE-T-_MF+-A=+—HIF
transferred certain portion of owner-occupied land use rights B ANEEBRIMNE 8 A i fE
located in Hangzhou to investment properties and rented FARENETHOEAREMEN HH
them out (Note 8): (Pff3ES) :
2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FaT FHBT
On the date of transfer N =R
— Fair value of land use rights — FTER L AEN
transferred AITE 10,756 60,530
— Carrying amounts of land use — FTEER 4 RS
rights transferred BREE (2,454) (14,578)
Excess of fair values over carrying AT ERBREERN SR
amounts 8,302 45,952
Less: deferred taxation (Note 21) R RIERIE (45E21) (2,076) (11,488)
Revaluation surplus recognised in RE M2 E WA EROE
other comprehensive income Btk 6,226 34,464
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) RHEEEZHENRZRBEANESEHE

statements of comprehensive income

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTER FHB T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENEER
assets
Properties L/ES 29,004 28,691
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE T3 J + b (50 4,530 2,299
Office equipment EEYNS 111 111
33,645 31,101
Impairment on right of use assets fFAEEERE (ME6d)
(Note 6(d)) 16,242 =
Interests on lease liabilities (Note 26) M E & & 2 (MizE26) 2,291 3,083
Expenses relating to short-term leases R HIFAEM X 9,906 9,650
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7.

Leases (Continued)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (Continued)
Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$4,266,000
(2023:HK$5,092,000), HK$21,090,000 (2023:
HK$19,032,000) and HK$8,289,000 (2023: HK$6,977,000)
have been charged to cost of sales, selling, marking and
distributing costs and administrative expenses, respectively.

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2024 was approximately HK$30,551,000 (2023:
HK$39,065,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties and office equipment.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed term of 1 to 5
years, but may have extension options as described in (e)
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease arrangements do not impose any covenants.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third-party
financing; and
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7.

FER

Leases (Continued)

()

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for (Continued)

3 makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are
not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or
rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues
its land and buildings that are presented within property,
plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the
right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less without a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise
IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

See Note 37.19 for the other accounting policies relevant to
leases.

125

/\\/ \

AY

& B 1% & B

o

HE ()

()

AEENHEETHREASTEE

(&)

. ETRHERHEARFE - flm
HR - BxR  EERER -

i @R AN CE BT T ERT S
B S NEREEERAN S
REBEOEHERAE - A AEEE
BUAZNERERBEEREERN X
A o

$‘§I$XT§E$E}J§%E§KEJZ%‘J$17JD
BB E R REE - A R Sk A R
EExﬁZHuT FFAHERE - ERE
HEA R EENRIEH AL
e HERBEERECAEEELE
TEMERAE -

ERREE—REEENERTHE
THE M E 25E 0 R AR E AR
RITE - MAKEAERTEEITERE
B AESENEENERSHHE
NEEREEERNE - AREY
SR A - BB RREN L MEZ
EYNEEETER  BEREREM
Fis AHEREREEMNER -

HRHERTENEHEEARAAR
BEEEMERBNNFRZERE
BRRAX it ARE - EHEER
Tafrﬂ‘fﬁ}%?%u EAZHENK12EA R
WA SEERERNEE - EEE
ﬁé@a‘%f SR RR A e/ NI AR
B

AR EAERENEME
2K 5E37.19 ¢

TR - &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

7. Leases (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that
are linked to sales generated from a store. For individual
stores, up to 100% of lease payments are on the basis of
variable payment terms and there is a wide range of sales
percentages applied. Variable payment terms are used for a
variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base
for newly established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number
of property leases across the Group. These terms are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

8. Investment properties
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(d)

(e)

Tﬁ#ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁ

DMFEHRERSEEHELNHE
%ﬁﬁf@ﬂ’]"f“ﬁmﬁ%%’& i E B IE
WWE  ERAENRIEROEERN
AR AE100%  BEFRANEE
FRLL OIS BB o {50 A RY 2 5 BRAG K
MERRABZE BRI HNE
FERAREBSME - BURRHE R
A E N RIE RS 3 A B B R
PRI A S BN ESARER -

ERRRILEERE
FEEETHERERSRERRELL
BB o ZERFRNER B ERRE
BREBENBREREERAL © i
R BB D IER R R R R (E R A
KETTR - MR RAARNHEEATT
fi

REWMRE

2024 2023
—E-mE =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 854,848 817,765
Exchange differences EHE=%E (21,882) (17,062)
Transfers from owner-occupied properties, HERYE(BRELH
including land use right, to investment A BAREDE
properties (Notes 6 and 7) (fFsE6 K2 7) 342,916 106,603
Transfers from investment properties HIEEMEEAGRAYE
to owner-occupied properties = (35,976)
Fair value losses at period end date REIR BBy A B8
(Note 25) (Fff&E25) (113,369) (16,482)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,062,513 854,848
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(a)

(b)

ZEMNFFR

= A e/ 23
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8. Investment properties (Continued) REY= (&)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (a) HZETERAKRBERZIELHE :
comprehensive income:
2024 2023
—E-E —ET-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
Rental revenue from property RERMY ERENE S
investment in Chinese Mainland N 96,431 44,332
Other rental income HmEs KA 7,083 9,516
Direct operating expenses arising from E4£ WA Z K E W EFT
investment properties that generate EEMNEELERY
rental income (21,529) (3,785)
81,985 50,063
Measuring investment property at fair value (b) BEAFEFEREWHE

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group's entities, is classified as investment property.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs. Subsequently, they are carried at
fair value. Changes in fair values are presented in profit or
loss as part of “other (losses)/gains, net” (Note 25).

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong and
Hangzhou are determined on the valuation carried out by the
directors or with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent qualified valuer (the “Valuer”), respectively.

Valuations were determined either with reference to current
prices in an active market of similar properties, or where
such information is not available, information from a variety
of sources were considered including:

3 current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature or recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

3 discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows; or
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8. Investment properties (Continued)

(b)

Measuring investment property at fair value

(Continued)

o capitalised income projections based upon a property’s
estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate
derived from an analysis of market evidence.

Fair values of the Group's investment properties located in
Hong Kong are determined by the directors of the Company
with reference to current prices in an active market of
similar properties.

Fair values of the Group's investment properties located in
Hangzhou are derived by the Valuer using the investment
method of the income approach, by taking into account the
current rental income from the existing tenancy agreements
and reversionary income potential by adopting appropriate
term/reversionary yields, which are derived from analysis of
sales transaction and the Valuer's interpretation of prevailing
investor requirements or expectations. For the reversionary
potential of the properties, the Valuer refers market price of
similar comparable properties.

Prevailing market price are estimated based on recent sales
transactions within the subject properties and other
comparable properties. The lower the prices, the lower is the
fair value. As at 31 December 2024, prevailing market prices
ranged from HK$18 to HK$44 (2023: HK$18 to HK$28) per
month per square meter were adopted in the term and
reversionary analysis for the Group’s investment properties in
Hangzhou.

Term and reversionary yields are estimated by the Valuer
based on the risk profile of the investment properties being
valued. The higher the yields, the lower the fair value. As at
31 December 2024, yield ranged from 6.50% to 6.75%
(2023: 6.0% to 6.25%) were adopted in the term yields
analysis for the Group's investment properties in Hangzhou.
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8. Investment properties (Continued) 8.

(b)
(Continued)

Measuring investment property at fair value

e IR

(b)

The following table analyses the investment properties

carried at fair value by valuation methods.

Fair value hierarchy

AY

il

BREY* (&)

BAFEFAEREWE (H)

TRAMAEEER A FETIRZ2R

RFERE

Fair value measurements using

RANTREZAFEFTE

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical assets observable unobservable
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
HEEER HBEARA BEARRH
TEB™ IS 2 WIE BR2Y BE2y
(& 511) (#&512) (4% 513)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Recurring fair value KEMHERATEGTE
measurements
Investment properties as at RZZE-MF+=AH
31 December 2024 =+—HZKREAE
L7ES
— Chinese Mainland — FRERH — = 1,040,513
— Hong Kong — BE = = 22,000
— — 1,062,513
Recurring fair value KEEANTEFNE
measurements
Investment properties as at RZZE==F+=A
31 December 2023 =+t—HZEREYE
— Chinese Mainland — A = — 824,848
— Hong Kong — BB = = 30,000
— — 854,848

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and

transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of

the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the

year (2023: Same).
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Investment properties (Continued)

Measuring investment property at fair value

(Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

N ol

8. REW= (&)
(b) BATFEFBRENE (R

AEAT THESH (R F3)
ZAFEHE

Investment properties

REME
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB i et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHIT FHIT
At 1 January 2024 R-E_HF—HA—H 30,000 824,848 854,848
Transfers from owner-occupied ¥ & B ¥ %
properties, including land use (B4 4 {5 FA4E)
right = 342,916 342,916
Losses from fair value AN EFAEMREES
adjustment (8,000) (105,369) (113,369)
Exchange differences EHEE — (21,882) (21,882)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-mME+=A
=+—H 22,000 1,040,513 1,062,513
Total valuation losses for the — 7E[E fth (&518), Uz
year included in profit or FRE ] TR ERATR
loss for assets held at the BEFTABRFZF
end of the year, under NEEREEERE
“Other (losses)/gains, net” (8,000) (105,369) (113,369)
At 1 January 2023 R-_ZTE-_=%—H—H 30,000 787,765 817,765
Transfers from owner-occupied ¥ 5 5 B %%
properties, including land use  (B¥E £ i fsF FA4E)
right = 106,603 106,603
Transfers to owner-occupied  #E A 5 A%
properties — (35,976) (35,976)
Losses from fair value AN EFAEMEGES
adjustment = (16,482) (16,482)
Exchange differences &R =% — (17,062) (17,062)
At 31 December 2023 R-EBE-_=%+=-A4
== 30,000 824,848 854,848
Total valuation losses for the — 7£[E fth (E518), Uz
year included in profit or FRFE ] T RLE R AT R
loss for assets held at the BESTABRPZF
end of the year, under N EEEERE
“Other (losses)/gains, net” = (16,482) (16,482)
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8. Investment properties (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Presenting cash flows

The Group classifies cash outflows to acquire or construct
investment property as investing and rental inflows as
operating cash flows.

As at 31 December 2024, investment property of
approximately HK$280,705,000 (2023: HK$289,228,000) was
pledged as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings (Note
23).

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. Lease income
from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Intangible assets 9. BEEE
Customer Supply Pollution
Goodwill ~ Trademark relationship right  Software rights Total
HE (5L EFB% R BH H5E @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT T THT T T
As at 1 January 2024 R-Z-ME-A-H
Cost A 90,574 55,740 14,341 75,936 2,395 190 239,176
Accumulated amortisation 25t — (53,801) (14,341) (41,495) (686) (190)  (110,513)
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (90,574) — — (34,084) — - (124,658)
Net book amount REFE = 1,939 = 357 1,709 — 4,005
Year ended 31 December 2024 HZ-Z_-WNE+=f8
Zt-HLFE
Opening net book amount FORAFE - 1,939 - 357 1,709 - 4,005
Amortisation B = (775) = (93) (335) = (1,203)
Disposal HE = = - - (59) - (59)
Exchange differences EREE — - — (5) (94) - (99)
Closing net book amount FREMFE = 1,164 — 259 1,221 = 2,644
As at 31 December 2024 R-Z-ME+ZA
Sr="[
Cost A 90,574 55,740 14,341 75,936 2,310 190 239,091
Accumulated amortisation ESE S = (54,576) (14,341) (41,593) (1,089) (190)  (111,789)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (90,574) — — (34,084) — — (124,658)
Net book amount REFE = 1,164 = 259 1,221 — 2,644
As at 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=£-5-A
Cost ( 92,786 55,740 14,691 77,790 2,453 195 243,655
Accumulated amortisation = (53,074) (14,691) (42,413) (354) (107) (110,639)
Accumulated impairment (92,786) = = (34,916) = = (127,702)
Net book amount BEFE — 2,666 — 461 2,099 88 5,314
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE-Z-=£+-F
=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE = 2,666 = 461 2,099 88 5,314
Amortisation B - (727) - (94) (342) (86) (1,249)
Exchange differences EXER — — — (10) (48) ) (60)
Closing net book amount FREAFE = 1,939 = 357 1,709 — 4,005
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=A
Sr="[
Cost A 90,574 55,740 14,341 75,936 2,395 190 239,176
Accumulated amortisation Rt — (53,801) (14,341) (41,495) (686) (190) (110,513)
Accumulated impairment ZEPRE (90,574) = = (34,084) = — (124,658)
Net book amount REFE = 1,939 = 357 1,709 — 4,005
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o

Intangible assets (Continued) 9. BEEE (&)

During the vyear, amortisation expenses of approximately FR - EERATL7750008 T (2T ==
HK$775,000 (2023: HK$1,015,000) and HK$428,000 (2023: % :1,015,000/%8 7T) }2428,000/8 7T (= &
HK$234,000) have been charged in selling, marketing and T =% :234,0008 ) EDRIBHE - EH
distribution costs and against revenue, respectively. R 5 s A R RO -

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life REERTIISHEANEREREZRIEAFTR
using the straight-line method over the following periods: MRAE BN ELEE :

Trademarks 10 years [ 104

Customer relationships 10 years LS 7RES 104

Supply rights unexpired periods of the agreements e 1o AN JE i B PR
Software 10 years /s 104

Pollution rights unexpired periods of the agreements BEs i 15 AN JE i B PR
See Note 37.6 for the other accounting policies relevant to BRAEETEEMBANEME TR NURA
intangible assets, and Note 37.7 for the Group’s policy regarding SERRERBEE - B2 528M337.6
impairments. N H5E37.7 ©

Subsidiaries 10. KB 2 &

The particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are set out as follows:

RBE-_NER T _=F+_A=1+—
B A5EFZHBARZFBHINMOT ¢

Country/place of

incorporation/establishment

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued/

Equity interest attributable

and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital to the Group
ERRL/BIER,
R EER R R TEXBREEHY BRT/BRRAFE AEEELRE
2024 2023
ZECQRE | CBD=F
Indirectly held:
MRS
Bolinding Hangzhou Textile Technology Limited  Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and US$30,000,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise retailing, trademark
holding and property
investment in PRC
BERSMMNGARRER AR RERM HEEERE KKEERTE  HEBRR 30,000,000% 7T
MERE (PE)
China Ting Fashion Trading Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in Hong US$500,000 100% 100%
company Kong
ERRREFERAA BE ARAR REER (BR) 500,0005 7T
China Ting Garment Mfg (Group) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading in Hong HK$5,000,000 100% 100%
company Kong
ERAR(EE)ERAF Bk ARAR KKE 5 (FE) 5,000,0007 70
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10. Subsidiaries (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/establishment

/\\/T\

10. ¥ AT (&)

Principal activities and

& B 1% & B

Particulars of issued/

AY

Ol

Equity interest attributable

and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital to the Group
ERAL/ RIBR,
hEREEERER TEEBREEHE BT/ BURAHE AREEARE
2024 2023
—B-mE | ZE-=fF
Concept Creator Fashion Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading in Hong HK$200,000 100% 100%
company Kong
EIBREARAR &% ARAR KKE 5 (BE) 200,000 7T
Concept Creator Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading in Hong HK$10,000 100% 100%
company Kong
EIBERAR BR ARAR KKE 5 (BE) 10,000/ 7T
Concept Creator Investments (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in Hong HK$100,000 100% 100%
Limited company Kong
EIBRE (BE)ERAA B BRAR REZKR(FE) 100,0007% 7T
Diny (Hangzhou) Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and US$3,130,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in Chinese
Mainland
i (M) BRERRE hERG IEBELE RKBERTERFERE 3,130,000% T
(R Mﬁ)
Finity Fashion (Shenzhen) Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in Chinese
Mainland
FEgea (RIN BB AR RER PIEEERE KREERTERFARE 10,000,000/ 7T
(R EIAH)
Finity International Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and US$22,900,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding and property
investment in Chinese
Mainland
FleaRRERERAR RERG  IEBELE BRREERTERBEERE 22,900,000% 7T
ARMERE (PEIR)
Hangzhou China Ting Fashion Company Limited  Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing in US$4,180,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise Chinese Mainland
MMEREEERAA RERN HEEERE BB (R EAi) 4,180,000% 7T
Hangzhou China Ting Tailored Fashion Company  Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and US$8,000,000 100% 100%
Limited foreign owned enterprise property investment in
Chinese Mainland
MMNESFERERERA A RER PEEERE HREERNERE 8,000,000 7
(R EIAH)
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10. Subsidiaries (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/establishment

e IR

10. BT (&)

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued/

AY

il

Equity interest attributable

and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital to the Group
BRI/ RIER
BEREEERER TEXBREE R BRT/BRBRAZE rEBEGRE
2024 2023
ZBCoNE | ZB-=F
China Ting Woollen Textile Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Wool textile and garment US$78,700,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise manufacturing and
property investment in
Chinese Mainland
ZRMEM) EGHFEERAR RERL - HNEEELR ENERRRRRER 78,700,000 7
NERE (PERN)
Hangzhou Fuding Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing in US$2,000,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise Chinese Mainland
RMNEREEER AR RERL - NEEELR PR B (Bl Puit) 2,000,000% 7
Hangzhou Fuxi Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment retailing in Chinese US$200,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise Mainland
MMNEEREEBR AR HRERN  NEBELE BREE (R EMM) 200,000% 7T
China Ting (Hangzhou) Textile Technology Chinese Mainland, wholly Property investment in US$16,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited foreign owned enterprise Chinese Mainland
ZR (M) HBHEERAR RERM  HEEERE MERE (REAN) 16,000,000% 7T
He Shan Tri-Star Silk Dyeing and Printing Work ~ Chinese Mainland, wholly Printing and dyeing of silk US$3,500,000 100% 100%
Limited foreign owned enterprise and other high quality
fabrics in Chinese
Mainland
BII=E2HANLCXERAF RERM  HEEERE HAREMBERLEZE 3,500,000% 7T
(R E )
Hong Kong Fuhowe Fashion Company Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Investment holding in HK$100,000 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
EEERRRERAA EE BRAA RERR(EE) 100,0007% 7T
Interfield Industrial Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Fabric printing and dyeing in HK$23,410,000 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
THEXERAA Bk ARAR ERER (BE) 23,410,000 7T
Shenzhen Fuhowe Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing in US$1,610,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise Chinese Mainland
RYERRRERAA HRERN  NEBELE PR S (R Bl i) 1,610,000% 7T
Zhejiang China Ting Brand Management Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and US$8,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited foreign owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in Chinese
Mainland
MIESmEERERAR RERN  NEBELE BREERTERBEEEE 8,200,000 7
(REINH)
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10. Subsidiaries (Continued) 10. ¥ AT (&)

Country/place of

incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and Particulars of issued/ Equity interest attributable

and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital to the Group
HERRL/ RIER/
hEREEERER TEXBREEHE BT/ BURAFHE AREEARE
2024 2023
Bo@E | CB-ZF
Zhejiang China Ting Jincheng Silk Company Chinese Mainland, wholly Silk fabric weaving in Chinese US$3,820,000 100% 100%
Limited foreign owned enterprise Mainland
MIESLHAGRBERAR RER PEEERE HBE R BE (R E ) 3,820,000% 7T
Zhejiang China Ting Knitwear Company Limited ~ Chinese Mainland, wholly Knitwear manufacturing in US$3,500,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise Chinese Mainland
MIESHBRERAR RER PEEERE HEmEE(PEA) 3,500,000% 7T
Zhejiang Concept Creator Fashion Company Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and US$13,500,000 100% 100%
Limited foreign owned enterprise property investment in
Chinese Mainland
LA EEERAR hERG IEBELE RKEERMERE 13,500,000% 70
(R EA)
Zhejiang Fucheng Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing in US$9,000,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise Chinese Mainland
HTERERERAA RERG NEBELR FKELE (R B Ait) 9,000,000% 7
Zhejiang Fuhowe Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing in US$4,200,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise Chinese Mainland
HIERERERAA RERG  IEBELR R EE (h Bl Ai) 4,200,000% 7T
Zhejiang China Ting Group Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Properties holding and RMB88,000,000 92% 92%
foreign owned enterprise garment trading
MIZEREREREARA hEAN  MEBELE RENERRRES AR #:88,000,0007C
Zhejiang Huali Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing in US$2,150,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise Chinese Mainland
HIZEBREBRAA RERG  IEBELE R EE (R EA) 2,150,000 70
Zhejiang Huayue Silk Products Company Limited ~ Chinese Mainland, sino-foreign  Spun silk fabric weaving in US$2,500,000 55% 55%
joint venture Chinese Mainland
MTEBAARMERA RERH - PHNEERE BEERAE (RER) 2,500,000 70
Zhejiang Xinan Fashion Company Limited Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and US$8,580,000 100% 100%
foreign owned enterprise property investment in
Chinese Mainland
HIEREEERAA REAG  IEBELE RREERNERE 8,580,000 7
(R EI )
China Ting Finity International Fashion Retail Chinese Mainland, wholly Garment manufacturing and US$10,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited foreign owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in Chinese
Mainland
ZRFRaBRERTERRAA RERNM - PNEBERE RREERTERBARR 10,000,000% 7T
(R EIAH)
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10. Subsidiaries (Continued)

Country/place of

incorporation/establishment

and type of legal entity
EMAL/ BIER,/
wHREERRER

e IR

10. BT (&)

Principal activities and
place of operations

IREBREEDLE

Particulars of issued/
paid-in capital

BRI/ BUBRAHE

AY

o

Equity interest attributable

to the Group

Hangzhou Weiding Technology Limited

MM ERHRERAR

Yudu Chuangyue Huali Intelligent Garment

Company Limited

THABERERREERAR

China Ting Fashion (Ganzhou) Company Limited

ZRREG (BN FRAF

Guizhou Tianzhu China Ting Garment (Mfg)
Company Limited (Note (a))
EMERBEZERHRARAR (MiEE)

Finity Garment Company Limited

FRAERRERAA

Shanghai Mingji Clothing Company Limited

LBRERHBRAR

Ganzhou Fuhao Technology Company Limited

ENEZHBEERAR

The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of
these subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Chinese Mainland, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

RERY  NEBELE

Chinese Mainland, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

RERY  NEBERE

Chinese Mainland, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

RER  NEBELE

Chinese Mainland, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

RERY  NEBELE

Chinese Mainland, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

RERY  NEBELE

Chinese Mainland, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

TERLE  IEBELE

Chinese Mainland, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

BN IEBERE

Garment trading and retailing
in Chinese Mainland

KKEHREE (PERNL)

Garment manufacturing in
Chinese Mainland

KR EE (PEA)

Garment manufacturing in
Chinese Mainland

PR EGE (R EIA)

Garment manufacturing in
Chinese Mainland

PR B4E (R B A3t

Garment manufacturing and
retailing in Chinese
Mainland

RERBERTE (TEAL)

Garment manufacturing in
Chinese Mainland

PKEGE (R EIA)

Garment manufacturing in
Chinese Mainland

KB (R ElAh)

RMB30,000,000

AR #30,000,0007T

RMB25,000,000

AR #25,000,0007T

US$6,000,000

6,000,000 7T

RMB8,000,000

AR #8,000,0007

US$30,000,000

30,000,000 70

RMB200,000

AE#200,0007C

RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007T

LREREEERR/IE
AEBRHBNEEFEZAEENBAR -
BEERA NEEMHBARZENSRR

Group. Giving details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of BiEK -
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Note: Bt 3

@) Guizhou Tianzhu China Ting Garment (Mfg) Company Limited has been (a)

deregistered on March 2024.
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1.

Investments accounted for using the
equity method

Set out below are the associates and joint ventures of the Group
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The entities listed below have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held

directly by the Group.

Country/place of
incorporation/

Principal activities

11.

AY

& B 1% & B

oy

/\\/T\

ERARSEARNRE

TERBINAEBMR S _NER-_T=_=F
+ZA=+—RAZBERRREE QR T
PIBERBESERTAREROBRE 25T
BRHAEEEESS -

establishment and and place of Equity interest Nature of the  Measurement Equity interest
type of legal entity  operations attributable to the Group relationship method attributable to the Group
TMRL/ ERER
WEREZERBELN FTEERERLCEHY AEEELRE BEME FRFE AEEELRE
2024 2023 2024 2023
“RCRE | ZTo=F “RCRE | ZTo=F
HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT FTHT
Hangzhou Ranyue Clothing Chinese Mainland, Garment 13.33% 13.33%  Associate Equity method 224 388
Company Limited limited liability wholesaling and
(“Hangzhou Ranyue”) company retailing
MMNBRREBRAR REIAM BRAR  HRBERTE NG| En%
(TRt 1)
Hangzhou Gaoming Chinese Mainland, Garment retailing 14% 14%  Associate Equity method — 8,665
limited liability
company
DL REAM  BRAR  KKEE NG| En%
China Ting Fashion Limited Hong Kong, limited Garment 55% 55% Joint Venture Equity method = =
liability company manufacturing in
Vietnam
EZSREERAR & BRAR PR BE (M) RN En%
Total equity account 224 9,053
investments
B ERERE
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11. Investments accounted for using the 1. FAREEARNERE (&)
equity method (Continued)
Movements of investments accounted for using the equity method FRAEREARNREZEHMT -
are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-ImEF =%
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTER FHIT
At 1 January —H—H 9,053 10,348
Deemed disposal (Note (a)) RAEH & (FiaE(a)) — (679)
Share of losses DAL EE (110) (384)
Impairment DERE] (8,657) —
Exchange differences E 7 Z= R (62) (232)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 224 9,053
Note: LiEsa
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s equity interests in one (a) HE_T-_=F+-_A=+—RHILFE  ~5E
of the associates was diluted from 28.57% to 13.33% due to injection of RER—RBEARNRER=2BILE=1E
capital by three independent third parties in an aggregate amount of RMB1.6 BAHARKI6BEE L (K1 8EEEIL)MA
million (approximately HK$1.8 million). 28.57%#HE13.33% °
The Group has no contingent liabilities relating to its investments REEN EEHESRAEREARNIRERR
accounted for using the equity method. AR BIE -
Directors of the Company are of the view that the financial RATIZEERBERAREREARNIEE 25
information of the investments accounted for using the equity BEMEAREBMEWIEEKN - B ER
method is not material to the Group and thus no disclosure has UEEH R -
been made with this regard.
12. Assets classified as held for sale 12. 7 EARABELHENEE
2024 2023
—E-F —E-=
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Land use right and buildings + iR R RETF 5,914 —

A subsidiary of the Group entered into an agreement with local
government to sell a parcel of land and building at a total
consideration of RMB63,565,000 (approximately HK$68,641,000).
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13.

re IR R M A

Inventories 13. F&
2024 2023
—E-EF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Raw materials JRM 74,568 82,291
Work in progress EEm 89,999 108,974
Finished goods IFK 683,391 675,165
847,958 866,430
Less: Provision for inventories B EERME (159,258) (169,941)
688,700 696,489

The costs of individual items of inventory are determined using
weighted average costs. See Note 37.10 for the Group’s other
accounting policies for inventories.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to approximately HK$763,945,000 (2023:
HK$813,605,000).

{ERI7F 58 B B RAS T {8 F hnde T g B AN
e ARAKEEFERRENEMESK

K B2 HKE37.10 ¢

REASWAABHERAZTERALN A
763,945,000 (=T =— = &F :

813,605,000 7T) °

Movements on the provision for impairment of inventories are as FEREREBNEHNOT -
follows:

2024 2023
—EB-mEF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
At 1 January mn—H—H 169,941 327,739
Charged to the consolidated profit or loss & A#RA 8% 21,206 105,133
Write-off 88 (28,355) (254,552)
Exchange differences MEH =% (3,534) (8,379)
At 31 December R+ZZA=+—H 159,258 169,941
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14. Financial instruments by category 14. ZERHNE S Z2E€MIT A
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost R#ERAY R CREE
Trade and bill receivables EWE 5 R & ERERE 275,961 241,837
Other financial assets at amortised cost REEKARTRE 2 Ethe
BE 115,989 89,811
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMRITIER 131 1,396
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE&EFMEER 140,510 308,282
FVPL RATEIRERERPEE
ZERMEE 9,881 7,883
FVOCI RATFEFAEMEEBAZ
PRIEE 3,114 7,836
545,586 657,045
Financial liabilities SHMEE
Liabilities at amortised cost REERAY R AR
Trade and other payables & B 5 B 3% I H A FE S
FIE 660,103 560,560
Lease liabilities HESE 54,410 65,228
Borrowings B 599,506 383,257
1,314,019 1,009,045
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15. Trade and other receivables

15. EWEZRAK

NN s |

AY

oy

H BRI’

2024 2023
—E_4g —E-=4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FHEIT

Trade and bill receivables (Note (a)) EWE 5 ERAR R ERER
(Pt 5 (a)) 360,919 429,647
Less: Loss allowance B BB (84,958) (187,810)

Trade and bill receivables, net EWE 5 R K ERERE
R RE 275,961 241,837

Amounts due from related parties FE W A& 75 5B

(Note 34(c)) (F3E34(0)) 23,214 28,882
Prepayments TE A R IB 57,441 79,553
Deposits and other receivables 2 & H fth fE Y518 94,079 83,817
Less: Loss allowance B E R (1,304) (22,888)
173,430 169,364
449,391 411,201

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.
Note:

(a) Trade and bill receivables

The ageing analysis of gross trade and bill receivables based on invoice date is as

e BT FORREER - %8 RIRERE

= o

=
A

i)

(a) W E 5 R R R B

RWE SRR EURERERERAAZRR

follows: AT
2024 2023
—EoMF —To=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
0 to 60 days 0ZE60H 216,877 193,890
61 to 120 days 6121208 46,419 46,698
121 to 180 days 121£180H 31,654 10,589
Over 180 days HiB180H 65,969 178,470
360,919 429,647

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-

current assets.
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15. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(a)

Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Details about
the Group’s impairment policies and the calculation of the loss allowance are
provided in Note 3.1(b).

For OEM garment sales, the Group’s trade receivables from its customers are
generally settled by way of letters of credit or telegraphic transfer with credit
periods of not more than 90 days.

For sales of branded fashion apparel to franchisees, the Group normally requests
payments in advance or deposits from such customers, with the remaining
balances settled immediately upon delivery of goods. The Group also grants open
account terms of 30 credit days to long-established customers with good
repayment history.

Retail sales are settled in cash, by credit cards, through internet payment service
providers or collected by department stores/online retailers on behalf of the
Group. The agreed credit terms with credit card companies are usually within 14
days. Department stores and online retailers are normally required to settle the
proceeds to the Group within 2 months from the date of sale.

Bill receivables are with average maturity within 2 months.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair
values.

As at 31 December 2024, the trade receivables from top five customers
accounted for 3.38% (2023: 23.2%) of the total trade receivables. The loss
allowance decreased by HK$102,664,000 (2023: increased HK$54,001,000) for
trade receivables during the current year. Information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and the impairment of trade receivables can be found in
Note 3.1(b).

Movements on the allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

15.

=
AT

AY

7

& B 1% & B

il

FEWL B 5 AR 7R B H 4t B UK TR

(%)

BeE : (4)

(a)

FEUE 5 R R U R iR (48)

BRE SESNSREGHNEESERER B
FUBEEEARMERS  AIRAFEFE - K
SEFHARKESERNBEZDERAENRER
B AU HEE R BRFI R R IR KRS E -
BRAREREB KRB BB BT HEOFBEHIN
i 3E3.1(b) ©

RRBRERERKHEENS AEEAREEES
ZRRESER MU ERRERSFXEE
EEHTBE0H °

RHBERERETZRRERHEENS - A%
BE-REBRZEEFPBANRARES - REAR
BmERNRER AEE TS RERCEHR
FrRATFPRHGEFEAZCERSHR -

ZEDURSRERT  BEB XN RBHRE
BREEXHAEAR/ R ETERREREEIR -
HEARARBEZEERBERI4AUAA - K
SE-REXFEATARGLTERARHEE AL
=t ME A A A & BB H TS 50R -

FERREZ FHEBHARMMEAA -

FEWE 5 IR R A B RIAZ REERE R F
BEfEE °

RZZE-WME+=—A=+—0  REFNEAEF
#RE I E 5 BR RS FEIE 5 IR SR ABRER)3.38% (=
T o= :232%) c RAERE - RKREFHRERN
185 18 B 48 R £ 102,664,000 T (Z T = =4 :
Hn54,001,000% 7T) © 7 B8 7K 5k [ By E B 0 1= B L
8 K FE e & 5 BR SR (E B & KL AT 2B R 53,1 (D) ©

PR 5 B BB ERE E BT

2024 2023
—E-ME —ET-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At 1 January n—A—AH 187,810 134,893
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated Rir& B (GEA) Ik

profit or loss (1,490) 54,001

Write-off I 85 (101,174) —

Exchange differences N =5 (188) (1,084)

At 31 December KR+=ZA=+—H 84,958 187,810
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15. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15. EWE ZEF R HEWRFRIE

(&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s net trade and other REBEEWRE ZRR R EMEWHIE (T2
receivables (excluding prepayments) are denominated in the BEREAFE) FEZEEEATIESE
following currencies:
2024 2023
—E-ImEF —Eo=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHATT
HK$ AT 620 70,914
RMB AR 161,494 249,273
us$ ET 229,836 11,461
391,950 331,648
16. FVPL 16. BAFVEIIREEZERPEE
ZEREE
2024 2023
—E-EF —Eo=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHAT
Listed equity securities (Note (b)) ERANGE S (M (b)) 9,881 7,883
9,881 7,883
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16. FVPL (Continued)

ZEMNFFR

Movement of the Group's FVPL for the years ended 31 December

2024 and 2023 is as follows:

e IR M A

16. BAFEIIREBRERPEE
ZERMEE (&)
AEEHE_T-_NFR-_FT=_=F1+=A4
=+ —HUEFENRAFEIRERREERT

EEZOMEERDMT :

Cash
management
products,
Listed equity at quoted
securities price
(Note (b) (Note (c)) Total
RBESIERRY
ETREAES RLBEER
(Fff &£ (b)) (P £ (c)) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2024 R-_TE_WMF—-H—H 7,883 = 7,883
Additions = 2,720 — 2,720
Disposals BE (1,484) — (1,484)
Net fair value gains — realised AN ENEFE — BEER
(Note 25) (Hfi5£25) 21 = 21
Net fair value gains — unrealised N ENEFE — REHR
(Note 25) (Hfi5£25) 944 = 944
Exchange differences EHEE (203) = (203)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE_JNF
+=—A=+—A” 9,881 — 9,881
At 1 January 2023 R=ZF=_=F—H—H 7,858 34,242 42,100
Additions NE 1,660 43,448 45,108
Disposals BE (1,502) (77,451) (78,953)
Net fair value gains — realised AN ENEFE — BEZR
(Note 25) (Fft3E£25) 130 395 525
Net fair value gains — unrealised N ENEFE — RER
(Note 25) (Fft3E£25) 322 = 322
Exchange differences HEHZER (585) (634) (1,219)
At 31 December 2023 RZTEZ=%F
+=—A=+—H 7,883 — 7,883
Notes: Bt 3
(a) Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOC| are measured (a) ARHEBHERARIRD FEF AR M EERAE
at FVPL. See Note 37.8 for the remaining relevant accounting policies. EHNEERATEIREERRTEETE A
FAEMRER G ER - B0 E37.8 ¢
(b) The fair value of all equity securities is determined with reference to their current (b) MERABLHNAFENZEERERTHBHER

bid prices in an active market.
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16.

17.

FVPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) The fair value of cash management produ

16.

cts is determined with reference to

expected return rate of 1.25%-3.4% provided by the underlying banks. The

investments in cash management were deno

minated in Renminbi. Changes in fair

value were recognised in “other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

AY

NN s |

oy

BRAVEIIRERSERPERE
ZEMEE (&)

BEE - (48)

(©) ReBEBRERODTE2SZEBIRTRENE
BRI E1.25%£34%MEE - BeEREMK
BUARMEE - AFELZIRGAZERER
A E b (B51R), Iz F 8 | R iR -

FVOCI 17. BAFEFAHMEZEKRAZ
TREE
2024 2023
—E-ME —TZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Listed equity securities (a) ETRAFE S (a) 3,114 7,836

Movement of the Group’'s FVOCI

for the years ended 31

December 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

AEEBE_ T NER-"ZE_=F+"A
=t —HIEFENZAFEFAEMEEK

AZREEZBNT :
Listed
equity Securities
(Note (a)) Total
ETRAES
(MtzE(a)) “st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
At 1 January 2024 R-—ZE-_mM&E—H—H 7,836 7,836
Net fair value losses charged to equity AR EEERFE (4,703) (4,703)
Exchange differences bEH =5 (19) (19)
At 31 December 2024 RZTZEF
+=-ZA=+—8 3,114 3,114
At 1 January 2023 ﬁ@_y__ﬁ A—H 4,212 4,212
Net fair value gains charged to equity FTAERE QT E R FRE 3,592 3,592
Exchange differences MEH = 32 32
At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=
—A=+—H 7,836 7,836
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17. FVOCI (Continued)

18.

Note:

ZENFFR

(a) As at 31 December 2024, the Group's FVOCI comprised 777,778 (2023: 777,778)
common stocks of Xcel Brands, Inc., a company incorporated in the United
States and listed in the NASDAQ. The fair value of all listed equity securities is

based on their current bid prices in an active market.

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged

bank deposits

17.

18.

e B RN

BAFEFAHMGEERAZ

EWMEE (&)

Notes:

(a) R-ZZ-ME+-A=+—H AEERATFE
FTAHAMZE WA Z € /& E £ 1EXcel Brands,
Inc. (R ERFEMAKZITRMETER TR
R #9777, 778 (Z T = =4 : 777,778/ & B
B A ERAZFHRTEHERHLE TR

W% LM E R REMEE -

RERBEESEAEBUAREE

HIR1T K

2024 2023

—EME —T-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHBT

Cash at bank and in hand RITHEBREFERS 138,566 306,075
Short-term bank deposits (Note (a)) RERITER (@) 1,944 2,207
Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&EFAEER 140,510 308,282
Pledged bank deposits (Note (b)) B RITE I (b)) 131 1,396
140,641 309,678

The Group's cash and bank balances are denominated in the

following currencies:

AEENRES RIRTERA T EREFHE

2024 2023
—EE B =4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FH T

HK$ AT 2,910 6,051
RMB (Note (c)) AR (KH15E(0) 113,287 229,305
us$ I 23,763 72,524
Other currencies H g 681 1,798
140,641 309,678

Term deposits are presented as cash equivalents if they have a

maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition and

are repayable with 24 hours’ notice with no loss of interest. See

note 37.12 for the Group’s other accounting policies on cash and

cash equivalents.
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18. Cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is 1.1% (2023: 1.16%)
per annum; short-term bank deposits have a maturity ranging from 7 days to
less than 3 months.

Bank deposits of approximately HK$131,000 (2023: HK$1,396,000) have been
pledged for trade finance facilities made available to the Group by relevant
banks. The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits is 0.1% (2023:
0.2%) per annum.

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are deposited with
banks in Chinese Mainland. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances
into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of Chinese Mainland is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
Chinese Mainland government.

18.

/\\/T\

AY

& B 1% & B

oy

RERBEESEABUREE

R ITER

Bk

(a)

(b)

(&)

BEHRTFAZBERFNERIA% (ZT=4F:
1.16%) : RERTERZIHENF7EE3EA
BT »

#7131,000/ 7T (=T = =4 : 1,396,000/ 7T) Z
RITERE FEMA  LAXEEREHEBRITZ
BEHRMEEE CEARTERZERFFRA
01%(ZF==%:02%) °

AEMAAREE RS RBITHEBKATFRR
RN Z RIT - ZFEAARBTEZ AR LR
SNE R B S B B A - B R B A R AT
MR 2 SN B ) AR R 59 PR 4

19. Share capital 19. R
Number of shares Total
BB E #Et
‘000 HK$'000
(FAR) FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRZ0.10B T 2 TRAR
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 NRZE_=F—HA—HAMNUK
and 2024 TEC=HFR-TNF
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EBTRAR :
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F—A—HUK
and 2024 R ER-ZTUEF
+=—A=+—8H 2,099,818 209,982
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Statutory reserves include statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund. In
accordance with relevant rules and regulations on foreign investment enterprises
established in Chinese Mainland, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
an amount of their profit for the year to the statutory reserve fund, until the
accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The statutory
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to make good of
previous years’ losses or to increase the capital of these subsidiaries.

The appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund is solely determined by the board of
directors of the subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland. The enterprise expansion fund can only
be used to increase capital of group companies or to expand their production operations
upon approval by the relevant authority.
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EREEBERERAT —T-NEFH N T R
2 =’ \j 7_|777 #& % ’z,f\T A
20. Reserves 20. f#fE
Retained
Share-based Capital Earnings/
Share Capital  Contributed Statutory ¢ Jempti I Exchange (accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserves reserve reserve reserves reserve losses) Total
PEUEGE | RERA/
RHER ERGE BARH EERE HEE BXREHE i HERE  (RitERE) @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TEn TEn TEn TR
(Note)
(WizE)
At 1 January 2023 W=E==f-f-B 978,251 7,746 (4,624) 239,238 7,07 2241 370,347 146,687 377,203 2,124,160
Loss for the year FRER = = - - - - = = (361,526) (361,526)
Currency translation differences EEaEEg = = = = = = = (46,757) — (46,757)
Fair value gains on FVOCI RAFEARBZERAZ
SREENDATEYE = = = = = = 3592 = = 3592
Revaluation surplus upon transfers of ERNEBARENEZER
owner-occupied properties to BE - NRHE
investment properties, net of tax - - - - - - 60,697 - - 60,697
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=%+-f=1-H 978,251 7,746 (4,624) 239,238 7,07 224 434,636 99,930 15,677 1,780,166
At 1 January 2024 W=E-mE-A-A 978,251 1,146 (4,624) 239,238 707 2.4 434,636 99,930 15,677 1,780,166
Loss for the year FNER - - - - - - - - (481,425)  (481,425)
Currency translation differences ERAEER - - - - - - - (43,441) - (43,441)
Fair value losses on FVOCI RAFEFARBZERAZ
SREENDTERR = = = = = = (4,703) - - (4,703)
Revaluation surplus upon transfers of ERNEBAREMEZ SR
owner-occupied properties to BH NRHA
investment properties, net of tax - - - - - - 99,187 - - 99,187
At 31 December 2024 R-E-mE+-A=+-H 978,251 1,146 (4,624) 239,238 707 2.4 529,120 56,489 (465,748) 1,349,784
Note: 3

AERBEREAELAREREERRES - RENTERA
RN ERECEZ AR ERE - AR R 2 B
BRARAK—SFFEENEEHBRDIEATE  EER
AAATRESREERTMARS% - LEMBBIER X
FERTES (& ] A UA T # AR 5 2 IS 1R S Nt S FT R

AZER -

CEBRESZARMAERTENEENBRARAZESE
EE - REMBIBHIAER  CEXFRESETAEENE
BE@ETARZERS KR ERAHEERS -
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21. Deferred income tax 21. EEFEH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a B HIRAIEORTT 2 REFI LA BN ERBIE & B
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current EA RN AR TE B (K 48 B IR IEFT S R B [ — B
AR - MeREETEMEHEER
BE  HEHBEAOT -

tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2024 2023

—E-lF —TZ=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH T FET

Deferred income tax assets RIEFSIHERE 16,540 54,500
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHAE (158,320) (158,771)
(141,780) (104,271)

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are

expected to be settled after more than 12 months.

The movements in net deferred income tax liabilities are as

RS TE BE RRIEFF ST B ETRHINE

BT —ERKBEHE-

BEFREHAEFHE 2 EHNT

follows:
2024 2023
—EB-EF —Eo=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
At 1 January n—A—H (104,271) (28,776)
Charged to the consolidated profit or loss BireBa b (MHE27)

(Note 27) (8,762) (55,811)
Charged to equity B kR (33,646) (20,232)
Exchange differences EHER 4,899 548
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (141,780) (104,271)
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e B RN

21. Deferred income tax (Continued) 21. EZEREH (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during BEMSHEERBBERFERN ZEE) (T5
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ERE - AREEE &) AT :

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Decelerated
tax Provisions for Net fair value ~ Government Lease
depreciation inventories losses of FVPL grants liabilities Tax losses Total
BATENR
ERERT
REZER
BE2
AVE
BEHERE FEBK BERE BAENE HESE REBE @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TAT TER TET TAT TER

Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=6—-f—H 23,225 94,063 1,714 1,516 21,789 — 142,307
Exchange differences EXZES (430) (1,848) (32) (33) (530) (191) (3,064)
(Charged)/credited to the Rir& B (GIB)/FA

consolidated profit or loss (22,795) (72,853) (1,568) (336) 1,964 35,329 (60,259)
At 31 December 2023 and RZB-=%+-A=1+-HR

1 January 2024 “Z-m¥-A-A - 19,362 114 1,147 23,223 35,138 78,984
Exchange differences ERER (264) (46) (20) (20) (394) (9,336) (10,080)
Credited/(charged) to the REABHHA/ (1K)

consolidated profit or loss 25,850 (19,235) 1,191 (332 (1,869) (23,098) (17,493)
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-ME+=A=T-H 25,586 81 1,285 795 20,960 2,704 51,411
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21. Deferred income tax (Continued)

/\\/T\

& B % oK MY T

IEFEFRS R ()

Revaluation of  Undistributed
Accelerated tax  buildings and  profits of PRC Right-of-use
depreciation land use rights entities assets Total
EfBTR PELE
MRHERE THhERE KABERN RRAREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET TR TR
Deferred income tax liabilites ~ EEFEHEE
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%—-f—A 255 139,831 9,208 21,789 171,083
Exchange differences EHZES = (2,890) (192) (530) (3,612)
Charged/(credited) to the BEARENR/ (A
consolidated profit or loss 20 (1,733) (4,699) 1,964 (4,448)
Charged to other comprehensive BEMZARANR
income - 20,232 — - 20,232
At 31 December 2023 and WZBZ=F+ZA=+-Ak
1 January 2024 —E-_N4%-A-H 275 155,440 4317 23,223 183,255
Exchange differences EHEE = (14,533) (52) (394) (14,979)
Credited to the consolidated profit or B A B A
oss (465) (3,651) (2,746) (1,869) (8,731)
Charged to other comprehensive BEMZERANLR
income = 33,646 = = 33,646
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-mE+=-A=+-AH (190) 170,902 1,519 20,960 193,191
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried 1h HE I8 7% 75 7 %5 PT i 3 R 2R B AR A0 s 7|

forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of approximately
HK$439,415,000 (2023: HK$295,938,000) in respect of losses
amounting to approximately HK$2,553,636,000 (2023:
HK$1,979,728,000), that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. The tax losses expire from 2025 to 2029 (2023:

2024 to 2028).
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22. Trade and other payables

ZENFFR

e B RN

22. ENEZIRFREMENSFIE

2024 2023

—E-NE —TE =4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Trade and bill payables ENESERRENZRE 387,934 322,453
Accrued employee benefit expenses s E B R FIFA X 31,650 33,984
Customer deposits XFEE® 64,949 67,372
VAT and other tax payables A T R B e A I8 19,457 1,531
Accrued operating expenses JERT & ER Y 52,458 31,002
Other payables H M 8 < FRIE 181,425 164,666
Amounts due to related parties (Note 34(c))  FEARBE:E 5 2 IE (B 5E34(c)) 6,636 8,455
744,509 629,463

The aging analysis of trade and bill payables based on invoice date

ENEZEARENRERER AR ZREK

is as follows: DHTEAT :
2024 2023
—E-mEF T =F
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 242,760 252,344
31 to 60 days 31£60H 25,402 24,650
61 to 90 days 61290H 87,469 13,592
Over 90 days im0 H 32,303 31,867
387,934 322,453

Bill payables are with average maturity dates of within 2 months.

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.
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22. Trade and other payables (Continued) 22.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables
(excluding accrued employee benefit expenses and VAT and other

tax payables) are denominated in the following currencies:

NHIR) WEREEIA T3 B EHE

2024 2023
—E-ImEF —EC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FiB T
HK$ AT 10,610 63,249
RMB AR 667,325 526,711
Other currencies HhEE 15,467 3,988
693,402 593,948
- =g
23. Bank borrowings 23. RITEK
2024 2023
—E-@mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHBT
Current BN EF

— bank borrowings, secured — |RITEF - HER 305,938 232,147
— bank borrowings, unsecured — RITEF - EEA 107,771 77,246
413,709 309,393

Non-current JERNEA
— bank borrowings, secured — SRITIEN - BEM 164,258 73,864
— bank borrowings, unsecured — SRITIEN - IR 21,539 —
185,797 73,864
599,506 383,257
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23.

FER

AY

& B 1% & B

o

/\\/ AY

Bank borrowings (Continued) 23. SRITER (&)
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BT :
2024 2023
—EoNE —ET-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Bank borrowing due for repayment within —FRNIHEENHFES
one year which contains a repayment on KEBERZRITER —
demand clauses — secured A 305,938 232,147
Bank borrowing due for repayment within —FRNIHEENHEFES
one year which contains a repayment on KEBERZRITER —
demand clauses — unsecured KR 107,771 77,246
Bank borrowing due for repayment after one — & 1& 2| Hi B8 2 SR1TE R
year — secured — BHEH 164,258 73,864
Bank borrowing due for repayment after one — & 1& 2| HifE 18 2 SR1TE R
year — unsecured — IR 21,539 —
Total bank borrowings RITIE R4 FE 599,506 383,257

At 31 December 2024, the secured bank borrowings were secured
by certain buildings (Note 6), right-of-use assets (Note 7) and
investment property (Note 8) with aggregated net book value of
approximately HK$703,203,000 and corporate guarantees from the
Company and certain subsidiaries.

The current ratio of the Group as of 31 December 2024 is lower
than the covenanted current ratio set forth in a loan facility letter
under which the amount of the Group’s outstanding borrowing
was HK$71,709,000. Accordingly, borrowings of HK$71,709,000
were classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2024. The
lender is aware of the situation and has not requested any early
repayment all or part of the outstanding borrowing. Nor has the
lender informed the Group that the Company is in default on such
amount of the outstanding borrowing. The Directors confirm that
the Group is seeking a waiver from the lender on the low current
ratio which would be retroactively applied throughout the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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23.

Bank borrowings (Continued)
An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’'s bank

23.

N ol

R 17 & =X ()

AREBRTIEFRAERBEREE 20

borrowings by type and currency is as follows: m
2024 2023
—EopmEF —E_=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THT FHET
HK$ at floating rates BT R ENFIE 136,167 174,087
RMB at fixed rates AR - BTE A = 301,526 148,477
RMB at floating rates ARE ZEFI=x 161,813 60,693
599,506 383,257
The effective interest rates per annum at the balance sheet date REZER 2 BEBRFREMAT :
are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-IEF —E=F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
THET FET
HK$ BT 3.76% 5.76%
RMB AR# 3.51% 4.08%

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.
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23.

24,

ZENFFR

Bank borrowings (Continued)
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

23.

e RN

R 17 & =X ()

AEEREDERBENT

R

2024 2023
—E-mE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHT
Floating rate expiring beyond one year EBAE - —FRER 38,935 170,449
Fixed rate expiring beyond one year BEEAMZE - —F&Em 18,919 122,114
Fixed rate expiring within one year BEEME - —FRNE®R = 27,588
57,854 320,151

Other income, net 24. HAW A F R
2024 2023
—E-mE —E=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Government grants BB & 8,132 8,453
Rental income He WA 7,083 11,049
Others HAh 878 520
16,093 20,022

Note: B 3

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchases of property, plant and equipment are

deducted from the carrying amount of the relevant assets. Such grant is recognised in the
profit or loss over the life of the depreciable asset as a reduced depreciation expense.
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25. Other (losses)/gains, net 25. Hith (&8) W=HFE
2024 2023
—E-E —TE-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Net exchange gains ERHSZ 55 H8 5,056 5,828
Net fair value gains on FVPL — realised N EIREERKRPE
(Note 16) EZ%@%FE’J INSIER
mFEE — BER
(PfiFEE16) 21 525
Net fair value gains on FVPL — unrealised & AF(EFIEEBRZRPE
(Note 16) EZ%@%FE’J INSIER
,q}%'ﬁ - 5'{ """"
(PfiFEE16) 944 322
Fair value losses on investment properties KEYENRATEEE
(Note 8) (Bt =E8) (113,369) (16,482)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREEN
equipment B8 (11,773) (4,748)
Loss on early termination of leases RELIHEEEERNER (271) 2,592
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEENEIE (59) —
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 31) HE KB ARMNEER
(PRFEE31) — (1,722)
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate RIEHE —EBELFH
BB — (679)
Modification of lease contract BRHEEEH 3,321 —
Others EAh 732 520
(115,398) (13,844)
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26. Finance (costs)/income, net 26. ALE (BRAR), /WA FE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Finance income — interest income on BMEWMA — FEWAKRE
— bank deposits — |RITEFEXR 5,009 3,760
— promissory note — AHER = 1,576
5,009 5,336
Finance costs — interest expenses on BEKRA — FERAL KA
— bank borrowings — RITERK (22,070) (17,878)
— lease liabilities — HEAE (2,291) (3,083)
(24,361) (20,961)
— amount capitalised (Note) — BEAR{e5E (M) 1,984 5,903
(22,377) (15,058)
Finance (costs)/income, net BME (KA) WA FHE (17.368) (9,722)
Note:  The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be fisE: RETHTFUERMEOERRASERERNE
capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the Group’s b E B EF N A & B /18 K ATE A 8 I T R
borrowings during the year, in this case 3.73% (2023: 3.58%). K3.73% (ZFT =4 :3.58%) °
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27. Income tax expense 27. BBIHAX
2024 2023
—E-MF —TZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Current income tax BVERFR 15 %

— Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) — BBFER (@) 2,487 2,659
— Chinese Mainland enterprise income tax — B AP ZEEH

(Note (b)) (Bt 5 (b)) 21,384 17,564
— Withholding tax — BB = 208

Deferred income tax (Note 21) EEFTISEL (BT aE21)

— Enterprise income tax or profits tax — DEMEHRFEE 11,508 60,510
— Withholding tax — BN (2,746) (4,699)
32,633 76,242

Notes: Bt 5E -

(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 8.25% on the (a) HE_ZT_WNE+_A=+—HBILFE - Bt
estimated assessable profit up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part of JEZR i FI| T #8:82,000,00078 i 5 - BAEFE
estimated assessable profit over HK$2,000,000 for the year ended 31 December TLARE R 8.25% 1 I B - T st (b &1 FERBUR FI
2024 (2023: Same). #i82,000,0007 LA EREME DM E » ABIE

16.5% BB (ZF == : HR) °

(b) Chinese Mainland enterprise income tax is calculated based on the statutory profits (b) A B ) b B AT 1S B D B R E P B A S AR SZ
of subsidiaries incorporated in Chinese Mainland in accordance with Chinese O BT RR A AR A B A st B K B OA R AT B9V TE A
Mainland tax laws and regulations. The standard PRC enterprise income tax rate BmaE RBE_T_MOFR-_T_=F+=
is 25% during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. Certain of the A=+—HIEFE SENPRCEMEHREE
Group's subsidiaries enjoy the preferential income tax treatment for Small and R25% c AEBEMETHEB AR ZZ/NMIGEN
Micro Enterprise with the income tax rate of 20% and are eligible to have their BEFAEBAFS  FIERHER20% XEERK
tax calculated based on 12.5% or 25% of their taxable income. RHERRUAMI12.5%K25% -+ BRTE o
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27. Income tax expense (Continued)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

AY

e RN

il

FrEBiMx (&)
REBMBBRAERABEZHBEERGS
B ENER 2 MEFER R E 2 2R
MRERWNT :

2024 2023

—E-E —ET-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHBT

Loss before income tax bk BT 1S B A E5 18 (462,741) (286,180)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable %7 &)5A#E & 4 F@E A 2 2N

to profits in the respective jurisdictions R E 2 FHIE (104,486) (68,434)

Income not subject to tax BAERRZ WA (8) (234)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax B AN RER 2 FHIEEE

losses (4,051) (994)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TNAIH0F 2 B 912 715
Tax losses and deductible differences REERIELEFT BT EENT

for which no deferred income tax assets HEBRERERE

was recognised 143,477 149,680

Withholding tax TEE (3.211) (4,4917)

Income tax expense FrEHif X 32,633 76,242

The tax charge relation to components of other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year ended 2024 is as follows:

BE_ T NWFILFEAMGEZERKRA (S
BYERBY < BB BT

Before tax Tax After tax
BR % Al B1E R &
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FET
Currency translation differences B EE (44,089) — (44,089)
Fair value gains on transfers of EAMERLHEREEA
owner-occupied properties and land & E W E 2 A FERZE
use rights to investment properties  (Fff7£65.7)
(Notes 6 and 7) 134,584 (33,646) 100,938
Fair value losses on FVOCI BAFEFAHMEREKAZ
TRIEEN QD TEER (4,703) — (4,703)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) — E# 2 MU A (EE) 85,792 (33,646) 52,146
Deferred tax (Note 21) EET IR (FfsE21) = (33,646) —
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28. Expenses by nature 28. RMESEZHX
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN &

— Audit services — BRRB 1,650 3,670

— Non-audit services — FEZR — 652
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) B A EEE (M) 1,203 1,249
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERERETE

equipment (Note 6) (MizE6) 75,346 24,310
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) {EFAEEET & (Mi7£7) 33,645 31,101
Employee benefit expenses (including EERFIMZ (BEESM

directors’ emolument) (Note 29) %) (HizE29) 392,054 378,286
Changes in inventories of finished goods and ZLAk fh & 7£ B fa 17 & B &)

work in progress 167,705 119,205
Raw materials and consumables used EFERRME KB D 596,240 694,400
Processing and subcontracting charges MIE»BEMA 121,059 185,403
Direct operating expenses arising from EXHESWAZEEMEZ

investment properties that generate rental BEEERS (KMEs)

income (Note 8) 21,529 3,785
Operating lease rental in respect of property, ¥1% - E Mk 2 &2

plant and equipment HEMS 9,906 10,678
Provision for impairment for inventories FERmEREE(ME13)

(Note 13) 21,206 105,133
Transportation and logistics expenses ERRYRFAY 34,274 28,731
Commission and related expenses e kEERAX 84,814 101,879
Licence fee RiEE 51,196 23,484
Others Eth 250,850 160,231
Total cost of sales, selling, marketing and HEKA  $HE - EHRD

distribution costs and administrative SHAC AR A R AT A X 42 58

expenses 1,862,677 1,872,197
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29. Employee benefit expenses (including 29. EERAFXZ (BEEEMH

directors’ emoluments)

£)

2024 2023
—EZWNF =%
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHEx FHIT
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TERIEL 332,111 324,039
Pension costs — defined contribution plans EBREKA — FEREERK

(Note) =t &l (FfEE) 44,557 24,514
Staff welfare BT @A 15,386 29,733
392,054 378,286

Note: B3

FAEETHEMBARZERA2EBEHTRAEERE
2 R B BR ARG B o NS [ b B R AR R M T
BRRENFHESHFSO—EL Pl RZT8IHR - AR
BRZBRABHEE -

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement scheme administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on
certain percentage of the average employee salary as agreed by local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group has also established a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered
funds. Both the Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employee’s relevant income up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per month.

FAEETREBRLAGHEARSTE ([RRSHS]) -
BECHEZEEABUGTIAEE - AEBMREERHA
BAREEHBBAZSBIELHER LRASEER
1,500 7T ©

(@) Five highest paid individuals (a)
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four (2023: four) directors of
the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 36. The emoluments payable to

EEBREFMAL

AEEFASZETHzABALEE
ARRRIUNEEE(ZT =410
%)  EM SR E36FT 25 2 54T
RRER - FR - BB T —BAL(Z

the remaining one (2023: one) individual during the year are To=&: 2SN
as follows:
2024 2023
—EBME —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Basic salaries, housing allowances and EAN#H& - BEZEE R EAM

other allowances b=4-1 1,170 863
Contributions to pension plans BRIREFH IR 18 18
1,188 881
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29.

30.

& B % oK MY T

/\\/T\
Employee benefit expenses (including 29. EEGAAX (BRESMH
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) €)(48)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a) HEBESHFMAL(E)
The emoluments fell within the following band: MefHENT
Number of individuals
AE
2024 2023
—E-F ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Emolument band < &5 E
HK$500,001-HK$ 1,000,000 500,0017% 7T £ 1,000,000/ T — 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 1 —
30. BREE

Loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the Group's loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$481,425,000 (2023: loss of HK$361,526,000) and weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of
2,099,818,000 (2023: 2,099,818,000).

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential shares.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares deemed to be issued under the
share option scheme as there are no outstanding options during
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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31. Disposal of a subsidiary 31. HE—FBHNEBAFA
During the year ended 31 December 2023, 100% interest in a HE_Z-_=F+_A=+—HIEFE K
subsidiary of the Group was sold to a third party. Details of the SE—HNBARMI100%EREHET—
disposal are as follows: BE=J c BEFBWOT ¢
2023
—T-=F
HK$'000
FAET
Cash received BWRE —
Net assets of the subsidiary disposed of LEWBRRNEEFE 1,722
Loss on disposal HEEENEE (1,722)
Cash proceed from disposal, net of cash disposed of HEMSRE  HKREHENERE S
Cash considerations received BWRRERE —
Less: cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary B HERBARIMNR e RREEE
disposed of HH (24)
Net cash outflow on disposal PEEEMNEeRLFE (24)
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32. Notes to consolidated statement of cash 32. AR ERERKRME
flows
(a) Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operations (a) KEEBBEHLEMARSFHEEEN
is as follows: ™
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHBT
Operating loss K EE (434,597) (276,074)
Adjustments for: FEE
— Depreciation of property, — W BERRETE
plant and equipment 75,346 24,310
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets — (£ FHEZETE 33,645 31,101
— Amortisation of intangible assets — & & /&= # £ 1,203 1,249
— Loss on disposal of property, — LEVE  BEKEZHEH
plant and equipment &8 11,773 4,748
— Loss on disposal of intangible — HEEMEAENERE
assets 59 —
— Gain on modification of lease — BEHHEESNEEN K=
contract (3,321) =
— Net fair value gains on FVPL — BRATEIRERERF
BREZeMEENAT
B =% (944) (322)
— Loss on disposal of a subsidiary — HE—RINEAREEDN
18 = 1,722
— Losses/(gains) on early termination — IR R ILFAEANEEDN
of lease contracts BB (W) 271 (2,592)
— Fair value losses on investment — REMEZ A FEEIE
properties 113,369 16,482
— Provision for impairment of — GERERE
inventories 21,206 105,133
— (Reversal of)/provision for — eMEEREEIS
impairment losses on financial (Bm), HtE
assets (9,922) 73,176
— Provision for impairment losses ~ — Hf& QR E 2R EEE
on investment in an associate B 8,657 —
— Provision for impairment losses — — 3E<& @& E R (B E B &
on non-financial assets 79,233 —
— Dilution loss arising on a reduced — 7 — A5 & 2 B R E 2
stake in an associate B EEE Er iR = 679
Changes in working capital: CEEg 2B :
— Inventories — FE (28,056) 43,679
— Trade and other receivables — EWE 5 R &AM
RIA (38,785) 31,710
— Trade and other payables — BERE SRR H A E R
HIA 77,560 (229)
Net cash (used in)/generated & (FTR)/FiSR & F 8
from operations (93,303) 54,772
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32. Notes to consolidated statement of cash

flows (Continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out the reconciliation of liabilities arising

e B RN

2. ZERETREBERME (F)

(b) BEFHEUR
AEHINEREFEREEBHEL

33. Commitments

from financing activities for each of the years presented. 2 BEHEK -
Lease
Liabilities Borrowings Total
HEEE (RN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET T
At 1 January 2023 R—ZE-_=%—H—H 90,353 322,813 413,166
New leases FrIgEE 49,807 — 49,807
Financing cash flows MERERE (31,608) 68,801 37,193
Disposal of lease HEHEE (41,926) — (41,926)
Exchange differences M X =5 (1,398) (8,357) (9,755)
At 31 December 2023 RZZTZ=%1+=A
=+—H 65,228 383,257 448,485
At 1 January 2024 R=ZF-_WmF—H—H 65,228 383,257 448,485
New leases MEAEE 38,394 = 38,394
Financing cash flows MERERE (28,260) 224,654 196,394
Disposal of lease HERE (1,992) — (1,992)
Lease modification HEBE®R (18,181) — (18,181)
Exchange differences EHERE (779) (8,405) (9,184)
At 31 December 2024 RZZEZWF+=A
=+—H 54,410 599,506 653,916
3. AE
(a) Capital commitment (a) BAREIE

At 31 December 2024, the Group had capital commitments
related to constructions of property, plant and equipment
which were contracted but not provided for as follows:

R-ZTE-mME+=—A=+—8  &&
EEEEESME BEREESH
WEFTHERBENERNEENT

2024 2023
—E-mEF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Contracted but not provided for: ERTH{E R B4
— Property, plant and equipment — ME - BEREE 25,955 117,211
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33. Commitments (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments as lessor

The Group leases offices, dormitories and plant under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms between 1 and 5 years, escalation claims and
renewal rights.

At 31 December 2024, the Group had total future minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

N ol

(b)

33. #&¥E (&)

REBERE — FERHEAA

7 S5 RS R A 4SS TR B 3R
FRAE R BB - REAED
FHOESSEZR)  MAEREL
HEBTR -

R-ZFE_WFE+-_A=+—H &&
AR B DA T F BRI 7 2 N A) B A
BHE 2 ARZEAEFBRA LT
;o

2024 2023
—EB-F —Eo=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
— No later than 1 year — THEBIF 62,533 42,058
— Later than 1 year and — BB FETBE2F
no later than 2 years 53,334 29,220
— Later than 2 years and — HBB2FETBRE3F
no later than 3 years 36,965 18,431
— Later than 3 years and — HBBA3FETBRAIF
no later than 4 years 33,534 5,931
— Later than 4 years and — HBB4AFETBBSF
no later than 5 years 27,713 4,284
— Later than 5 years - 5F LA I 36,778 7,356
250,857 107,280
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33. Commitments (Continued) 33. &IE (&)

(c) Operating lease commitment as lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

() REHERE — EREBAA
PARHEEHER TRREGEUH

cancellable operating leases not recognised in the BERAERN B ERRKEHENRERE
consolidated financial statements are as follows: W
2024 2023
—E-ImEF —Eo=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT
Land and buildings T RAEF
— No later than 1 year — THEEB1F 25 720

34. Significant related party transactions

The Group is controlled by Longerview Investments Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), which owns 71% of the
Company’s shares. The remaining 29% of the shares are widely
held. The ultimate parent of the Group is Longerview Investments
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands).

The directors are of the view that the following companies are
related parties of the Group:

34,

EABEELFRS

A % B Alongerview Investments Limited
(RHEBELZBSEMA) FriEsl - 555
AR % 2R ° 88 N 229% B AR
FA - NEBE 2 &K E QT Klongerview
Investments Limited (7 5 8 2 2 B S aE A

) e

BEERRTIRARAAREE 2BE -

Name Relationship with the Group £ B AL E 2 B R

Hangzhou Ranyue Clothing An associate MMNBHREERA AT BEAR
Company Limited

China Ting Fashion Limited A joint venture ERREFRAA BERA]

The name of Hangzhou Ranyue referred to in the above represents
management’s best efforts at translating the Chinese name of
these companies as no English name has been registered or
available.
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34. Significant related party transactions

/\‘/T\

& B % oK MY T

3. EXBAELXRZ (&)

(Continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HEELETZRS
In the opinion of the directors, the transactions below were EERR TXZRSTRBERIE
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business and BEBAEREPET MBEXHZE
the pricing of these transactions has been determined based BRI E A KB B E S B RER &
on mutual negotiation and agreement between the Group Wk M EE ©
and the related parties.
2024 2023
—EomE —TZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Sales of garments to Hangzhou Ranyue [AIAL /1 £5 4% $8 & A < 963 11,545
Other service to Hangzhou Ranyue AT £ 15 4 AR 75 200 21
(b) Key management compensation (b) EEE

The aggregate remuneration of key personnel management,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
certain of the highest paid employees, as disclosed in Note

29 and 36, is as following:

FEE EEE/\EE’J%?M%@%’E(E%W
29 R36FTIREN T ARREE KA
FEESHFMATHESF) DT :

2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Salaries and other short-term employee ¥ K H 4 58 Hf gl
benefits 15,273 15,559
Post-employment benefits RIKAEF 136 143
15,409 15,702
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34. Significant related party transactions 3. EXBERIRS (&)
(Continued)
() Year-end balances with related parties () HEBEEHZERER
2024 2023
—E_MF —TZ=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHx FAT
Receivables from associate JE Wi Bk 5 R B FRIE 23,214 28,882
Payables to associate iR AN B 3,697 5,451
Payables to director R ESEHIE 2,939 3,004
* The terms of balances with related parties disclosed in Notes 15 and 22. * BRBET 2 82 AR D BB KT 15 % 225
0
The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their I EHEHZRABEEREATERSE -
fair values.
The amounts due from/to related parties were denominated FEMFEHRRIE S RIBAARKERHE ©
in RMB.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, previously HE-T-=F+-A=+—HI#F
provided for the amount due from joint venture amounting E ﬁHIJEEJE[L&fWG%’ATMIEaﬂm
to HK$3,265,000 have been written off. 9 $ 15 3,265,00078 T C 1EMUSH °
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N ol

35. XPRIzEEEBREHFES

the Company 1)
2024 2023
—EMF —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZZE 1,217,068 1,217,068
Current assets mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i =N B 342,698 537,241
Other receivables and prepayments H b fE W 5k IE R TE A SRR 338 327
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTE 439 945
343,475 538,513
Total assets EEHAE 1,560,543 1,755,581
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity holders AARREFEAEBLESR
of the Company
Share capital R 209,982 209,982
Reserves f# 1,347,511 1,543,411
Total equity RSB 1,557,493 1,753,393
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities nEEE
Other payables and accruals  HMENZCARESEA | 3050 | o 2,188
Total equity and liabilities EEREBEAE 1,560,543 1,755,581

ARREERBRN-_ZF-_RAF=A=1+—
AREESHAETRRESE -

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 31 March 2025 and was signed on its behalf.

TING Man Yi TING Hung Yi
TH5R TH#R
Director Director

BE o
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35. Balance sheet and reserve movement of 35. AAFZEEEBRLEES

- ==
the Company (Continued) g (&)
Note:  Reserve movement of the Company L0 e N o = )
Other Retained
reserve earnings Total
H b s REBA Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2023 R=ZT=—=4—A—8 1,455,617 87,135 1,542,752
Profit for the year F A A — 659 659
At 31 December 2023 R-—ZE-_=F#+-A=+—8H 1,455,617 87,794 1,543,411
At 1 January 2024 R=—F-—mE—A—8 1,455,617 87,794 1,543,411
Loss for the year FHNERE — (195,900) (195,900)
At 31 December 2024 R-FB-_WFE+—A=+—H 1,455,617 (108,106) 1,347,511
36. Benefits and interests of directors 36. EE v EAIRER
The remuneration of each director of the Company paid or payable AEBEENSIENARARSES 2 H5IE7
by the Group is set out below: R
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_MFE+_A=+—BILEE
Estimated
money value Contributions
Discretionary of other Housing  to pension
Fees  Basic Salary bonus benefit  allowances plans Total
R Rt BihestE
he Exge BERA SREE EERE #3 @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name #4 TER TR TET TER TR TET FER
Ting Man Yi T#R — 3,000 - - - - 3,000
Ding Jianer TER = 2,130 = = = 1 2,141
Ting Hung Yi (Chief Executive Officer) TR (TH&H) = 3,000 - - - 18 3,018
Cheung Ting Yin, Peter KEE = 1,625 = = = 18 1,603
Cheng Chi Pang (note (a)) 0 (@) 112 — - — — - 112
Wong Chi Keung E2R 288 = = = = - 288
Leung Man Kit RRG 192 - - - - - 192
LI Yuet Mui, Xera % R 168 - - - - - 168
760 9,755 - - - 4 10,562
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36. Benefits and interests of directors

re IR R M A

36. EE @AM R ER (B)

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-_=F+-_A=1+—HILFE
Estimated
money value Contributions
Discretionary of other Housing to pension
Fees  Basic Salary bonus benefit allowances plans Total
E B EREHE
e HA§Hé BETEa SEfEE EEZH {3 act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name #E TR THEL T TR THEL T TR
Ting Man Yi TER - 3,000 - - - - 3,000
Ding Jianer TER = 2,130 = = = 18 2,148
Ting Hung Yi (Chief Executive Officer)  TH/R (fTH&H,) = 1,800 = = = 18 1818
Cheung Ting Yin, Peter REE = 1,625 = = = 18 1,643
Cheng Chi Pang Eihd 19 = = = = = 192
Wong Chi Keung BR 283 = = = = = 288
Leung Man Kit RRE 192 = = = = = 192
LI Yuet Mui, Xera % Atk 168 = = = = = 168
840 8,555 = = = 54 9,449

note (a): Cheng Chi Pang retired as independent non-executive Director of the Company
as at 31 July 2024.

No emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or payable,
directly or indirectly, to the directors during the year (2023: Nil).
No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services (2023: Nil). There are no loans,
quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (2023: None).

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2023: None).

No incentive payment as an inducement for joining the Group or

compensation for loss of office was paid to any Director during the
years ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies

37.1 Principle of consolidation and equity accounting

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see (d) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

175

37.

/\\/ AY

Hitb e ERE

pu]

AY

& B 1% & B

o

ATEREBE

371 RERBEREFZEARNER

(a)

(b)

B&g 2 a
B/~ RHE N SR B B H g A 42
HEZMEER (BHEERBE
f2) EREEEY AR E
S EE RN EUS T B @ H R iE
BEETEBLYZENME
BENFEZERR  AAEH
HEREAESNE -HBAR
mIZHIEEE T ASEE AL
FERRE - WL
e AFELEFEEERE -

%Emﬂﬂﬁﬁzﬂﬂ%ﬁ?&% :
RRER G2 RBHWHE T
LMJHé] RAERBETEE

o EARERRR ST HE
E%ﬁéﬁﬁf)ﬁi@ﬂ'ﬂ@%?l\ o I8
B BRERTEEL

“E L/{Eﬁﬁéﬁiﬁ%@@ﬂmim
Z R

WS ERNE A B H %
BaETEEIE

(R NSIETES PN SataalIE S
EHIE R D B EBN A 2
misR R HERNE
ERERAIR -

BENE
BENAEAEEEHEERE
HE DB T TR

HEZGIROAEER - KK
B —RIFEH20%E50% K

R -RBERRZRENS
R ARERBIAERSETAA
fR (AT X)) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.1 Principle of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

()

(d)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.

The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (see (d) below), after initially
being recognised at cost in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

income.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

losses,
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.1 Principle of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. The carrying amount of
equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment
in accordance with the policy described in Note 37.8.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS Accounting Standards.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

371

37.2

37.3

37.4

Principle of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(e) Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

includes direct attributable costs of

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The executive directors, who assess the
financial performance and position of the Group and makes
strategic decisions, has been identified as being the chief
operating decision maker.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in

HK$, which is the Company’s presentation currency.
The functional currency of the Company is US$.

178

37.

N ol

fnf
gl

=

—~ \
P |
Bt

~

REASTHHEEE

37.1 LKERERESEARNEA

37.2

37.3

37.4

(&)

FEZERzSE (&

() S=R=FNCTER: ANV
B & e D EDRE KR
HHXBAZESN  REHBE
FEE Al 2 A TERR ) SR P
RICPIEENDREER S RE
Bz (MER) -

(e)

BB BRE

PABT B 2 B 2 4B TH AR AR =R B
AR -RABEREZEEEGLE
A-MBARZEETIRARRZE
Yo Ko FE W AR B R B AR -

e € B 188 x B4 38 W R 2 IR B B 38 3%
B A RNREEIRAKZ ZEBA
BE - HBILMBRRAINREZ
REEBBGA M BRERMINKERE
HEEFE(BERE) 2KEE A
RWBZERE ZRBRBHBER
EEATRERIR -

DEERE
LEDHRERRNEBEERRAR
T2 AR E 2T AER—B - 7E
A& E PR BR AR KA H B RDR
ROATEFTCERN AETBEER
TA e

HEE]RE

DERZHE K
AEERERZUBREME
FBHE  DRAEBEEME
ZEBEBERRMAEE ([
BREBDHE - AR BHRE
BT BTRARAZ
E2HRE®K - ARRIZIEEH
RETT -

(a)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EREEEZRERDA

ZEMNFFR

37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges or are attributable to part of
the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented
comprehensive income on a net basis within other

gains, net.

in the consolidated statement of

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive recognised
comprehensive income.

income are in other
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.5 Property, plant and equipment

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 37.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings, costs of plant
and machinery, and borrowing costs arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the year of construction
or installation and testing. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to respective property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.6 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

()

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over
the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments.

Trademarks

Trademarks are shown at historical cost. They have a
finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of trademarks over their estimated useful lives
of 10 years.

Customer relationships
Customer relationships acquired
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the
customer relationship of 10 years.

in a business
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.6

37.7

37.8

Intangible assets (Continued)
(d) Supply rights

Supply rights represent the rights to sell pre-
determined amount of garments to customers over
certain periods of time pursuant to the legal binding
agreements entered into between the Group and the
Supply rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Supply rights are amortised over the unexpired periods
of the agreements.

customers.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies
following measurement categories:

(a)

its financial assets in the

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss), and

= those to be measured at amortised cost.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be in profit or loss or other
comprehensive For investments

recorded
income. in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value

through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

instruments

Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost.

= Amortised cost:

cash flows

Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.8 Financial assets (Continued)

()

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI:
contractual cash flows and for selling the

Assets that are held for collection of

financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When
derecognised,
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from

the financial asset is

the cumulative gain or loss

equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective
Foreign exchange gains and
presented in other gains/(losses)
impairment expenses are presented as separate

income from these
interest rate method.
losses are
and

line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

there s

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for
further details.
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37. Summary of other potentially material 37. HtMEEE RS HEME
accounting policies (Continued) (&)

379 EHEmIT A

37.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the balance sheet where the Company has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty. The Group has no offsetting
arrangement of financial instruments.

37.10Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

37.11Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note 15 for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group's
impairment policies.

37.12Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.13Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

37.14Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

37.15Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the

Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

37.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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37. Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

37.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely

through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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37. Summary of other potentially material 37. HtMEEE RS HEME
accounting policies (Continued) (&)

37.17 BN A R AR E P 18 % (4&)

37.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current

tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax

(b) iEilf/?f S (&)
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balances relate to the same taxation authority. WAERH BREEHRIBEEKR
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where BENTHEHE EEBEKE
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and ] 54 il 17 9 #E ) BT 4 8 I
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise RFEEEFENRABERE
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. ERGEEAE  BIBIBAHIEE
ERMEBEEE TEHE -

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

37.18Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
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settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably &t BlEg iR % $%@Tﬁﬁ‘d’5
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating BIEEERER

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks

value

specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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37.19Leases
Leases are

37.19/ €
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recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.
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Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially

measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed payments (including in-
incentives

substance fixed payments), lease

receivable.

less any
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

CRREEERDSIATSIEZ KA

following: =g

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; . HEBBEZVRTESE &
and

. any lease payments made at or before the . A6 B BA sk 2 AT E H 89 (£ AT
commencement date less any lease incentives HENFREMBE MR ZEAE

received. BE -

MR E R A E R A 2 4 B S
HrREENANERERE -

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

HISHHEMEEEEERERBE
RIE RERENERAER S
X o EHHEEREH 12 A LIAR
WS - EEEEEZZRIETERE

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets mainly

comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.
Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Entity-specific details about the Group's leasing policy are
provided in Note 7.
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37. Summary of other potentially material 37. HtMEEE RS HEME
accounting policies (Continued) (&)

37.20Interest income 37.20F B A

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Interest income from FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains or losses on these assets as part of “other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Interest income from financial assets that are held
for cash management purposes is presented as “finance
income” where it is earned. Any other interest income is
included in “other income”.

37.21Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

. the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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37. Summary of other potentially material 37. Ht EEE RS HERME

accounting policies (Continued) (#&)

37.22Government grants 37.2B £
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair EHAEREFTWI M e EAKE
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant 1 38 B8 BT B BT A5 I AR B - BUR R B @
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached GUE AT E®ER -
conditions.
Note 24 provides further information on how the Group BRAREENAEHBNHMS®TE
accounts for government grants. FTREHE— S ER RN 24 -
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TFMBEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE—Z_MF+_A=+—HILFE

AEBEBENENBRFERERNFEREE &
BERIFEN LRSI EHMT -

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set

forth below.
For the financial years ended 31 December
BE+T-A=t-BHLBEEE
(Amounts expressed in HK$'000, unless specified)
(REEERAND ZUTBERL)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-TFE T —E-—f ZT-_=F |ZEBE-_NF
Revenue LAON 1,542,425 1,609,266 1,757,823 1,663,121 1,605,353
Cost of sales $HE AR (1,318,699)  (1,475,386)  (1,458,028)  (1,345,676) | (1,314,967)
Gross profit EH 223,726 133,880 290,795 317,445 290,386
Other income, net H Ao Uy A %58 22,610 18,129 28,078 20,022 16,093
Other gains/(losses), net Hib Uz /(E518) 48 608,271 25,557 30,076 (13,844) (115,398)
Selling, marketing and distribution 58 + & $5 & 2 S A
costs (188,174) (212,003) (234,762) (284,631) (303,149)
Administrative expenses THAX (259,189) (267,125) (238,308) (241,890) (244,561)
(Provision for)/reversal of impairment % @& s B8 (B E)
loss of financial assets /e (109,667) (13,980) (21,407) (73,176) 9,922
Provision for impairment loss of non- JFE& @& & R (B 18 5 15
financial assets = = = = (79,233)
Provision for impairment loss of BENRRERERS
investment in associate B = = = = (8,657)
Operating profit/(loss) R (ER) 297,577 (315,542) (136,528) (276,074) (434,597)
Finance (costs)/income, net ME (RA) WA FE (4,477) 7,377 2,073 (9,722) (17,368)
Share of results of investment DEEAEREARD
accounted for using the equity REXE
method 166 (4,031) (2,401) (384) (110)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERANER,(Ei8) 293,266 (312,196) (136,856) (286,180) (452,075)
Income tax expense Frs#mAX (140,272) (19,998) (14,751) (76,242) (32,633)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEER,(E18) 152,994 (332,194) (151,607) (362,422) (484,708)
Non-controlling interests EE e £ (6,950) (1,101) (71) 896 3,283
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity AR RERE AENL
holders of the Company w A/ (E18) 146,044 (333,295) (151,678) (361,526) (481,425)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—ZT_NMF+_A=+—HILFE

As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
(Amounts expressed in HK$'000, unless specified)

(BREEEBN 2UTETLS)

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

—E-FF ZT-—F ZT--F ZT-=F |ZZTZWF
Non-current Assets EMEEE 1,362,536 1,518,644 1,663,781 1,949,087 1,958,903
Current Assets MENAE 2,651,575 2,467,195 1,992,582 1,458,063 1,326,044
Total Assets BELE 4,014,111 3,985,839 3,656,363 3,407,150 3,284,947
Non-current Liabilities FERBEE 131,404 159,085 243,199 274,885 371,881
Current Liabilities mEaE 1,008,192 1,112,796 1,058,465 1,128,035 1,341,398
Total Liabilities BEBE 1,139,596 1,271,881 1,301,664 1,402,920 1,713,279
Total Equity BEeE 2,874,515 2,713,958 2,354,699 2,004,230 1,571,668
Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) RBEE/(AR)FE 1,643,383 1,354,399 934,117 330,028 (15,354)
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities ZEZERTSEEB 3,005,919 2,873,043 2,597,898 2,279,115 1,943,549
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Particulars

B

Approximate
Gross Floor Area
(Square meters)
BABEEEE
(FFFK)

T =

Lease Term

i

~

7
= ~

L
X

Usage

R

Group’s
interest (%)
AEBHES
(%)

Portions of an industrial complex located at
No. 18 Wu Zhou Road,

Yun He Jie Dao,

Yuhang District, Hangzhou City,

Zhejiang Province, the PRC

iz 70 R BT &

TN BRI [2

EATE

T EE 1855

WIXERD

Portions of an industrial complex located at
No. 195 Xin Tian Road,

Yuhang Economic Development Zone,
Yuhang District, Hangzhou City,

Zhejiang Province, the PRC

iz 70 R BT &

TN BRI [2

BRI AR P B 2 (=

R E&E1955%

WIXERD

Portions of an industrial complex located at
No. 191 Xin Tian Road,

Yun He Jie Dao, Yuhang District, (No. 191 Xin
Tian Road, Yuhang Economic Development Zone),

Hangzhou City,

Zhejiang Province, the PRC

iz 70 R BT &
TN T BRI 2

EATE

FREE1915%
(RMEERERATREZR1915E)
WIXERD

An industrial complex located at

No. 56 Bei Sha Dong Road, Lin Ping District,
Hangzhou City,

Zhejiang Province, the PRC

iz 70 R BT &

BN B (2

1Y R B 56 5%

WIXE

70,241.0

76,917.5

50,313.0

18,852.0
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Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium term

T

Medium Term

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

100%

100%

100%

100%



Schedule of Principal Investment Properties

SREMBERERAT —T-HEFH . . w
S # TEREMER

_—

Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group'’s
interest (%)

FEEHER

Particulars (Square meters) Lease Term Usage

BB EEEE

B

(PHK) HHB 5ik:S

(%)

Portions of an industrial building

(Unit 701 of Block 1) located at

No. 56 Bei Sha Dong Road, Lin Ping District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
A2 PR BT & SN

B F 12 45 R 5657

B—iE BT

(118701 %)

Portions of an industrial complex located at
No. 56 Bei Sha Dong Road, Lin Ping District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
A2 PR BT & SN

B F 12 45 R 5657

WITEERD

An industrial building located at

No. 56 Bei Sha Dong Road, Lin Ping District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
A PR BT & SN

B F 12 45 R 5657

B —ETEEF

An industrial building located at

No. 56 Bei Sha Dong Road, Lin Ping District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
A2 PR BT & SN

B F 12 45 R 5657

B —ETEEF

Portions of an industrial complex located at
No. 56 Bei Sha Dong Road, Lin Ping District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
A PR BT & SN

B F 12 45 R 5657

WITEERD

2,617.9 Medium term Industrial

A Hf T

13,187.7 Medium term Industrial

A Hf T

25,018.81 Medium term Industrial

A Hf T

8,359.24 Medium term Industrial

A Hf T

21,648.55 Medium term Industrial

A Hf T
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RYEVA
ZEREMER
Approximate
Gross Floor Area Group’s
Particulars (Square meters) Lease Term Usage interest (%)
BMOBEEEE KEERER
3 (EHkK) HHE 2§73 (%)
Portions of an industrial complex located at 14,593.52 Medium term Industrial 100%
No. 56 Bei Sha Dong Road, Lin Ping District,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
iz PSR BT A N i H Hi I%
&R 5657
WIXERD
An industrial building located at 18,964.64 Medium term Industrial 100%
No.153 Yuhang Economic Development Zone,
Yuhang District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC
IR BT A T I
TN T R 2
BRI A4S BT B 2% (R 15358
W—ETEEF
Flat G-J, 4/F, with portion of flat roof, 315.4 Medium term Commercial 100%
Lladro Center,
Nos. 72-80 Hoi Yuen Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 87
HENREEE H Hi [EES

B9 R 38 55 72-80 5% )i B AR 0y
ABGIE EEMETES)
(BN ER8T75%)
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